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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 8-K

Current Report

Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securitiesdehange Act of 1934
Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported): &tember 15, 2010

CELANESE CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

DELAWARE 001-32410 98-042072¢€
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporatic (Commission File Numbe (IRS Employer Identification No

1601 West LBJ Freeway, Dallas, Texas 75234-6034
(Address of principal executive Offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area c(@#2) 443-4000

Not Applicable
(Former name or former address, if changed sirstadgort):

Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-{lis intended to simultaneously satisfy the {liobligation of the registrant under any of
the following provisions (see General Instructior2 Abelow):

O  Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 unHerSecurities Act (17 CFR 230.4z

O Soliciting material pursuant to Rule -12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240-12)

O Precommencement communications pursuant to Rul-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240-2(b))
O

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rul-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240-4(c))




Item 7.01 Regulation FD Disclosure.*

On September 7, 2010, Celanese Corporatien*@bmpany”) issued a press release announcingtshaholly-owned subsidiary,
Celanese US Holdings LLC (the “Issuer”), intendstier, pursuant to an exemption from registratioer the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, senior unsecured notes (the “Private i@df§r A copy of the press release was filed wik Securities and Exchange Commission
as Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Current ReporForm 8-K dated September 7, 2010. On Septemb&Qif), the Company and the Issuer
delivered an offering memorandum containing centgidated information with respect to the Compangdtential investors in the Private
Offering. The information included in this CurrédRéport on Form 8-K, including the items attacheéxsbits hereto, is being provided to
satisfy the Company’s resulting public disclosweguirements under Regulation FD.

As previously disclosed in the Company’s QerdytReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Bihe2010 (the “Second Quarter 10-
Q"), which was filed with the Securities and ExchgarCommission on July 29, 2010, the Company intdir@wvns a 25% interest in its
National Methanol Companlbn Sina”) affiliate through CTE Petrochemicalsr@pany (“CTE”"),a joint venture with Texas Eastern Arak
Corporation Ltd. (which also indirectly owns 25%he remaining interest in Ibn Sina is held by S&masic Industries Corporation
(“SABIC"). In April 2010, the Company announced ttan Sina will construct a 50,000 ton polyacet®@M”) production facility in Saudi
Arabia and that the term of the joint venture agrest was extended until 2032. Upon successfulugtart the POM facility, the Company’s
indirect economic interest in Ibn Sina will incregsom 25% to 32.5%. SABIG’economic interest will remain unchanged. In cotine with
the transaction, the Company reassessed the fattosinding the accounting method for this investhand changed the accounting from
the cost method of accounting for investments éoettjuity method of accounting for investments beigim April 1, 2010. Effective April 1,
2010, the Company also moved its investment intiheSina affiliate from its Acetyl Intermediatesdiness segment to its Advanced
Engineered Materials business segment to reflecthiange in the affiliate’s business dynamics aod/th opportunities as a result of the
future construction of the POM facility.

The financial and business segment informatitetting to the Company’s Ibn Sina investment thas presented in the Second Quarter 10
Q reflected the application of the equity metho@odounting to the Company’s Ibn Sina investmedttae movement of the Ibn Sina
investment to the Company’s Advanced EngineereceN&s business segment. In connection with theaR¥iOffering, the Company
distributed to potential investors additional ugdhhistorical financial and business segment in&tion for the twelve months ended June
2010 and for the years ended December 31, 2008, 288 2007 that also reflected these adjustmeuatsuBnt to Regulation FD, the
Company is furnishing the following exhibits withis Form 8-K, which represent all such updatedhisal financial and business segment
information:

. Exhibit 99.1: Audited financial statements fol&ese Corporation and Subsidiaries as of DeceBihe2009 and 2008, and for each
of the three years ended December 31, 2009, 20D2G0V;

. Exhibit 99.2: The section of the Preliminary OffggiMemorandum entitle*Busines”;




Exhibit 99.3: The section of the Preliminary Qfiy Memorandum entitled “Management’s Discussiod Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” for the yearded December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 and thedhiesix months ended
June 30, 2010 and 2009; &

Exhibit 99.4: The section of the Preliminary OffggiMemorandum entitle* Summary Historical Consolidated Financial D”

In addition, the Company is also furnishingeabibit 99.5 audited financial statements as ofébeber 31, 2009 and 2008 and for each of
the three years in the period ended December 3B 0 CTE and Ibn Sina.

The information in this Form 8-K, includinglekits, should be read in conjunction with the SetQuarter 10-Q and subsequent SEC
filings.

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits

(d) Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Description
99.1 Audited Financial Statements of Celanese Corparatitd Subsidiaries
99.2 The section of the Preliminary Offering Memorandentitled” Busines”*
99.3 The section of the Preliminary Offering Memorandentitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis ioflRcial Condition
and Results of Operatic’*
99.4 The section of the Preliminary Offering Memorandentitled“ Summary Historical Consolidated Financial ["*
99.5 Audited Financial Statements of CTE Petrochemi€algipany and National Methanol Compal
99.6 Press Release dated September 7, 2

*

In connection with the disclosures set fortHtam 7.01, the information in this Current Repartluding exhibits attached hereto, is
being furnished and shall not be deemed “filed”"garposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exch@ttgef 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), or otherwise subject to the lighek of such section. The information in this Guntr Report, including the exhibits,
shall not be incorporated by reference into angdiunder the Securities Act of 1933, as amendetheoExchange Act, regardless of
any incorporation by reference language in any $iliog. This Current Report will not be deemedadmission as to the materiality of
any information in this Current Report that is riegd to be disclosed solely by Regulation |




SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdéport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

CELANESE CORPORATION

By: /s/ James R. Peacock I|
Name: James R. Peacock |
Title:  Vice President, Deputy General Counsel and
Assistant Corporate Secreta

Date: September 15, 2010

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit Filed herewith or incorporate
Number Description by reference

99.1 Audited Financial Statements of Celanese Corporatiad Subsidiaries Filed herewitt

99.2 The section of the Preliminary Offering Memorandentitled“Busines”* Filed herewitt

99.3 The section of the Preliminary Offering Memorandentitied “Management’s Discussion Filed herewith

and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkration”*

99.4 The section of the Preliminary Offering Memorandentitled “Summary Historical Filed herewith
Consolidated Financial D&"*

99.5 Audited Financial Statements of CTE Petrochemi€Calmipany and National Methanol Filed herewith
Company*
99.6 Press Release dated September 7, 2010* Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 99.1 to Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC
on September 8, 20:
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INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page
Number

ANNUAL CELANESE CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
Independent Audito’ Report 1
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeaded December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 (As Adi) 2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,#802008 (As Adjustec 3
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ EquityGomprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended

December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 (As Adjus 4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yemadled December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 (As

Adjusted)

~N o

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Celanese Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Celanese Corporation and subsidiaries
(the “Company”) as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,the related consolidated statements of opegtion
shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income)(lassl cash flows for each of the years in theettyar period
ended December 31, 2009. These consolidated fialesteitements are the responsibility of the Comjzany
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementedas our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with geneaaltepted auditing standards as established by the
Auditing Standards Board (United States) and iroetance with the auditing standards of the Pubtim@any
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Thdaedards require that we plan and perform the dadibtain
reasonable assurance about whether the finanatehsénts are free of material misstatement. Thep@ognis not
required to have, nor were we engaged to perfomaudlit of its internal control over financial repng. Our audit
included consideration of internal control overafirtial reporting as a basis for designing audit@dares that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for tingpse of expressing an opinion on the effectivenéshe
Company’s internal control over financial reportidgcordingly, we express no such opinion. An aatib
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the finarst@ements,
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well agatirg the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagaferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects,
the financial position of Celanese Corporation anlsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008thensults of
their operations and their cash flows for eacthefytears in the three-year period ended Decemh&08B, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accountmigciples.

As discussed in Note 15 to the consolidated fir@ratatements, the Company adopted Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Staff Positidn. 132(R)-1Employers’ Disclosures about Postretirement
Benefit Plan Assei(included in FASB Accounting Standards Codificat{®aASC”) Subtopic 715-20Defined
Benefit Plans), during the year ended December 31, 2009.

As discussed in Note 23 to the consolidated fir@ratatements, the Company adopted FASB Statenfient o
Financial Accounting Standards No. 15ajr Value Measurementincluded in FASB ASC Subtopic 820-1@air
Value Measurements and Disclosujeduring the year ended December 31, 2008.

As discussed in Note 19 to the consolidated fir@ratatements, the Company adopted FASB Interjwatat
No. 48,Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Tax@xcluded in FASB ASC Subtopic 740-18come Taxey
during the year ended December 31, 2007.

/sl KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 12, 2010, except as to Note 31
which is as of September 15, 2010
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008

2007

As Adjusted (Note 31)

(In $ millions, except for share and per share dafe

Net sales 5,08z 6,82: 6,444
Cost of sale: (4,079 (5,567 (4,999
Gross profit 1,00: 1,25¢€ 1,44¢
Selling, general and administrative exper (469) (540 (51€)
Amortization of intangible assets (primarily custemnelationships (77) (76) (72)
Research and development expet (75) (80) (73
Other (charges) gains, r (136) (10¢) (58
Foreign exchange gain (loss), | 2 4) 2
Gain (loss) on disposition of businesses and ggset 42 (8) 20
Operating profit 29C 44C T4€
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliat 99 17z 15C
Interest expens (207) (261) (262)
Refinancing expens - - (25€)
Interest incoms 8 31 44
Dividend income— cost investment 57 48 38
Other income (expense), r 4 3 (25)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare 251 43¢ 437
Income tax (provision) bene! 243 (63 (110
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic 494 37C 327
Earnings (loss) from operation of discontinued afiens 6 (120) 40
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operat - 6 52
Income tax (provision) benefit from discontinueckgtions (2 24 (2
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati 4 (90) 90
Net earnings (loss 49¢ 28C 417
Net (earnings) loss attributable to noncontroliimiggrests - 1 (1)
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Celanese Catjmr 49¢ 281 41€
Cumulative preferred stock dividen (10) (10 (10
Net earnings (loss) available to common sharehs 48¢ 271 40€
Amounts attributable to Celanese Corpora
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic 494 371 32¢
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati 4 (90 90
Net earnings (loss 49¢ 281 41€
Earnings (loss) per common sh— basic
Continuing operation 3.37 2.44 2.0t
Discontinued operatior 0.0 (0.6]) 0.5¢
Net earnings (loss basic 3.4C 1.8: 2.6%
Earnings (loss) per common sh— diluted
Continuing operation 3.14 2.27 1.9C
Discontinued operatior 0.0 (0.55) 0.5%
Net earnings (loss— diluted 3.17 1.72 2.4%
Weighted average shar- basic 143,688,74 148,350,27 154,475,02
Weighted average shar- diluted 157,115,52 163,471,87 171,227,99

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddiabstatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31,
2009 2008
As Adjusted (Note 31)
(In $ millions, except
share amounts)

ASSETS

Current asset
Cash and cash equivalel 1,25¢ 67€
Trade receivable- third party and affiliates (net of allowance foruddful account- 2009: $18; 2008: $2¢ 721 631
Non-trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtflcamts— 2009: $0; 2008: $1 262 281
Inventories 522 577
Deferred income taxe 42 24
Marketable securities, at fair val 3 6
Assets held for sal 2 2
Other asset 50 89
Total current asse 2,85¢€ 2,28¢
Investments in affiliate 792 781
Property, plant and equipment (net of accumulatgtetiatior— 2009: $1,130; 2008: $1,05 2,791 2,47
Deferred income taxe 484 27
Marketable securities, at fair val 80 94
Other asset 311 357
Goodwill 79¢ 77¢
Intangible assets, n 294 364
Total asset 8,41z 7,15¢

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities

Shor-term borrowings and current installments of I-term debt third party and affiliate 242 23¢
Trade payable- third party and affiliate 64¢ 52¢
Other liabilities 611 574
Deferred income taxe 33 15
Income taxes payab 72 24
Total current liabilities 1,607 1,36¢
Long-term debr 3,25¢ 3,30(
Deferred income taxe 137 122
Uncertain tax position 22¢ 21¢
Benefit obligations 1,28¢ 1,167
Other liabilities 1,30¢ 80€

Commitments and contingenci
Shareholder equity
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 sterthorized (2009 and 2008: 9,600,000 sharesdsaue
outstanding - -
Series A common stock, $0.0001 par value, 400,@@0sBares authorized (2009: 164,995,755 sharesdssud
144,394,069 outstanding; 2008: 164,107,394 shaseed and 143,505,708 outstandi - -
Series B common stock, $0.0001 par value, 100,000sB8ares authorized (2009 and 2008: 0 shareglissuk
outstanding

Treasury stock, at co- (2009 and 2008: 20,601,686 shar (78)) (781)
Additional paic-in capital 522 49k
Retained earninc 1,50¢ 1,04(
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (66C) (580)
Total Celanese Corporation sharehol’ equity 58€ 174
Noncontrolling interest - 2
Total shareholde’ equity 58€ 17€
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity 8,412 7,15¢

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialbstatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Preferred stoc
Balance as of the beginning of the per
Issuance of preferred sto

Balance as of the end of the per

Series A common stoc
Balance as of the beginning of the per
Issuance of Series A common st¢
Stock option exercise
Purchases of treasury stc
Stock award:

Balance as of the end of the per

Treasury stocl
Balance as of the beginning of the per
Purchases of treasury stock, including related

Balance as of the end of the per

Additional paic-in capital
Balance as of the beginning of the per
Indemnification of demerger liabilit
Stocl-based compensation, net of
Stock option exercises, net of t

Balance as of the end of the per

Retained earning
Balance as of the beginning of the per
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Celan
Corporatior
Series A common stock dividen
Preferred stock dividenc
Adoption of ASC 74(®)

Balance as of the end of the per

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Balance as of the beginning of the per
Unrealized gain (loss) on securit
Foreign currency translatic
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate sw
Pension and postretirement bene

Balance as of the end of the per

Total Celanese Corporation sharehol’ equity

Noncontrolling interest
Balance as of the beginning of the per
Purchase of remaining noncontrolling intere
Divestiture of noncontrolling interes
Net earnings (loss) attributable to noncontroll
interests

Balance as of the end of the per
Total shareholde’ equity

(LOSS)
2009 2008 2007
Shares Shares Shares
Outstanding Amount Outstanding Amount Outstanding Amount
As Adjusted (Note 31)
(In $ millions, except share data)

9,600,001 - 9,600,001 - 9,600,001 -
9,600,001 - 9,600,001 - 9,600,001 -
143,505,70 - 152,102,80 - 158,668,66 -
- - > - 7,40( -
806,58( - 1,056,36: - 4,265,22. -
- - (9,763,20) = (10,838,48) =
81,78: - 109,73¢ - - -
144,394,06 - 143,505,70 - 152,102,80 -
20,601,68 (781) 10,838,48 (403) - -
- - 9,763,201 (37€) 10,838,48 (403)
20,601,68 (781) 20,601,68 (781) 10,838,48 (409)
498 46¢ 362
- 2 4
13 15 15
14 9 88
527 49t 46¢
1,04( 79% 39¢
49¢ 281 41€
(23) (24) (25)
(10) (10) (10)
- - 14
1,50¢ 1,04( 793
(580) 19¢€ 30
() (29) 17
5 (130 70
15 (79 (42)
(97) (544 12C
(660) (580 19€
58€ 174 1,05¢
2 5 74
- - (70)
@ @ -
- @ 1
- 2 5
58 17€ 1,06!

(1) Adoption of ASC 740Income Taxerelated to uncertain tax positions (Note !
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(LOSS)
2009 2008 2007
Shares Shares Shares
Outstanding Amount Outstanding Amount Outstanding Amount
As Adjusted (Note 31)
(In $ millions, except share data
Comprehensive income (los
Net earnings (loss 49 28l 41
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Unrealized gain (loss) on securit (3) (23) 17
Foreign currency translatic 5 (230) 70
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate sw 15 79 (41)
Pension and postretirement bene 97 (5449 12C
Total comprehensive income (loss), net of 41¢ (49¢) 582
Comprehensive (income) loss attributabl
noncontrolling interest - 1 €))
Comprehensive income (loss) attributabl
Celanese Corporatic 41¢ (498) 582

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialbstatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007
As Adjusted (Note 31)
(In $ millions)

Operating activitie:
Net earnings (los¢ 49¢ 28C 417
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) tocash provided by
operating activities

Other charges (gains), net of amounts t 73 111 30
Depreciation, amortization and accret 31¢ 36C 311
Deferred income taxes, n (402) (69) 23
(Gain) loss on disposition of businesses and agset (40) 1 (74)
Refinancing expens - - 25€
Other, ne 12 37 8
Operating cash provided by (used in) discontinysetations 2 3 (84)
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Trade receivable— third party and affiliates, ne (79) 33¢ (69)
Inventories 30 21 (27)
Other asset 9 53 66
Trade payable— third party and affiliate 104 (26%) (11)
Other liabilities 74 (285) (280)
Net cash provided by operating activit 59¢€ 58€ 56€
Investing activities
Capital expenditures on property, plant and equigt (17¢) (2749) (28¢)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquir (9 - (269)
Proceeds from sale of businesses and asse 171 9 il
Deferred proceeds on Ticona Kelsterbach plant atioe 412 311 -
Capital expenditures related to Ticona Kelsterhalaht relocatior (357) (18%) (22)
Proceeds from sale of marketable secur 15 20z 69
Purchases of marketable securi - (92) (59
Changes in restricted ca - - 46
Settlement of cross currency swap agreerr - (93 -
Other, ne (3) (80) (50
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 31 (201) 142
Financing activitie:
Shor-term borrowings (repayments), t 9 (64) 30
Proceeds from lor-term debt - 13 2,90¢
Repayments of lor-term debi (80) 47 (3,059
Refinancing cost ©)] - (240
Purchases of treasury stock, including related - (37¢) (4093
Stock option exercise 14 18 69
Series A common stock dividen (23) (24 (25)
Preferred stock dividenc (10) (20 (20
Other, ne D (7 14
Net cash used in financing activiti (112 (499 (7149
Exchange rate effects on cash and cash equivs 63 (35 39
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 57¢ (149) 34
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 67€ 82F 791
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe 1,25 67¢ 82!

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddiabstatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of the Company and Basis of Presentatic

Celanese Corporation and its subsidiaries (collelstithe “Company”) is a leading global integrated
chemical and advanced materials company. The Coyigphusiness involves processing chemical raw riadser
such as methanol, carbon monoxide and ethylenenaidal products, including wood pulp, into vakeded
chemicals, thermoplastic polymers and other cherbased products.

Definitions

The term “Celanese” refers to Celanese Corporasiddelaware corporation, and not its subsidiaiiés
term “Celanese US” refers to the Company’s subsidi@elanese US Holdings LLC, a Delaware limitexdbility
company, formerly known as BCP Crystal US Holdi@gsp., a Delaware corporation, and not its subs&iaThe
term “Purchaser” refers to the Company’s subsidiBGP Holdings GmbH (successor by merger to Celanes
Europe Holding GmbH & Co. KG), and not its subsiitis, except where otherwise indicated. The termigi@al
Shareholders” refers, collectively, to Blackstorapital Partners (Cayman) Ltd. 1, Blackstone Cajpitatners
(Cayman) Ltd. 2, Blackstone Capital Partners (Caynhéd. 3 and BA Capital Investors Sidecar Fundp.LThe
term “Advisor” refers to Blackstone Management Rars, an affiliate of The Blackstone Group.

Basis of Presentatiol

The consolidated financial statements containedihavere prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica (“US GAAP”) for all periods presentechd
consolidated financial statements and other firarneformation included herein, unless otherwisecsjed, have
been presented to separately show the effectsoduiinued operations.

In the ordinary course of the business, the Comeaitgrs into contracts and agreements relative to a
number of topics, including acquisitions, dispasis, joint ventures, supply agreements, produessahd other
arrangements. The Company endeavors to describe ttomtracts or agreements that are material bugmess,
results of operations or financial position. Ther@any may also describe some arrangements thabareaterial
but which the Company believes investors may haviatarest in or which may have been subject to a
Form 8-K filing. Investors should not assume thenpany has described all contracts and agreemdativesto the
Company’s business in these financial statements.

2. Summary of Accounting Policies

« Consolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements have bequaped in accordance with US GAAP for all periods
presented and include the accounts of the Compathjt@majority owned subsidiaries over which trer@any
exercises control. All significant intercompany @agots and transactions have been eliminated inotidasion.

« Estimates and assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statesi@ntonformity with US GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect thetegpamounts of assets and liabilities, disclosdr@ntingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the constitiéinancial statements and the reported amodnts/enues,
expenses and allocated charges during the repgréingd. Significant estimates pertain to impairtsesf goodwill,
intangible assets and other long-lived assets hasee price
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allocations, restructuring costs and other (chargams, net, income taxes, pension and other gtostment
benefits, asset retirement obligations, environaldizhilities and loss contingencies, among othacdual results
could differ from those estimates.

» Cash and cash equivalents

All highly liquid investments with original matuigts of three months or less are considered cash
equivalents.

* Inventories

Inventories, including stores and supplies, areedtat the lower of cost or market. Cost for inegiets is
determined using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”)athod. Cost includes raw materials, direct labar manufacturing
overhead. Cost for stores and supplies is primdelgrmined by the average cost method.

* Investments in marketable securities

The Company classifies its investments in debteaqty securities as “available-for-sakid reports thos
investments at their fair market values in the otidated balance sheets as Marketable Securitiésir aalue.
Unrealized gains or losses, net of the relateetfect on available-for-sale securities, are exetuttom earnings
and are reported as a component of Accumulatea otimprehensive income (loss), net until realiZdte cost of
securities sold is determined by using the speitifatification method.

A decline in the market value of any available-$ate security below cost that is deemed to be
other-than-temporary results in a reduction indherying amount to fair value. The impairment isugfed to
earnings and a new cost basis for the securitgtabéished. To determine whether impairment is
other-than-temporary, the Company considers whéties the ability and intent to hold the investinentil a
market price recovery and evidence indicating i of the investment is recoverable outweighsenwe to the
contrary. Evidence considered in this assessmehidas the reasons for the impairment, the sevarnityduration ¢
the impairment, changes in value subsequent togqgaand forecasted performance of the investee.

* Investments in affiliates

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Acoting Standards Codification (“FASB ASC”) Topic
323, Investments — Equity Method and Joint Ventysgpulates that the equity method should be tsedcount
for investments whereby an investor has “the ahiititexercise significant influence over operatamgl financial
policies of an investee”, but does not exercisearohrFASB ASC Topic 323 generally considers arestor to have
the ability to exercise significant influence whenwns 20% or more of the voting stock of an irtees FASB ASC
Topic 323 lists circumstances under which, des} ownership, an investor may not be able to éserc
significant influence. Certain investments whemre @ompany owns greater than a 20% ownership antbtan
exercise significant influence or control are asted for under the cost method (Note 8).

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingrvalue of its investments whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate a loss in valaieis other than a temporary decline. A loss ineaf an equity-
method or cost-method investment which is othen tagemporary decline will be recognized as thiedéhce
between the carrying amount of the investment enfhir value.

The Company'’s estimates of fair value are deterchbvsed on a discounted cash flow model. The
Company periodically engages third-party valuationsultants to assist with this process.
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* Property, plant and equipment, net

Land is recorded at historical cost. Buildings, hiaery and equipment, including capitalized interaad
property under capital lease agreements, are red@tlcost less accumulated depreciation. The Coymeaords
depreciation and amortization in its consolidatiedesnents of operations as either Cost of sal&elling, general
and administrative expenses consistent with tHaition of the underlying assets. Depreciationdkulated on a
straight-line basis over the following estimatedfuslives of depreciable assets:

Land Improvement 20 years
Buildings and improvemen 30 years
Machinery and Equipmel 20 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over ten y@aire remaining life of the respective lease,
whichever is shorter.

Accelerated depreciation is recorded when the astichuseful life is shortened. Ordinary repair and
maintenance costs, including costs for planned maénce turnarounds, that do not extend the ubkfuf the
asset are charged to earnings as incurred. Fyiisedmted assets are retained in property and defiten accounts
until sold or otherwise disposed. In the case sposals, assets and related depreciation are rehfimre the
accounts, and the net amounts, less proceeds fspuosdl, are included in earnings.

The Company also leases property, plant and equipomaler operating and capital leases. Rent exden
operating leases, which may have escalating reataknt holidays over the term of the lease, éerded on a
straightline basis over the lease term. Amortization ofitzdfease assets is included as a component oédiggion
expense.

Assets acquired in business combinations are redaatitheir fair values and depreciated over thetas
remaining useful lives or the Company’s policy yahichever is shorter.

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingramount of its property, plant and equipment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying amount of an asset or assepgray not be
recoverable. An impairment loss would be asses$ephwstimated undiscounted future cash flows fifwan t
operation and disposition of the asset group a®tlean the carrying amount of the asset groupetAgsups have
identifiable cash flows and are largely independdmther asset groups. Measurement of an impairioss is
based on the excess of the carrying amount ofdbet group over its fair value. Fair value is meagdwsing
discounted cash flows or independent appraisal@ppopriate. Impairment losses are recorded inegdégtion
expense or Other (charges) gains, net dependitigediacts and circumstances.

» Goodwill and other intangible assets

Trademarks and trade names, customer-related ibtaragsets and other intangibles with finite liaes
amortized on a straighinne basis over their estimated useful lives. Theess of the purchase price over fair valu
net identifiable assets and liabilities of an acegibusiness (“goodwill”) and other indefinite-livéntangible assets
are not amortized, but rather tested for impairmanieast annually. The Company tests for goodaritl indefinite-
lived intangible asset impairment during the thgedarter of its fiscal year using June 30 balances.

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingrvalue of goodwill at least annually or wheneve
events or changes in circumstances indicate tleatdtrying amount of the goodwill of a reportingtumay not be
fully recoverable. Recoverability is measured atridporting unit level based on the provisionsASEB ASC Topic
350, Intangibles — Goodwill and OtheiThe Company’s estimates of fair value are deteechbased on a
discounted cash flow model. The Company periodicatigages third-party
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valuation consultants to assist with this prockapairment losses are recorded in other operatipgrese or Other
(charges) gains, net depending on the facts andrastances.

The Company assesses recoverability of other indedived intangible assets at least annually or when
events or changes in circumstances indicate tieatdtrying amount of the indefinite-lived intangilasset may not
be fully recoverable. Recoverability is measuredtnpmparison of the carrying value of the indedifived
intangible asset over its fair value. Any excesthefcarrying value of the indefinite-lived intablgi asset over its
fair value is recognized as an impairment loss. Chmpany’s estimates of fair value are determirgsket on a
discounted cash flow model. The Company periodicatigages third-party valuation consultants tosassgih this
process. Impairment losses are recorded in othematpg expense or Other (charges) gains, net dépgon the
facts and circumstances.

The Company assesses the recoverability of finiedlintangible assets in the same manner as éqepty,
plant and equipment as described above. Impairtoesés are recorded in amortization expense orQtharges)
gains, net depending on the facts and circumstances

* Financial instruments

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the pomgsif FASB ASC Topic 82@Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosui(“*FASB ASC Topic 820") for financial assets andliiities. On January 1, 2009, the
Company applied the provisions of FASB ASC Topi® 8 non-recurring fair value measurements of non-
financial assets and liabilities, such as gooduvitlefinite-lived intangible assets, property, pland equipment and
asset retirement obligations. The adoptions of FASE Topic 820 did not have a material impact an th
Company’s financial position, results of operationgash flows. FASB ASC Topic 820 defines fairueland
increases disclosures surrounding fair value calmiis.

The Company manages its exposures to currency egehrates, interest rates and commaodity prices
through a risk management program that includesiskeof derivative financial instruments (Note 2i)e
Company does not use derivative financial instrushér speculative trading purposes. The fair vaitiall
derivative instruments is recorded as assets loititias at the balance sheet date. Changes ifathgalue of these
instruments are reported in income or Accumulateeérocomprehensive income (loss), net, dependinth®nise of
the derivative and whether it qualifies for hedgeaunting treatment under the provisions of FASBCARpic 815
Derivatives and Hedgin(“FASB ASC Topic 815").

Gains and losses on derivative instruments qualjfgs cash flow hedges are recorded in Accumutztten
comprehensive income (loss), net, to the extenhéuges are effective, until the underlying tratisas are
recognized in income. To the extent effective, gand losses on derivative and non-derivativeunsénts used as
hedges of the Company’s net investment in forejggrations are recorded in Accumulated other congursilie
income (loss), net as part of the foreign curremagslation adjustment. The ineffective portionsash flow hedge
and hedges of net investment in foreign operatidm@sy, are recognized in income immediately. Dative
instruments not designated as hedges are markedriet at the end of each accounting period wighctimnge in
fair value recorded in income.

» Concentrations of credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the eeémonpayment by customers and counterparties. The
creditworthiness of customers and counterpartissligect to continuing review, including the userafster netting
agreements, where the Company deems approprisgeCa@mpany minimizes concentrations of credit risktigh
its global orientation in diverse businesses withrge number of diverse customers and supplieradtlition, credi
risks arising from derivative instruments is n@rsficant because the counterparties to these actstare primarily
major international financial institutions and adesser extent, major chemical companies. Wheyeoppate, the
Company has diversified its selection of counteipar Generally, collateral is not required fronsttumers and
counterparties and allowances are provided foripeisks inherent in receivables.
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« Deferred financing costs

The Company capitalizes direct costs incurred taioldebt financings and amortizes these costgusin
method that approximates the effective interest ma¢thod over the terms of the related debt. Upen t
extinguishment of the related debt, any unamortcaggtalized debt financing costs are immediat&lyemsed.

* Environmental liabilities

The Company manufactures and sells a diverse fiokamical products throughout the world. Accordijn
the Company’s operations are subject to variouarduszncidental to the production of industrial heals
including the use, handling, processing, storagkte@msportation of hazardous materials. The Compacognizes
losses and accrues liabilities relating to envirental matters if available information indicateatth is probable
that a liability has been incurred and the amoftihdss can be reasonably estimated. Dependingenature of the
site, the Company accrues through fifteen yeadgssrthe Company has government orders or otheeammnts th:
extend beyond fifteen years. If the event of I@ssdither probable nor reasonably estimable, bnetaisonably
possible, the Company provides appropriate discéosuthe notes to the consolidated financial statats if the
contingency is considered material. The Compariynesés environmental liabilities on a case-by-dasss using
the most current status of available facts, exgstathnology, presently enacted laws and regulsto prior
experience in remediation of contaminated sitesoReries of environmental costs from other pariesrecorded
as assets when their receipt is deemed probable.

An environmental reserve related to cleanup ofrdarainated site might include, for example, a psimri
for one or more of the following types of costse snhvestigation and testing costs, cleanup coststs related to sc
and water contamination resulting from tank rupguaad post-remediation monitoring costs. Thesevesalo not
take into account any claims or recoveries fronuiasce. There are no pending insurance claimstfpr a
environmental liability that are expected to beeniat. The measurement of environmental liabiliiiebased on the
Company’s periodic estimate of what it will costperform each of the elements of the remediatiéortefThe
Company utilizes third parties to assist in the aggament and development of cost estimates foités. hanges
environmental regulations or other factors affegmvironmental liabilities are reflected in theasolidated
financial statements in the period in which theguwqNote 16).

* Legal fees

The Company accrues for legal fees related todoeingency matters when the costs associated with
defending these matters can be reasonably estiraatedre probable of occurring. All other legalsfaee expensed
as incurred.

* Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when title andofidéss have been transferred to the customer,rghiy
at the time of shipment of products, and provideat four basic criteria are met: (1) persuasive@vee of an
arrangement exists; (2) delivery has occurred niiges have been rendered; (3) the fee is fixedeterminable; ar
(4) collectibility is reasonably assured. Shouldmes in conditions cause the Company to deterreirenue
recognition criteria are not met for certain tranigms, revenue recognition would be delayed wuiih time that th
transactions become realizable and fully earnegimieats received in advance of meeting the aboveniey
recognition criteria are recorded as deferred regen

» Research and development

The costs of research and development are chasgad expense in the period in which they are imclrr
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* Insurance loss reserves

The Company has two wholly owned insurance compga(tiiee “Captives”) that are used as a form of self
insurance for property, liability and workers comgation risks. One of the Captives also insureicethird-party
risks. The liabilities recorded by the Captivestelto the estimated risk of loss which is basethanagement
estimates and actuarial valuations, and unearresdipms, which represent the portion of the thirdyppremiums
written applicable to the unexpired terms of thégies in-force. Liabilities are recognized for kmo claims when
sufficient information has been developed to in@tigavolvement of a specific policy and the Compaag
reasonably estimate its liability. In addition Hilities have been established to cover additiexplosure on both
known and unasserted claims. Estimates of thditiabiare reviewed and updated regularly. It isgible that actui
results could differ significantly from the recocdiabilities. Premiums written are recognized egenue based on
the terms of the policies. Capitalization of thep@zes is determined by regulatory guidelines.

* Reinsurance receivables

The Captives enter into reinsurance arrangememegitace their risk of loss. The reinsurance arrareggs
do not relieve the Captives from their obligatitmgolicyholders. Failure of the reinsurers to hotheir obligation:
could result in losses to the Captives. The Captaxaluate the financial condition of their reirssrand monitor
concentrations of credit risk to minimize their espre to significant losses from reinsurer insobtves and to
establish allowances for amounts deemed non-citllect

* Income taxes

The provision for income taxes has been determirsaty the asset and liability approach of accognftim
income taxes. Under this approach, deferred indaxes reflect the net tax effects of temporaryedéhces betwer
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitiedfiftancial reporting purposes and the amounts usethfome tax
purposes and net operating loss and tax credi éamwvards. The amount of deferred taxes on thesgorary
differences is determined using the tax ratesahaexpected to apply to the period when the &ssealized or the
liability is settled, as applicable, based on tes and laws in the respective tax jurisdictioacted as of the
balance sheet date.

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets favezability and establishes a valuation allowaraseh
on historical taxable income, projected future l&ancome, applicable tax strategies, and the @rpdiming of
the reversals of existing temporary differencesafuation allowance is provided when it is morehkthan not the
some portion or all of the deferred tax assetsmwatlbe realized.

The Company considers many factors when evaluatigigestimating its tax positions and tax benefits,
which may require periodic adjustments and whicly mat accurately anticipate actual outcomes. Taitjpms are
recognized only when it is more likely than nok€lihood of greater than 50%), based on technieaits) that the
positions will be sustained upon examination. Tasifons that meet the more-likely-than-not thrddteoe
measured using a probability weighted approachasargest amount of tax benefit that is greaten t50% likely o
being realized upon settlement. Whether the médylithan-not recognition threshold is met for = p@sition is a
matter of judgment based on the individual fac$ @ncumstances of that position evaluated in lftall available
evidence.

12
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» Noncontrolling interests

Noncontrolling interests in the equity and resoftsperations of the entities consolidated by toenBany
are shown as a separate line item in the consetidatancial statements. The entities includededonsolidated
financial statements that have noncontrolling iesés are as follows:

Ownership Percentage
as of December 31

2009 2008
Celanese Polisinteza d.o. 76% 76%
Synthesegasanlage Ruhr Gm 50% 50%

In December 2009, the Company paid a liquidatimideind related to its ownership in Synthesegasanlag
Ruhr GmbH in the amount of €1 million. The Compagurrently liquidating its ownership in Syntheasgnlage
Ruhr GmbH.

» Accounting for purchasing agent agreements

A subsidiary of the Company acts as a purchasiegtagn behalf of the Company, as well as thirdiggurt
The entity arranges sale and purchase agreementsfanaterials on a commission basis. Accordintylg,
commissions earned on these third-party saleslassified as a reduction to Selling, general andiatstrative
expenses.

* Functional and reporting currencies

For the Company’s international operations wheeseftimctional currency is other than the US dobasets
and liabilities are translated using period-endhexge rates, while the statement of operations ata@ue
translated using the average exchange rates foesipective period. Differences arising from tlam$iation of
assets and liabilities in comparison with the thatien of the previous periods or from initial rggation during the
period are included as a separate component ofrAgialed other comprehensive income (loss), net.

* Reclassifications
The Company has reclassified certain prior perimdants to conform to the current year presentation.
3. Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In February 2010, the FASB issued FASB Accountitan8ards Update 2010-0Subsequent Events:
Amendments to Certain Recognition and DisclosuguRements(“ASU 2010-09"), which amends FASB ASC
Topic 855,Subsequent EventIhe update provides that US Securities and Exglh&ommission (“SEC™Hjlers, as
defined in ASU 2010-09, are no longer requirediszldse the date through which subsequent eventsligen
evaluated in originally issued and revised finahsiatements. The update also requires SEC fitecomtinue to
evaluate subsequent events through the date theciad statements are issued rather than the ldatinancial
statements are available to be issued. The Comgdopted ASU 2010-08pon issuance. This update had no im
on the Company’s financial position, results of igpiens or cash flows.

In January 2010, the FASB issued FASB Accountiram@ards Update 2010-0Bair Value Measurements
and Disclosures: Improving Disclosures about Faalye MeasurementsASU 2010-06"), which amends FASB
ASC Topic 820-10Fair Value Measurements and Disclosur@he update provides additional disclosures for
transfers in and out of Levels 1 and 2 and fowvégtin Level 3 and clarifies certain
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other existing disclosure requirements. The Compatopted ASU 2010-06 beginning January 15, 201 Th
update had no impact on the Company’s financiaitipos results of operations or cash flows.

In January 2010, the FASB issued FASB Accountiram&ards Update 2010-0&¢counting and Reporting
for Decreases in Ownership of a Subsidi— A Scope Clarificatio’ASU 2010-02"), which amends FASB ASC
Topic 820-10 (“FASB ASC Topic 820-10"). The updaridresses implementation issues related to chamges
ownership provisions in the FASB ASC 820-10. Thenpany adopted ASU 2010-02 on December 31, 200%. Thi
update had no impact on the Company'’s financiaitipos results of operations or cash flows.

In August 2009, the FASB issued FASB Accountingh8tads Update 2009-0Bair Value Measurements
and Disclosureg*ASU 2009-05"), which amends FASB ASC Topic 820{1IBASB ASC Topic 820-10"). The
update provides clarification on the techniquesneasurement of fair value required of a reporéingity when a
quoted price in an active market for an identigility is not available. The Company adopted ASU
2009-05 beginning September 30, 2009. This updadenb impact on the Company’s financial positi@suits of
operations or cash flows.

In June 2009, the FASB issued Statement of FinbhAcieounting Standards (“SFAS”) 168he FASB
Accounting Standards Codificati™ and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounimnigiciples — a
replacement of FAS 1§2SFAS 168"), which created FASB ASC Topic 105-1BASB ASC Topic
105-10"). FASB ASC Topic 105-10 identifies the smes of accounting principles and the frameworksflecting
principles used in the preparation of financiatest@ents of nongovernmental entities that are ptededn
conformity with US GAAP (the GAAP hierarchy). Th@@pany adopted FASB ASC Topic 105-10 beginning
September 30, 2009. This standard had no impattteo@ompany’s financial position, results of operad or cash
flows.

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS 16&bibsequent Event$SFAS 165”), codified in FASB ASC Topic
855-10, which establishes accounting and disclostaredards for events that occur after the balaheet date but
before financial statements are issued or areahlaito be issued. It defines financial statemastavailable to be
issued, requiring the disclosure of the date thinomgich an entity has evaluated subsequent evedttha basis for
that date, whether it be the date the financiakstants were issued or the date they were availatile issued. The
Company adopted SFAS 165 upon issuance. This sthhdd no impact on the Company’s financial positio
results of operations or cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff Positi6RSP”) SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124Recognition
and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary ImpairméiSP SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2@hich is codified ir
FASB ASC Topic 320-10. FSP SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 2 pdevides guidance to determine whether the haltler
an investment in a debt security for which charigdair value are not regularly recognized in eagsi should
recognize a loss in earnings when the investmantpaired. This FSP also improves the presentaiwhdisclosur
of other-than-temporary impairments on debt andtggecurities in the consolidated financial stageits. The
Company adopted FSP SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2iagiApril 1, 2009. This FSP had no material impatt
the Company’s financial position, results of operat or cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 107-1 acddAinting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion APB
28-1,Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financiastrumentg“FSP SFAS 107-1 and APB 28-1").
FSP SFAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, which is codified A8B ASC Topic 825-10-50, require disclosures alfaint
value of financial instruments for interim repodiperiods of publicly traded companies as wellhaarinual
financial statements. The Company adopted FSP XSl and APB 28-1 beginning April 1, 2009. ThidH&ad
no impact on the Company’s financial position, tesaf operations or cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 15Détermining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of
Activity for the Asset or Liability Have SignifidhnDecreased and ldentifying Transactions That
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Not Orderly(“FSP SFAS 157-4"). FSP SFAS 157-4, which is cadifin FASB ASC Topics 820-10-35-51 and
820-10-50-2, provides additional guidance for eating fair value and emphasizes that even if thasebeen a
significant decrease in the volume and level alvigtfor the asset or liability and regardlesstioé valuation
technique(s) used, the objective of a fair valuasneement remains the same. The Company adopted FSP
SFAS 157-4 beginning April 1, 2009. This FSP hadnaterial impact on the Company’s financial positicesults
of operations or cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 141(RMgcounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilities
Assumed in a Business Combination That Arise fromtiSgencie("FSP SFAS 141(R)-1"). FSP SFAS 141(R)-1,
which is codified in FASB ASC Topic 80Business Combinationsaddresses application issues related to the
measurement, accounting and disclosure of assetiadilities arising from contingencies in a buess
combination. The Company adopted FSP SFAS 141({R)eh issuance. This FSP had no impact on the Coytgpan
financial position, results of operations or casiws.

In December 2008, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 132(Rjrployers’ Disclosures about Postretirement
Benefit Plan Assel(“FSP SFAS 132(R)-1"), which is codified in FASB BS opic 715-20-50. FSP SFAS 132(R)-1
requires enhanced disclosures about the plan afs®i8ompany’s defined benefit pension and otlostnetirement
plans intended to provide financial statement ugdtsa greater understanding of: 1) how investnadioication
decisions are made; 2) the major categories of g¢aets; 3) the inputs and valuation techniques tasmeasure the
fair value of plan assets; 4) the effect of failueameasurements using significant unobservablgténpn changes in
plan assets for the period; and 5) significant eotr@tions of risk within plan assets. The Compaagpted FSP
SFAS 132(R)-1 on January 1, 2009. This FSP hadwpadét on the Company’s financial position, resofts
operations or cash flows.

4. Acquisitions, Ventures, Divestitures, Asset Salesd Plant Closures

Acquisitions

In December 2009, the Company acquired the busanedassets of FACT GmbH (Future Advanced
Composites Technology) (“FACT"), a German compdoy a purchase price of €5 million ($7 million). EAX is in
the business of developing, producing and markeéting fiber reinforced thermoplastics. As parttod aicquisition,
the Company has entered into a ten year leaseragréavith the seller for the property and buildirmgswhich the
FACT business is located with the option to pureith® property at various times throughout thede@ke
acquired business is included in the Advanced Eeged Materials segment.

In January 2007, the Company acquired the cellidos¢ate flake, tow and film business of Acetate
Products Limited (“APL"), a subsidiary of CorsadMB The purchase price for the transaction was@pprately
£57 million ($112 million), in addition to directquisition costs of approximately £4 million ($7lioin). As
contemplated prior to the closing of the acquisitithe Company closed the acquired tow productiantt Little
Heath, United Kingdom in September 2007. In acaocdawith the Company’s sponsor services agreenaatd
January 26, 2005, as amended, the Company pafithisor $1 million in connection with the acquisiti. The
acquired business is included in the Company’s Quoes Specialties segment.

Ventures

In March 2007, the Company entered into a strategithership with Accsys Technologies PLC (“Accgys”
and its subsidiary, Titan Wood, to become the estekisupplier of acetyl products to Titan Wood'shieology
licensees for use in wood acetylation. In connectiith this partnership, in May 2007, the Compaogared
8,115,883 shares of Accsys’ common stock reprasgiaipproximately 5.45% of the total voting shareAasys
for €22 million ($30 million). The investment wagated as an available-for-sale security and waaded in
Marketable securities, at fair value, on the Comyfmoonsolidated balance sheets. On November 27 ,28e
Company and Accsys announced that they agreedeaadatheir business
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arrangements so that each company would have xclasie “at-will” trading and supply relationship give both
companies greater flexibility. As part of this arderent, the Company subsequently sold all of itseshaf Accsys
stock for approximately €20 million ($30 millionyhich resulted in a cumulative loss of $3 million.

Divestitures

In July 2009, the Company completed the sale gfatgvinyl alcohol (“PVOH") business to Sekisui
Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Sekisui”) for a net cash puash price of $168 million, resulting in a gain aspasition of
$34 million. The net cash purchase price excludestcounts receivable and payable retained bgdhngpany. Th
transaction includes long-term supply agreementisd®n Sekisui and the Company and therefore, dotegualify
for treatment as a discontinued operation. The P\bOsiness is included in the Industrial Speciakiegment.

In July 2008, the Company sold its 55.46% inteireferivados Macroquimicos S.A. de C.V.
(“DEMACSA") for proceeds of $3 million. DEMACSA prtuces cellulose ethers at an industrial complex in
Zacapu, Michoacan, Mexico and is included in thenBany’s Acetyl Intermediates segment. In June 20GS,
Company recorded a long-lived asset impairmentdd$ million to Cost of sales in the consolidagtatements of
operations. As a result, the proceeds from theaggbeoximated the carrying value of DEMACSA on tla¢e of the
sale. The Company concluded the sale of DEMACS#otsa discontinued operation due to certain forfns o
continuing involvement between the Company and DEMNSA subsequent to the sale.

In August 2007, the Company sold its Films busireddsVA Performance Polymers (f/k/a AT Plastics),
located in Edmonton and Westlock, Alberta, Can&al8ritish Polythene Industries PLC (“BPI”) for $hillion.
The Films business manufactures products for thiewtyral, horticultural and construction indussi The
Company recorded a loss on the sale of $7 millioing the year ended December 31, 2007. The Company
maintained ownership of the Polymers businessebtisiness formerly known as AT Plastics, whichcentrates
on the development and supply of specialty resiscmmpounds. EVA Performance Polymers is includetle
Company’s Industrial Specialties segment. The Comgancluded that the sale of the Films businesstisa
discontinued operation due to the level of contiguiash flows between the Films business and EMfoeance
Polymers’ Polymers business subsequent to the sale.

In connection with the Company'’s strategy to opienits portfolio and divest non-core operations, th
Company announced in December 2006 its agreemeaetitits Acetyl Intermediates segment’s oxo prddwand
derivatives businesses, including European Oxo GifiE®X0O"), a 50/50 venture between Celanese GmbeH an
Degussa AG (“Degussa”), to Advent Internationat,dgurchase price of €480 million ($636 millionjpgect to
final agreement adjustments and the successfutiseenf the Company’s option to purchase Degess@% interes
in EOXO. On February 23, 2007, the option was esettand the Company acquired Degussa'’s interakein
venture for a purchase price of €30 million ($3%iom), in addition to €22 million ($29 million) pd to extinguish
EOXO'’s debt upon closing of the transaction. ThenPany completed the sale of its oxo products amivate/es
businesses, including the acquired 50% intereBOXO, on February 28, 2007. The sale included #oeamd
derivatives businesses at the Oberhausen, GerraadyBay City, Texas facilities as well as portiohgs Bishop,
Texas facility. Also included were EOXQO'’s facilisiavithin the Oberhausen and Marl, Germany plartig. former
oxo products and derivatives businesses acquiréedgnt International was renamed Oxea. Taking atoount
agreed deductions by the buyer for pension and etngloyee benefits and various costs for separaititivities,
the Company received proceeds of approximately #4dl®n ($585 million) at closing. The transactioesulted in
the recognition of a $47 million pre-tax gain, rested to Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinuedrafiens, which
includes certain working capital and other adjusttagin 2007. Due to certain lease-back arrangesrtsativeen the
Company and the buyer and related environmentaatidns of the Company, approximately $51 millafrthe
transaction proceeds attributable to the fair valugne underlying land at Bay City ($1 million)@&®berhausen
(€36 million) is included in deferred proceeds anourrent Other liabilities, and
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divested land with a book value of $14 million (&h@lion at Oberhausen and $1 million at Bay Citgnains in
Property, plant and equipment, net in the Compacgisolidated balance sheets.

Subsequent to closing, the Company and Oxea hatagresite service and product supply arrangements.
The site services include, but are not limitedatiministrative, utilities, health and safety, wastger treatment and
maintenance activities for terms which range ufifteen years. Product supply agreements contatialiterms of
up to fifteen years. The Company has no contraetbidity through these agreements or any othengaments to
significantly influence the operating or finangmllicies of Oxea. The Company concluded, basedemature and
limited projected magnitude of the continuing besis relationship between the Company and Oxedj\bstiture
of the oxo products and derivatives businesseslgl@uaccounted for as a discontinued operation.

Third-party net sales include $5 million to theelited oxo products and derivative businesses éoyehr
ended December 31, 2007 that were eliminated uppnsatidation.

In accordance with the Company’s sponsor servigeseanent dated January 26, 2005, as amended, the
Company paid the Advisor $6 million in connectioithithe sale of the oxo products and derivativesirimsses.

During the second quarter of 2007, the Companyodiscued its Edmonton, Alberta, Canada methanol
operations, which were included in the Acetyl Intediates segment. As a result, the earnings (lass)operation:
related to Edmonton methanol are accounted foisa®utinued operations.

Asset Sale

In May 2008, shareholders of the Company’s Koplyéhia legal entity voted to approve the April 800
decision by the Company to permanently shut dowsamulsions production site. The decision to stowtn the
site resulted in employee severance of less thanifibn, which is included in Other (charges) gainet, in the
consolidated statements of operations during tle geded December 31, 2008. Currently, the fadgiigle and th
existing fixed assets, including machinery and popgnt, buildings and land are being marketed fla. Sde Kopel
Slovenia legal entity is included in the Compariydustrial Specialties segment.

In December 2007, the Company sold the assets Btiinonton, Alberta, Canada facility to a realtesta
developer for approximately $35 million. As parttbé agreement, the Company will retain certainrenmental
liabilities associated with the site. The Compaayedognized $16 million of asset retirement obiayet which wer
transferred to the buyer. As a result of the ghke Company recorded a gain of $37 million forylear ended
December 31, 2007, of which a gain of $34 millioaswecorded to Gain (loss) on disposition of bissiae and
assets, net in the consolidated statements of tipesa

In July 2007, the Company reached an agreementBaititock & Brown, a worldwide investment firm
which specializes in real estate and utilities ttgwment, to sell the ComparsyPampa, Texas facility. The Comp
ceased operations at the site in December 2008es received upon certain milestone events eatett as
deferred proceeds and included in noncurrent Qidigitities in the Company’s consolidated balanbeets until the
transaction is complete (expected to be in 2010)edined in the sales agreement. These operatieriacluded in
the Company'’s Acetyl Intermediates segment. Dutliregsecond half of 2008, the Company determineidhtiaof
the milestone events, which are outside of the Gomis control, were unlikely to be achieved. Ther(pany
performed a discounted cash flow analysis whichlted in a $23 million long-lived asset impairméogs recorded
to Other (charges) gains, net, in the consolidatattments of operations during the year endedrbeee31, 2008
(Note 18).
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Plant Closures

In July 2009, the Company’s wholly-owned Frenchssdilary, Acetex Chimie, completed the consultation
procedure with the workers council on its “ProjetClosure” and social plan related to the Compsaiardies,
France facility pursuant to which the Company amoed its formal plan to cease all manufacturingafiens and
associated activities by December 2009. The Compgmsed with the workers council on a set of messaf
assistance aimed at minimizing the effects of thatfs closing on the Pardies workforce, includirajning,
outplacement and severance.

As a result of the Project of Closure, the Compatprded exit costs of $89 million during the yeaded
December 31, 2009, which included $60 million inpdogyee termination benefits, $17 million of contrac
termination costs and $12 million of lotiged asset impairment losses (see Note 18) torQiterges (gains), net,
the consolidated statements of operations. Thevédire of the related held and used long-livedtasse$4 million
as of December 31, 2009. In addition, the Compangnded $9 million of accelerated depreciation egpdor the
year ended December 31, 2009 and $8 million ofrenmental remediation reserves for the year el
December 31, 2009 related to the shutdown of thagamy’s Pardies, France facility. The Pardies, éedacility is
included in the Acetyl Intermediates segment.

5. Marketable Securities, at Fair Value

The Company’s captive insurance companies and gemslated trusts hold available-for-sale secgita
capitalization and funding requirements, respebtivEhe Company recorded realized gains (losse€)tier incom:
(expense), net in the consolidated statementsaftipns as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Realized gain on sale of securit g 1( 1
Realized loss on sale of securit - (10 -
Net realized gain (loss) on sale of securi 5 -

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gain, grossalined loss and fair values for
available-for-sale securities by major securityetypere as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gain Loss Value
(In $ millions)

US government debt securiti 2t z - 2¢
US corporate debt securiti 1 - - 1
Total debt securitie 27 2 - 29
Equity securitie: 55 - 3 52
Money market deposits and other securi 2 - - 2
As of December 31, 20( 84 2 (3 83

US government debt securiti 35 17 - 52
US corporate debt securiti 3 - - 3
Total debt securitie 38 17 - 55
Equity securitie: 55 - (13) 42
Money market deposits and other securi 3 - - 3
As of December 31, 20( 96 17 (13) 10C
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Fixed maturities as of December 31, 2009 by cohtedanaturity are shown below. Actual maturitiesiicbh
differ from contractual maturities because borraveay have the right to call or prepay obligatiomish or without
call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
(In $ millions)
Within one yea & g
From one to five yeat - -
From six to ten yeal - -
Greater than ten yea 26 28
Total 28 31

Proceeds received from fixed maturities that mavithin one year are expected to be reinvested into
additional securities upon such maturity.

6. Receivables, Ne

As of
December 31
2009 2008

(In $ millions)
Trade receivable— third party and affiliate 73¢ 65¢
Allowance for doubtful accoun— third party and affiliate (18) (25)
Trade receivable— third party and affiliates, n 721 631

Nor-trade receivable

Reinsurance receivabl 49 40
Income taxes receivab 64 88
Other 14¢ 154
Allowance for doubtful accoun— other - (1)
Total 262 281

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company bagigmificant concentrations of credit risk sinbe t
Company’s customer base is dispersed across mHayedt industries and geographies.

7. Inventories

As of
December 31
2009 2008

(In $ millions)
Finished good 367 43¢
Work-in-process 28 24
Raw materials and suppli 127 11¢
Total 522 577

The Company recorded charges of $0 million andréilion to reduce its inventories to the
lower-of-cost or market for the years ended Decerthe2009 and 2008, respectively.
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8. Investments in Affiliates

Equity Method

The Company’s equity investments and ownershipeasts are as follows:

European Oxo Gmbi®)

Erfei, A.LLE.®)

National Methanol Compan*Ibn Sin¢”)
Fortron Industries LLC

Korea Engineering Plastics Co., Lt

Polyplastics Co., Ltd

Una SA

InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf Kt
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst K
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack K
Sherbrooke Capital Health a

Wellness, L.P()

Total (As Adjusted, Note 3!

(1) The Company divested this investment in FebruaB72blote 4). The share of earnings (loss) for this

Segment

Acetyl Intermediate
Acetyl Intermediate
Advanced Engineer:
Materials

Advanced Engineer:
Materials

Advanced Engineer:
Materials

Advanced Engineer:
Materials

Advanced Engineer:
Materials

Other Activities
Other Activities
Other Activities

Consumer Specialtit

Ownership Share of Earnings (Loss,
Percentage Carrying Value Year Ended
as of December 31, as of December 31, December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2007
WpercentageT) (In $ millions)
- - - - - - 2
- 45 - 1 - - 6
25 25 56 46 51 11¢€ 68
50 50 74 77 (3) 4 16
50 50 15¢ 14¢ 14 12 14
45 45 17¢ 18¢ 15 19 25
50 50 2 2 - 2 -
39 39 27 28 3 4 5
32 31 142 137 15 10 18
27 27 24 22 5 4 4
10 10 4 4 (1) (1) -
663 651 99 172 151

investment is included in Earnings (loss) from apien of discontinued operations in the consolidatatemen

of operations

@ The Company accounts for its 10% ownership intereSherbrooke Capital Health and Wellness, L.Fleurthe

equity method of accounting because the Compaaplesto exercise significant influenc
() The Company divested this investment in July 200paat of the sale of PVOH (Note -

Affiliate net earnings

Compan’s share
Net earning:

Dividends and other distributiol

20

Year Ended December 31

2009 2007
As Adjusted (Note 32)
(In $ millions)
33t 633 503
99 172 15C @
78 182 13¢
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(M Amount does not include a $1 million liquidatingidiend from Clear Lake Methanol Partners for tharyendec
December 31, 200°

Cost Method

The Company'’s investments accounted for underdlsernethod of accounting are as follows:

Ownership
Percentage as o Carrying Value as of Dividend Income for the years
December 31, December 31, ended December 31,
Segment 2008 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2007
(In percentages) (In $ millions)
Kunming Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltc Consumer Specialti 30 30 14 14 10 8 7
Nantong Cellulose Fibers Co. Lt Consumer Specialti 31 31 77 77 38 32 24
Zhuhai Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltc Consumer Specialti 30 30 14 14 8 6 6
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Wiesbaden K Other Activities 8 8 6 6 1 2 1
Other 18 19 - - -
Total As Adjusted (Note 31 12¢ 13C 57 48 38

Certain investments where the Company owns gréadera 20% ownership interest are accounted foer
the cost method of accounting because the Compamyot exercise significant influence over thesdiesat The
Company determined that it cannot exercise sigmifiénfluence over these entities due to local govent
investment in and influence over these entitiesitéiitions on the Company’s involvement in the
day-to-day operations and the present inabilitthefentities to provide timely financial informatiprepared in
accordance with US GAAP.

During 2007, the Company wrote-off its remainingngillion ($1 million) cost investment in European
Pipeline Development Company B.V. (‘EPDC”) and exged €7 million ($9 million), included in Other e
(expense), net, associated with contingent liddlithat became payable due to the Company’s dedigiexit the
pipeline development project. In June 2008, thstantding contingent liabilities were resolved amel Company
recognized a gain of €2 million ($2 million), inded in Other income (expense), net, in the conatdi statements
of operations to remove the remaining accrual.

During 2007, the Company fully impaired its $5 foifi cost investment in Elemica Corporation
(“Elemica”). Elemica is a network for the globalerhical industry developed by 22 of the leading cleam
companies in the world for the benefit of the entirdustry. The impairment was included in Otheoime
(expense), net in the consolidated statementsafatipns.

9. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

As of December 31,

2009 2008
(In $ millions)
Land 62 61
Land improvement 44 44
Buildings and building improvemen 36C 35¢
Machinery and equipme 2,66¢ 2,61t
Construction in progres 792 442
Gross asset valt 3,921 3,521
Less: accumulated depreciati (1,130 (1,057
Net book value 2,79 2,47(
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Assets under capital leases amounted to $272 mégira $233 million, less accumulated amortizatibn o
$55 million and $38 million, as of December 31, 2@hd 2008, respectively. Interest costs capitdlizere
$2 million, $6 million and $9 million during the §es ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, resggct
Depreciation expense was $213 million, $255 milkord $209 million during the years ended DecemeB09,
2008 and 2007, respectively.

During 2008 and 2009, certain long-lived assetsvimpaired (Note 18).

10. Goodwill
Advanced
Engineered Consumer Industrial Acetyl
Materials Specialties  Specialties Intermediates Total
(In $ millions)
As of December 31, 20(
Goodwill 2717 264 53 27¢ 872
Accumulated impairment loss - - (6) - (6)
2717 264 47 27¢ 86€
Adjustments to preacquisition tax uncertain 9 2 (12) (30) (49)
Exchange rate chang (10) (14) (1) (13) (38)
As of December 31, 20(
Goodwill 25¢ 252 40 23t 78t
Accumulated impairment loss - - (6) - (6)
25¢ 252 34 23E 77¢
Sale of PVOF®) - - - - -
Exchange rate chang 5 5 1 8 19
As of December 31, 20(
Goodwill 263 257 35 243 79€
Accumulated impairment loss - - - - -
Total 263 257 35 243 79€

@) Fully impaired goodwill of $6 million was writtenfforelated to the sale of PVOI

Recoverability of goodwill is measured using a distted cash flow model incorporating discount rates
commensurate with the risks involved for each répgrunit which is classified as a Level 3 measwetrunder
FASB ASC Topic 820. The key assumptions used irdibeounted cash flow valuation model include disto
rates, growth rates, cash flow projections and itegthvalue rates. Discount rates, growth ratescasth flow
projections are the most sensitive and susceptitdbange as they require significant managemeiginent. If the
calculated fair value is less than the currentyilagrvalue, impairment of the reporting unit mayséxWhen the
recoverability test indicates potential impairmeahg Company, or in certain circumstances, a tharty valuation
consultant, will calculate an implied fair valuegfodwill for the reporting unit. The implied faialue of goodwill
is determined in a manner similar to how goodwiltalculated in a business combination. If the ieapfair value
of goodwill exceeds the carrying value of goodwa#kigned to the reporting unit, there is no impairtnif the
carrying value of goodwill assigned to a reportingt exceeds the implied fair value of the goodvah impairment
charge is recorded to write down the carrying vaAreimpairment loss cannot exceed the carryinge/aif
goodwill assigned to a reporting unit but may iradécertain long-lived and amortizable intangitdeeds associated
with the reporting unit may require additional inmpzent testing.
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In connection with the Company’s annual goodwilpamrment test performed during the three months
ended September 30, 2009 using June 30 balaneeGpthpany did not record an impairment loss reltded
goodwill as the estimated fair value for each ef @ompany’s reporting units exceeded the carryalgevof the
underlying assets by a substantial margin. No eventhanges in circumstances occurred duringhttee tmonths
ended December 31, 2009 that would indicate tleat#nrying amount of the assets may not be fultpverable, as
such, no additional impairment analysis was peréatmuring that period.

11.Intangible Assets, Ne!

Customer- Covenants
Trademarks Related not to
and Intangible Developed Compete
Trade name: Licenses Assets Technology _and Other Total

(In $ millions)
Gross Asset Valu

As of December 31, 20( 85 - 562 12 12 671
Acquisitions - 280 - - - 28
Exchange rate chang (3) 1 (25) - - (27)
As of December 31, 20( 82 29 537 12 12 672
Acquisitions - - - 1 - 1
Exchange rate chang 1 - 15 - - 16
As of December 31, 20( 83 29 552 13 12 68¢
Accumulated Amortizatiol

As of December 31, 20( - - (22¥¢) 9 9) (24¢)
Amortization - 3 (72) (D) @ (76)
Exchange rate chang - - 14 - - 14
As of December 31, 20( - 3 (28%) (20 (20 (30¢)
Amortization (5) 3 (67) D 1) (77
Exchange rate chang - - (10 - - (10
As of December 31, 20( (5) (6) (362) (12) (12) (395)

Net book valug 78 23 19C 2 1 294

@) Acquisition of a sole and exclusive license to ptteand patent applications related to acetic adid.license is
being amortized over 10 yea

Aggregate amortization expense for intangible asséh finite lives during the years ended Decen8ier
2009, 2008 and 2007 was $72 million, $76 milliomd &72 million, respectively. In addition, durirtgetyear ended
December 31, 2009 the Company recorded accelesatedization expense of $5 million related to tHE Plastics
trade name which was discontinued August 1, 2088.tfade name is now fully amortized.

Estimated amortization expense for the succeedieditcal years is approximately $62 million inlZ)
$57 million in 2011, $43 million in 2012, $26 mdh in 2013, and $15 million in 2014. The Compariyeslemarks
and trade names have an indefinite life. Accordingb amortization is recorded on these intangaistgets.

Management tests indefinite-lived intangible asaétizing the relief from royalty method to detema the
estimated fair value for each indefinite-lived imgéble asset which is classified as a Level 3 memsent under
FASB ASC Topic 820. The relief from royalty methestimates the Company'’s theoretical royalty savings
ownership of the intangible asset. Key assumptitsesl in this model include discount rates, royedtgs, growth
rates, sales projections and terminal value r&tesgount rates, royalty rates,
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growth rates and sales projections are the assongtnost sensitive and susceptible to change gseleire
significant management judgment. Discount rates ase similar to the rates estimated by the wetyateerage co
of capital (“WACC?") considering any differences@ompany-specific risk factors. Royalty rates atalgdshed by
management and are periodically substantiateditg-plarty valuation consultants. Operational mamaeyat,
considering industry and Compaspecific historical and projected data, develomsugin rates and sales projectic
associated with each indefinite-lived intangiblsedasTerminal value rate determination follows comnm
methodology of capturing the present value of pisigdesales estimates beyond the last projectedgh@ssuming a
constant WACC and low long-term growth rates.

In connection with the Company’s annual indefidited intangible assets impairment test performednd
the three months ended September 30, 2009 usirmg3Wubalances, the Company recorded an impairrossiolf
less than $1 million to certain indefinite-livedangible assets. The fair value of such indefifiited intangible
assets is $2 million as of December 31, 2009. Nm#svor changes in circumstances occurred durmghtiee
months ended December 31, 2009 that would inditatethe carrying amount of the assets may notle f
recoverable, as such, no additional impairmentyaigmivas performed during that period.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Compdmpotrenew or extend any intangible assets.
12. Current Other Liabilities

As of December 31

2009 2008
(In $ millions)

Salaries and benefi 10C 107
Environmental (Note 1¢€ 13 19
Restructuring (Note 1¢ 99 32
Insurance 37 34
Asset retirement obligatior 22 9
Derivatives 75 67
Current portion of benefit obligations (Note : 49 57
Sales and use tax/foreign withholding tax pay:i 15 16
Interest 20 54
Uncertain tax positions (Note 1 5 -
Other 17€ 17¢

Total 611 574

13.Noncurrent Other Liabilities

As of December 31

2009 2008
(In $ millions)

Environmental (Note 1€ 93 79
Insurance 85 85
Deferred revenu 49 55
Deferred proceeds (Note 4, Note . 84¢€ 371
Asset retirement obligatior 45 40
Derivatives 44 76
Income taxes payab 61 -
Other 83 10C

Total 1,30¢ 80¢€
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Changes in asset retirement obligations are asvsl|

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)

Balance at beginning of ye 49 47 58
Additions 14®) 6 @ -
Accretion 2 3 5
Payment: (14) (6) (6)
Divestitures - - (16) @
Purchase accounting adjustme - - 3
Revisions to cash flow estimat 154 1 2
Exchange rate chang 1 (2) 4

Balance at end of ye 67 49 47

1) Relates to a site for which management no longesiders to have an indeterminate |

(@ Relates to long-lived assets impaired (Note 18iich management no longer considers to have an
indeterminate life

() Relates to the sale of the Edmonton, Alberta, Camdaht (Note 4)

@ Primarily relates to long-lived assets impaired Nb8) based on triggering events assessed bydimpéhy in
2008 and decisions made by the Company in 2

Included in the asset retirement obligations faheaf the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 is
$10 million related to a business acquired in 200 Company has a corresponding receivable ofii®mand
$7 million included in current Other assets andaworent Other assets in the consolidated balareetsh
respectively, as of December 31, 2009.

Based on long-lived asset impairment triggeringévassessed by the Company in December 2008 and
decisions made by the Company in 2009, the Compangiuded several sites no longer have an indeterteniife.
Accordingly, the Company recorded asset retirerobhigations associated with these sites. The Compaes the
expected present value technique to measure theaiaie of the asset retirement obligations whgchlassified as a
Level 3 measurement under FASB ASC Topic 820. Kpeeted present value technique uses a set offlcash
that represent the probability-weighted averagallgfossible cash flows based on the Company’smelg. The
Company uses the following inputs to determinefétirevalue of the asset retirement obligations Hase the
Company’s experience with fulfilling obligations tifis type and the Company’s knowledge of marketda®mns:

a) labor costs; b) allocation of overhead costgrojit on labor and overhead costs; d) effecindition on
estimated costs and profits; e) risk premium farhwgy the uncertainty inherent in cash flows, othan inflation;

f) time value of money represented by the risk-frgerest rate commensurate with the timing ofakgociated cash
flows; and g) nonperformance risk relating to tladility which includes the Company’s own credgki

The Company has identified but not recognized assieément obligations related to certain of it&s#ng
operating facilities. Examples of these types digaltions include demolition, decommissioning, aisal and
restoration activities. Legal obligations existimnnection with the retirement of these assets gpmsure of the
facilities or abandonment of the existing operatiddowever, the Company currently plans on contigwiperation
at these facilities indefinitely and therefore asenable estimate of fair value cannot be deteiné¢his time. In
the event the Company considers plans to abandosase operations at these sites, an asset ratireiigation
will be reassessed at that time. If certain opegafiacilities were to close, the related assetaetént obligations
could significantly affect the Company’s resultsopkrations and cash flows.
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14.Debt

As of December 31
2009 2008
(In $ millions)

Short-term borrowings and current installmentsooig-term debt — third party and

affiliates
Current installments of lor-term debt 102 81
Shor-term borrowings, principally comprised of amounte do affiliates 14C 152
Total 242 238
Long-term debt
Senior credit facilities: Term loan facility due 20 2,78¢ 2,79¢
Term notes 7.125%, due 20 - 14
Pollution control and industrial revenue bondsgiast rates ranging from 5.7% to
6.7%, due at various dates through 2 181 181
Obligations under capital leases and other seduwra@wings due at various dates
through 205« 242 211
Other bank obligations, interest rates ranging f&b8% to 5.3%, due at various dates
through 201¢ 15z 181
Subtotal 3,361 3,381
Less: Current installments of lo-term debt 102 81
Total 3,25¢ 3,30(¢

Senior Credit Facilities

The Company’s senior credit agreement consist2 @&8® million of US dollar-denominated and
€400 million of Euro-denominated term loans due 2G18600 million revolving credit facility termiriag in 2013
and a $228 million crediinked revolving facility terminating in 2014. Bawings under the senior credit agreen
bear interest at a variable interest rate basddB@R (for US dollars) or EURIBOR (for Euros), agicable, or,
for US dollar-denominated loans under certain cirstances, a base rate, in each case plus an dbplinargin.
The applicable margin for the term loans and aapsounder the credit-linked revolving facility i¥%%, subject to
potential reductions as defined in the senior traglieement. As of December 31, 2009, the apphcalalrgin was
1.75%. The term loans under the senior credit agee¢ are subject to amortization at 1% of theahprincipal
amount per annum, payable quarterly. The remaiprirggipal amount of the term loans is due on Aprie014.

As of December 31, 2009, there were no outstanlémgpwings or letters of credit issued under the
revolving credit facility. As of December 31, 20@Bere were $88 million of letters of credit issuettler the credit-
linked revolving facility and $140 million remainedailable for borrowing.

On June 30, 2009, the Company entered into an amemtcto the senior credit agreement. The amendment
reduced the amount available under the revolvieditfacility from $650 million to $600 million anicicreased the
first lien senior secured leverage ratio covenhat is applicable when any amount is outstandirdguthe
revolving credit portion of the senior credit agremt at set forth below. Prior to giving
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effect to the amendment, the maximum first lien@esecured leverage ratio was 3.90 to 1.00. Asnaled, the
maximum senior secured leverage ratio for the falhg trailing four-quarter periods is as follows:

First Lien Senior
Secured Leverage Ratic

December 31, 200 5.251t0 1.0
March 31, 201( 4.75t01.0
June 30, 201 4.25t01.0
September 30, 201 4.25t01.0
December 31, 2010 and therea 3.90to 1.0

As a condition to borrowing funds or requesting thtters of credit be issued under that facilibyg
Companys first lien senior secured leverage ratio (asutated as of the last day of the most recent figoatter fo
which financial statements have been delivered wtiderevolving facility) cannot exceed a certdireshold as
specified above. Further, the Company’s first Benior secured leverage ratio must be maintained latlow that
threshold while any amounts are outstanding urtderevolving credit facility. The first lien senisecured leverag
ratio is calculated as the ratio of consolidatest fien senior secured debt to earnings befoarést, taxes,
depreciation and amortization, subject to adjustridantified in the credit agreement.

Based on the estimated first lien senior secureerdgye ratio for the trailing four quarters at Daber 31,
2009, the Company’s borrowing capacity under tvelkéng credit facility is currently $600 milliorAs of
December 31, 2009, the Company estimates itsligrssenior secured leverage ratio to be 3.39Q0 fwhich
would be 4.11 to 1.00 were the revolving crediilfgcfully drawn). The maximum first lien senioesured leverag
ratio under the revolving credit facility for supkriod is 5.25 to 1.00.

The Company'’s senior credit agreement also contamsmber of restrictions on certain of its sulzsiés,
including, but not limited to, restrictions on thability to incur indebtedness; grant liens oneéssmerge,
consolidate, or sell assets; pay dividends or notliker restricted payments; make investments; prepayodify
certain indebtedness; engage in transactions \fitlats; enter into sale-leaseback transactionsestain hedge
transactions; or engage in other businesses. Tersgedit agreement also contains a number ahadtive
covenants and events of default, including a cde$ault to other debt of certain of the Compamsubsidiaries in @
aggregate amount equal to more than $40 milliontaedccurrence of a change of control. Failurectmply with
these covenants, or the occurrence of any othert @felefault, could result in acceleration of thans and other
financial obligations under the Company’s seni@diragreement.

The senior credit agreement is guaranteed by Cetafeldings LLC, a subsidiary of Celanese Corporati
and certain domestic subsidiaries of the Compasiybsidiary, Celanese US Holdings LLC (“Celanese)U&”
Delaware limited liability company, and is secul®da lien on substantially all assets of CelaneSeabid such
guarantors, subject to certain agreed exceptiansupnt to the Guarantee and Collateral Agreendeted as of
April 2, 2007, by and among Celanese Holdings LC€lanese US, certain subsidiaries of Celanese dS an
Deutsche Bank AG, New York Branch, as Administrathgent and as Collateral Agent.

The Company is in compliance with all of the cov@saelated to its debt agreements as of Deceniher 3
20009.

Debt Refinancing

In April 2007, the Company, through certain ofdtgsidiaries, entered into a new senior crediteagesnt.
Proceeds from the new senior credit agreementthiegevith available cash, were used to retire them@any’s
$2,454 million amended and restated (January 288%pr credit facilities, which consisted of

27




Table of Contents

$1,626 million in term loans due 2011, a $600 mwillrevolving credit facility terminating in 2009 dva

$228 million credit-linked revolving facility termating in 2009, and to retire all of the Compar8/825% senior
subordinated notes due 2014 and 10.375% seniordinhted notes due 2014 (the “Senior Subordinatete )
and 10% senior discount notes due 2014 and 10.5érsdiscount notes due 2014 (the “Senior DisciNmies”) as
discussed below.

Substantially all of the Senior Discount Notes &eahior Subordinated Notes were tendered in the firs
quarter of 2007. The remaining outstanding Senisc@unt Notes and Senior Subordinated Notes noereq in
conjunction with the Tender Offers were redeemethkeyCompany in May 2007 through optional redenmptio
allowed in the indentures.

As a result of the refinancing, the Company inatipeemiums paid on early redemption of debt of
$207 million, accelerated amortization of premiwemsl deferred financing costs of $33 million andeottefinancin
expenses of $16 million.

In connection with the refinancing, the Companyorded deferred financing costs of $39 million retato
the senior credit agreement, which are includetbimcurrent Other assets on the consolidated bakdrests and a
being amortized over the term of the new seniaditegreement. The deferred financing costs con$i$23 millior
of costs incurred to acquire the new senior cragiieement and $16 million of debt issue costsiegigrior to the
refinancing.

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and] #6®Company recorded amortization of deferred
financing costs, which is classified in Interespense, in the consolidated statements of operatib®s million,
$7 million, and $8 million, respectively. As of Deraber 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, the Compady
$27 million and $32 million of net deferred finangicosts.

Principal payments scheduled to be made on the @oygpdebt, including short-term borrowings, are as

follows:
(In $ millions)
2010 242
2011 89
2012 65
2013 73
2014 2,69¢
Thereaftel 332
Total 3,501

15. Benefit Obligations

Pension obligationsPension obligations are established for benefiy@ple in the form of retirement,
disability and surviving dependent pensions. Thamitments result from participation in defined aimition and
defined benefit plans, primarily in the US. Bergefite dependent on years of service and the engifoye
compensation. Supplemental retirement benefitsigeoMto certain employees are nonqualified for B¥Spurposes
Separate trusts have been established for somesalifiref plans. Pension costs under the Comparfisement
plans are actuarially determined.

The Company sponsors defined benefit pension ftaNsrth America, Europe and Asia. Independentt$
or insurance companies administer the majoritjheéé plans.

The Company sponsors various defined contributlangin North America, Europe and Asia covering
certain employees. Employees may contribute taetpéens and the Company will match these contidiostin
varying amounts. The Company’s matching contributmthe defined contribution plans are
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based on specified percentages of employee cotitnitsuand aggregated $11 million, $13 million aid@ $nillion
for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and, 286pectively.

The Company participates in multiemployer definedddit pension plans in Europe covering certain
employees. The Company’s contributions to the remdployer defined benefit pension plans are basespecified
percentages of employee contributions and aggrégenillion, $7 million and $7 million, for the ges ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Other postretirement obligationsCertain retired employees receive postretiremeatthcare and life
insurance benefits under plans sponsored by thep@oyn which has the right to modify or terminatesth plans at
any time. The cost for coverage is shared betweeCbmpany and the retiree. The cost of providéatigee health
care and life insurance benefits is actuariallyedained and accrued over the service period ohttige employee
group. The Company'’s policy is to fund benefitckéms and premiums are paid. The US plan was dltsaew
participants effective January 1, 2006.

29




Table of Contents

The following tables set forth the benefit obligais, the fair value of the plan assets and theddrstiatus ¢
the Company’s pension and postretirement benefitgland the amounts recognized in the Comparpnsolidate
financial statements:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
as of December 31 as of December 31
2009 2008 2009 2008

(In $ millions)
Change in projected benefit obligati

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of per 3,07: 3,26¢ 27E 30¢€
Service cos 29 31 1 2
Interest cos 19¢ 19t 17 17
Participant contribution - - 25 22
Plan amendmen 5 - - 2
Actuarial (gain) los(® 23C (107) 12 (14)
Special termination benefi - - - -
Divestitures 3) - - -
Settlement: 1) 19 - -
Benefits paic (222 (222) (59 (58
Federal subsidy on Medicare Par - - 6 6
Curtailments 2 (D) - 2
Foreign currency exchange rate char 40 (68) 4 (6)
Other - - - -
Projected benefit obligation at end of per 3,34z 3,07 281 27E
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of pe 2,17¢ 2,87t - -
Actual return on plan asse 30¢€ (44¢) - -
Employer contribution 44 48 34 35
Participant contribution - - 25 23
Divestitures 2 - - -
Settlement: 3) (22 - -
Benefits paic (222) (222) (59 (58
Foreign currency exchange rate char 36 (62) - -
Other - - - -
Fair value of plan assets at end of pe 2,32¢ 2,17(C - -
Funded status and net amounts recogr
Plan assets less than benefit obliga (1,019 (903) (281) (275)
Unrecognized prior service cc 6 1 1 1
Unrecognized actuarial (gain) lo 63C 502 (63) (80)
Net amount recognized in the consolidated balaheets (377 (400 (343 (359
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balancetsheasist o
Noncurrent Other asse 5 8 - -
Current Other liabilitie: (22 (22 27) (39)
Pension obligation (996 (889 (254 (240
Accrued benefit liability (1,019 (903%) (281) (275)
Net actuarial (gain) los 63C 502 (63) (80)
Prior service (benefit) co 6 1 1 1
Other comprehensive (income) 12 63€ 502 (62) (79)
Net amount recognized in the consolidated balaheets (379) (400 (349 (359
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@) Primarily relates to change in discount ra

@ Amount shown net of tax of $54 million and $1 naitlias of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectivetiie
consolidated statements of shareholders’ equitycangprehensive income (loss). See Note 17 fordleead tax
associated with the pension and postretirementfiv@ddigations.

The percentage of US and international projectegficobligation at the end of the period is asdiek:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
as of December 31 as of December 31
2009 2008 2009 2008
(In percentages)
US plans 85% 86% 90% 91%
International plan 15% 14% 10% 9%
Total 10% 10(% 10(% 10(%

The percentage of US and international fair valiuglan assets at the end of the period is as faliow

Pension Benefits
as of December 31

2009 2008

(In percentages)
US plans 83% 84%
International plan 17% 16%
Total 10(% 10(%

A summary of pension plans with projected bendfiigations in excess of plan assets is shown below:

As of December 31

2009 2008

(In $ millions)
Projected benefit obligatic 3,28( 2,92¢
Fair value of plan asse 2,262 2,01«

Included in the above table are pension plans agtdumulated benefit obligations in excess of pksets a
detailed below:

As of December 31,

2009 2008

(In $ millions)
Accumulated benefit obligatic 3,16¢ 2,791
Fair value of plan asse 2,24¢ 1,98t

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defirEhefit pension plans was $3,218 million and
$2,967 million as of December 31, 2009 and 200&heetively.
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The following table sets forth the Company’s netiqudic pension cost:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)

Service cos 29 31 38 1 1 2
Interest cos 19z 19t 187 17 17 19
Expected return on plan ass (207) (21¢) (21€) - - -
Amortization of prior service co: - - - - - -
Recognized actuarial (gain) lo 1 1 1 5) 4 2
Curtailment (gain) los (@D} 2 (@)} - - (D]
Settlement (gain) los - 3 (12 - - -
Special termination benefi 2 - - - - -
Net periodic benefit cos 1i 1( ) % 14 1§

Amortization of the actuarial (gain) loss into petiodic cost in 2010 is expected to be $8 milkow
$(4) million for pension benefits and postretirefmneenefits, respectively.

Included in the pension obligations above are aatitiabilities relating to supplemental retiremplans for
certain US employees amounting to $235 million $284 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,aetsgely.
Pension expense relating to these plans includedtiperiodic benefit cost totaled $15 million, $hblion and
$14 million for the years ended December 31, 2@098 and 2007, respectively. To fund these obbgati
nonqualified trusts were established which holdketable securities valued at $82 million and $9lflioni as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. In aadith holding marketable securities, the nonquadifrusts hold
investments in insurance contracts of $66 milliad &7 million as of December 31, 2009 and 200&eetively,
which are included in noncurrent Other assetsénctinsolidated balance sheets.

Valuation

The Company uses the corridor approach in the tialuaf its defined benefit plans and other
postretirement benefits. The corridor approachrded#t actuarial gains and losses resulting fromeavees between
actual results and economic estimates or actuasgalmptions. For defined benefit pension planseti@recognize
gains and losses are amortized when the net gathbases exceed 10% of the greater of the maekatted value ¢
plan assets or the projected benefit obligatiah@beginning of the year. For other postretirentbemiefits,
amortization occurs when the net gains and lossssed 10% of the accumulated postretirement beolatiigation
at the beginning of the year. The amount in exoé#se corridor is amortized over the average reingiservice
period to retirement date for active plan partioigeor, for retired participants, the average ramailife
expectancy.
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The following table set forth the principal weigtitaverage assumptions used to determine benefit

obligation:
Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
as of December 31 as of December 31
2009 2008 2009 2008

(In percentages)
Discount rate obligation

US plans 5.9C 6.5C 5.5C 6.4(C
International plan 5.41 5.84 5.4¢ 6.11
Combinec 5.8 6.41 5.5C 6.37
Rate of compensation incree
US plans 4.0C 4.0C N/A N/A
International plan 2.94 3.24 N/A N/A
Combinec 3.84 3.9C N/A N/A

The following table set forth the principal weigtitaverage assumptions used to determine benefit cos

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
Year Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

(In percentages)
Discount rate obligation

US plans 6.5C 6.3C 5.8¢ 6.4C 6.0C 5.8¢
International plan 5.84 5.4z2 4.7C 6.11 5.31 4.8(
Combinec 6.41 6.1¢€ 5.8¢ 6.37 5.9: 5.7¢
Expected return on plan ass
US plans 8.5C 8.5C 8.5C N/A N/A N/A
International plan 5.2¢ 5.6¢ 6.5¢ N/A N/A N/A
Combinec 7.94 8.0t 8.2( N/A N/A N/A
Rate of compensation incree
US plans 4.0C 4.0C 4.0C N/A N/A N/A
International plan 3.24 3.1t 3.1¢ N/A N/A N/A
Combinec 3.9C 3.6¢€ 3.7¢ N/A N/A N/A

The expected rate of return is assessed annuallisdased on long-term relationships among maseta
classes and the level of incremental returns thatoe earned by the successful implementationfigfreint active
investment management strategies. Equity retumbased on estimates of long-term inflation rael rate of
return, 10-year Treasury bond premium over casheguidty risk premium. Fixed income returns are Haze
maturity, long-term inflation, real rate of retueind credit spreads. The US qualified defined bep&ins’ actual
return on assets for the year ended December 89, \28s 18% versus an expected long-term rate ef esgirn
assumption of 8.5%.

In the US, the rate used to discount pension amer gtostretirement benefit plan liabilities wasdzhen a
yield curve developed from market data of over 8@-grade non-callable bonds at December 31, 200%. yiiaid
curve has discount rates that vary based on tratidarof the obligations. The estimated future démhs for the
pension and other benefit obligations were mattbeade corresponding rates on the yield curve tivdea weighte
average discount rate.

The Company determines its discount rates in thhe Eone using the iBoxx Euro Corporate AA Bond
indices with appropriate adjustments for the doratf the plan obligations. In other international
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locations, the Company determines its discounsragesed on the yields of high quality governmemidsovith a
duration appropriate to the duration of the plaligattions.

On January 1, 2009, the Company’s health caretasd assumption for US postretirement medical’plan
net periodic benefit cost was 9% for the first ygaclining 0.5% per year to an ultimate rate of &f.January 1,
2008, the Company'’s health care cost trend assamfiir US postretirement medical plan’s net pedduknefit
cost was 9% for the first two years declining 0.pét year to an ultimate rate of 5%. On Januan0Qy2the health
care cost trend rate was 8.5% per year decliningpéfdyear to an ultimate rate of 5%.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a signifeffect on the amounts reported for the hezlth
plans. A one-percentage-point increase or deciagdbe assumed health care cost trend rate woyddin
postretirement obligations by $4 million and $(3)lion, respectively. The effect of a one percerdrease or
decrease in the assumed health care cost trendoatd have a less than $1 million impact on senadnd interest
cost.

Plan Assets

The investment objective for the plans are to eawer moving twenty-year periods, the long-termestpd
rate of return, net of investment fees and tranmsmaciosts, to satisfy the benefit obligations @ pian, while at the
same time maintaining sufficient liquidity to pagrefit obligations and proper expenses, and mgettner cash
needs, in the short- to medium-term.

The following tables set forth the weighted avertgget asset allocations for the Comparpénsion plan:

Asset Category— US 2010
US equity securitie 26%
Global equity 20%
High yield fixed income/othe 4%
Liability hedging bond: 50%
Total 10(%
Asset Category— International 2010
Equity securitie: 21%
Debt securitie! 73%
Real estate and oth 6%
Total 10%

The equity and debt securities objectives are ¢wige diversified exposure across the US and Glebaity
markets and to manage the plan’s risks and rethrosigh the use of multiple managers and strategtes fixed
income portfolio objectives are to hedge a portbthe interest rate risks associated with the’plamding target
liabilities. The goal of the liability hedging borglto reduce surplus volatility and provide a ldity reserve for
paying off benefits. The strategy is designed thuce liability-related interest rate risk by inviagtin bonds that
match the duration and credit quality of the prtgdmlan liabilities. Derivatives based strategies/ be used to
improve the effectiveness of the hedges. Otherstgbénvestments include investments in real estateinsurance
contracts that follow several different strategies.

As discussed in Note 3, the Company adopted cqutawvisions of FASB ASC Topic 715-20-50 on
January 1, 2009. FASB ASC Topic 715-20-50 requérdsanced disclosures about the plan assets of patyrs
defined benefit pension and other postretiremearpintended to provide financial statement
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users with a greater understanding of the inputsvatuation techniques used to measure the faireval plan asse
and the effect of fair value measurements usingifsignt unobservable inputs on changes in plartagsr the
period using the framework established under FASECA opic 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures
FASB ASC Topic 820 establishes a fair value hidrarthat prioritizes the inputs used to measureviaine. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusjedted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities
(Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority tohservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). This hibya
requires entities to maximize the use of observadgats and minimize the use of unobservable ingtitsfinancial
instrument uses inputs that fall in different levef the hierarchy, the instrument will be categedi based upon the
lowest level of input that is significant to therf@alue calculation. The three levels of inputediso measure fair
value are as follows:

Level 1 — unadjusted quoted prices for identicakss or liabilities in active markets accessiblehsy
Company

Level 2 — inputs that are observable in the mailketother than those inputs classified as Level 1
Level 3 — inputs that are unobservable in the ntpi&ee and significant to the valuation

The Company'’s defined benefit plan assets are me@st fair value on a recurring basis and inclinge
following items:

Cash and Cash Equivalentstoreign and domestic currencies as well as $éort securities are valued at
cost plus accrued interest, which approximatesviine.

Common/Collective TrustsComposed of various funds whose diversified pticfis comprised of foreign
and domestic equities, fixed income securities, dratt term investments. Investments are valudideatet asset
value of units held by the plan at year-end.

Corporate stock and government and corporate deWdailued at the closing price reported on the &ctiv
market in which the individual securities are trdd&utomated quotes are provided by multiple pgcservices and
validated by the plan custodian. These securitiedraded on exchanges as well as in the overateter market.

Registered Investment Companie€omposed of various mutual funds and other imrest companies
whose diversified portfolio is comprised of foreignd domestic equities, fixed income securitied, ghvort term
investments. Investments are valued at the net eske of units held by the plan at year-end.

Mortgage Backed SecuritiesFair value is estimated based on valuations nbteirom third-party pricing
services for identical or comparable assets. Mgeddacked Securities are traded in the over thateou
broker/dealer market.

Derivatives: Derivative financial instruments are valued ia tharket using discounted cash flow
techniques. These techniques incorporate LevetllLamel 2 inputs such as interest rates and foreigrency
exchange rates. These market inputs are utilizéakinliscounted cash flow calculation considerhmginstrument’s
term, notional amount, discount rate and credit I8gnificant inputs to the derivative valuatiar fnterest rate
swaps, foreign currency forwards and swaps, andrpare observable in the active markets andlassitied as
Level 2 in the hierarchy.

Insurance contracts: Valued at contributions made, plus earnings, pescipant withdrawals and
administrative expenses, which approximates fdireza
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The following table sets forth the fair values loé tCompany’s pension plans assets as of December 31

2009:
Fair Value Measurement Using
Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(In $ millions)

Assets
Cash & cash equivalen z - - z
Collateralized mortgage obligatio - 16 - 16
Common/collective trust - 21C 18 22¢
Corporate dek - 831 - 831
Corporate stoc-common & preferre: 522 - - 522
Derivatives 14 244 - 25¢
Government dek

Treasuries, other de 88 212 - 30C

Mortgage backed securiti - 53 - 53
Real estat - 7 - 7
Registered investment compan - 29¢ - 29¢
Shor-term investment - 65 - 65
Other 3 - - 3
Insurance contrac - 28 - 28

Total asset 62¢ 1,96¢ 19 2,612
Liabilities
Derivatives (15 (26€) - (283

Total liabilities (15) (268) - (283)
Total net assel 614 1,69¢ 19 2,32¢

The Company’s Level 3 investment in common/coliectrusts was valued using significant unobservable
inputs. Inputs to this valuation include charasties and quantitative data relating to the agse¢stment cost,
position size, liquidity, current financial conditi of the company and other relevant market ddta.fdllowing
table sets forth fair value measurements usingfggnt unobservable inputs:

Common/Collective Trust
(In $ millions)

Balance, beginning of peric yl
Unrealized gains (losse 10
Purchases, sales, issuances and settlemen 2

Balance, end of peric 1!

The financial objectives of the qualified pensidans are established in conjunction with a compmneive
review of each plan’s liability structure. The Caanp’s asset allocation policy is based on detakskt/liability
analyses. In developing investment policy and faiangoals, consideration is given to each plasidgraphics,
the returns and risks associated with alternativestment strategies and the current and projeetgld, expense a
funding ratios of each plan. Investment policiestralso comply with local statutory requirementslatermined by
each country. A formal asset/liability study of Baidan is undertaken every 3 to 5 years or wheninge has been
a material change in plan demographics, benefitstre or funding status and investment market. Chmpany he
adopted a long-term investment horizon such thatigk and duration of investment losses are weigiyainst the
long-term potential for
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appreciation of assets. Although there cannot nepbete assurance that these objectives will bézeshlit is
believed that the likelihood for their realizatimreasonably high, based upon the asset allocatiosen and the
historical and expected performance of the asastek utilized by the plans. The intent is for #wents to be
broadly diversified across asset classes, invegtstgles, market sectors, investment managers |ajeae and
emerging markets and securities in order to modgaitfolio volatility and risk. Investments may ineseparate
accounts, commingled trusts, mutual funds and gibeted asset portfolios provided they all confaonfiduciary
standards.

External investment managers are hired to managg@eassets. Investment consultants assist wéth th
screening process for each new manager hired. iBgdong-term, the investment portfolio is expedizéarn
returns that exceed a composite of market inditasare weighted to match each plan’s target afleeftion. The
portfolio return should also (over the long-termgetor exceed the return used for actuarial calonlain order to
meet the future needs of each plan.

Employer contributions for pension benefits andtgtsement benefits are preliminarily estimated¢o
$46 million and $27 million, respectively, in 20Ihe table below reflects pension benefits expettdit paid
from the plan or from the Company’s assets. Thérptiement benefits represent the Company’s shiattee
benefit cost.

Postretirement

Benefit

Pension Expectec

Benefit Federal

Payments(®) Payments Subsidy

(In $ millions)

2010 224 61 7
2011 22z 63 7
2012 221 64 7
2013 227 65 8
2014 224 66 3
2015-2019 1,18 332 13

1) Payments are expected to be made primarily from gésets

Other Obligations
The following table represents additional benddibilities and other similar obligations:

As of December 31,

2009 2008
(In $ millions)
Long-term disability 3( 3
Other 8 5
Total 38 38
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16. Environmental
General

The Company is subject to environmental laws agdlegions worldwide which impose limitations on the
discharge of pollutants into the air and water estéblish standards for the treatment, storagelespdsal of solid
and hazardous wastes. The Company believes tkahisubstantial compliance with all applicableieonmental
laws and regulations. The Company is also subjetained environmental obligations specifiedanious
contractual agreements arising from the divestitfirgertain businesses by the Company or one pfédecessor
companies.

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2 Company’s expenditures, including
expenditures for legal compliance, internal envinental initiatives and remediation of active, onphdivested and
US Superfund sites (as defined below) were $78anili$78 million, and $83 million, respectively. @iCompany’s
capital project-related environmental expenditdoeshe years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and \26¢e
$22 million, $13 million, and $14 million, respeely. Environmental reserves for remediation matteere
$106 million and $98 million as of December 31, 2@Md 2008, respectively, which represents the Goiyip best
estimate of its liability.

Remediation

Due to its industrial history and through retaimedtractual and legal obligations, the Companythas
obligation to remediate specific areas on its oitegssas well as on divested, orphan or US Supersited. In
addition, as part of the demerger agreement bettfee@ompany and Hoechst, a specified portion @f th
responsibility for environmental liabilities fromraumber of Hoechst divestitures was transferretiédCompany.
The Company provides for such obligations whenetrent of loss is probable and reasonably estimable.

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and g@®total remediation efforts charged to Cost of
sales in the consolidated statements of operatiense $9 million, $3 million and $4 million, respeetly. The
Company believes that environmental remediatiotsoedl not have a material adverse effect on tharicial
position of the Company, but may have a materiakesk effect on the results of operations or clstsfin any
given accounting period.

The Company did not record any insurance recovegiased to these matters for the reported peldods
there are no receivables for insurance recoveses Becember 31, 2009. As of December 31, 2002808, there
were receivables of $9 million and $9 million, respively, from the former owner APL, which was atqd in 200°
(see Note 4).

German InfraServs

On January 1, 1997, coinciding with a reorganizatibthe Hoechst businesses in Germany, real estate
service companies (“InfraServs”) were created to olivectly the land and property and to providdéoas technical
and administrative services at each of the manuifiact locations. The Company has manufacturing atpmrs at
the InfraServ location in Frankfurt am Main-Hoegl@ermany and holds interests in the companieshadimn and
operate the former Hoechst sites in Gendorf, Knaippaad Wiesbaden.

InfraServs are liable for any residual contaminatimd other pollution because they own the reakesin
which the individual facilities operate. In additidcHoechst, and its legal successors, as the refpp@party under
German public law, is liable to third parties fdirenvironmental damage that
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occurred while it was still the owner of the plaatsl real estate. The contribution agreementseshtato in 1997
between Hoechst and the respective operating caegars part of the divestiture of these compampiesjide that
the operating companies will indemnify Hoechst, aadegal successors, against environmental ltadsiresulting
from the transferred businesses. Additionally,ltifeaServs have agreed to indemnify Hoechst, antkgal
successors, against any environmental liabilityiagi out of or in connection with environmentallptibn of any
site. Likewise, in certain circumstances the Conypaould be responsible for the elimination of resid
contamination on a few sites that were not transéeto InfraServ companies, in which case Hoeelmst, its legal
successors, must reimburse the Company for twdsttaf any costs so incurred.

The InfraServ partnership agreements provide #sabetween the partners, each partner is resperisibl
any contamination caused predominantly by sucmparfAny liability, which cannot be attributed to lnfraServ
partner and for which no third party is responsideequired to be borne by the InfraServ partmnierdn view of
this potential obligation to eliminate residual tamination, the InfraServs, primarily relating guéy and cost
affiliates which are not consolidated by the Comypdrave reserves of $94 million and $84 millioroés
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

If an InfraServ partner defaults on its respectindemnification obligations to eliminate residual
contamination, the owners of the remaining paréitign in the InfraServ companies have agreed td futh
liabilities, subject to a number of limitations. Tiee extent that any liabilities are not satisfigdeither the
InfraServs or their owners, these liabilities ard¢ borne by the Company in accordance with theedger
agreement. However, Hoechst, and its legal suctessl reimburse the Company for twbirds of any such cost
Likewise, in certain circumstances the Company @dal responsible for the elimination of residuaitamination
on several sites that were not transferred to 8#ra companies, in which case Hoechst, and it &gaessors,
must also reimburse the Company for tthords of any costs so incurred. The German InfreSare owned partial
by the Company, as noted below, and the remainveoship is held by various other companies. Thegany’s
ownership interest and environmental liability papiation percentages for such liabilities whiclmeat be attribute
to an InfraServ partner were as follows as of Ddmem31, 2009:

Company Ownership % Liability %
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf K 39% 10%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack K 27% 22%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst K 32% 40%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Wiesbaden K 8% 0%
InfraServ Verwaltungs Gmb| 10C% 0%

US Superfund Sites

In the US, the Company may be subject to substaiéiens brought by US federal or state regulatory
agencies or private individuals pursuant to stayuawthority or common law. In particular, the Caang has a
potential liability under the US Federal Comprelem&nvironmental Response, Compensation and litialditt of
1980, as amended, and related state laws (cobdytigferred to as “Superfund”) for investigatiamdecleanup costs
at approximately 50 sites. At most of these sitesperous companies, including certain companiegpcsing the
Company, or one of its predecessor companies, e notified that the Environmental Protection Agg state
governing bodies or private individuals considetztsaompanies to be potentially responsible pa(tleRP”) under
Superfund or related laws. The proceedings reldtirtgese sites are in various stages. The clepragess has not
been completed at most sites and the status @fisheance coverage for most of these proceedingsdsrtain.
Consequently, the Company cannot accurately deterits ultimate liability for investigation or cleap costs at
these sites.
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As events progress at each site for which it has lImamed a PRP, the Company accrues, as appropriate
liability for site cleanup. Such liabilities incledall costs that are probable and can be reasorabigated. In
establishing these liabilities, the Company consids shipment of waste to a site, its percentddetal waste
shipped to the site, the types of wastes involtkeg conclusions of any studies, the magnitude piramedial
actions that may be necessary and the number abdityi of other PRPs. Often the Company will jouith other
PRPs to sign joint defense agreements that wilesetmong PRPs, each party’s percentage allocafionsts at the
site. Although the ultimate liability may differdm the estimate, the Company routinely reviewdidi®lities and
revises the estimate, as appropriate, based andbecurrent information available. As of Decem®gy 2009 and
2008, the Company had provisions totaling $10 orilland $11 million, respectively, for US Superfisites and
utilized $1 million, $2 million and $1 million ohese reserves during the years ended Decembe®3d, 2008 and
2007, respectively. Additional provisions and atusnts recorded during the years ended Decemb&089, 200t
and 2007 approximately offset these expenditures.

Hoechst Liabilities

In connection with the Hoechst demerger, the Companeed to indemnify Hoechst, and its legal
successors, for the first €250 million of futurenediation liabilities for environmental damagesiag from 19
specified divested Hoechst entities. As of Decenie2009 and 2008, reserves of $32 million and&fifon,
respectively, for these matters are included ammgonent of the total environmental reserves. ABexfember 31,
2009 and 2008, the Company, has made total cumelptiyments of $51 million and $48 million, respesy. If
such future liabilities exceed €250 million, Hoeglad its legal successors, will bear such exapgs an
additional €500 million. Thereafter, the Companyl Wear one-third and Hoechst, and its legal susmes will bear
two-thirds of any further environmental remediati@bilities. Where the Company is unable to readdy
determine the probability of loss or estimate slosls under this indemnification, the Company has@cognized
any liabilities relative to this indemnification.

17.Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock

The Company has $240 million aggregate liquidagimference of outstanding 4.25% convertible pedetu
preferred stock (“Preferred Stock”). Holders of Breferred Stock are entitled to receive, whemrakif, declared
by the Company’s Board of Directors, out of funelgdlly available, cash dividends at the rate 05%2er annum
of liquidation preference, payable quarterly ireans, commencing on May 1, 2005. Dividends on tieéefred
Stock are cumulative from the date of initial issc@ Accumulated but unpaid dividends accumulatanannual
rate of 4.25%. The Preferred Stock is convertiaitehe option of the holder, at any time into apprately
1.26 shares of Series A common stock, subjectjtssadents, per $25.00 liquidation preference ofd?red Stock
and upon conversion will be recorded in the codstdéid statements of shareholders’ equity and cdmpsive
income (loss). On February 1, 2010, the Companypanced its intention to redeem its Preferred S{bltke 31).

During 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company declarddaid $10 million of cash dividends in each period
on its Preferred Stock.
Dividends

The Company’s Board of Directors follows a polidydeclaring, subject to legally available funds, a
quarterly cash dividend on each share of the Cogip&@eries A common stock at an annual rate ofpelr share
unless the Company’s Board of Directors, in itegikcretion, determines otherwise. Further, such
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dividends payable to holders of the Company’s Sekieommon stock cannot be declared or paid noacgrfunds
be set aside for the payment thereof, unless timep@ny has paid or set aside funds for the paynfeadt o
accumulated and unpaid dividends with respectdcttares of the Company’s Preferred Stock, asitdedcabove.
Additionally, the amount available to pay cash diénds is restricted by the Company’s senior cigliéement.

During 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company declarddaid cash dividends of $23 million, $24 milliomd
$25 million, respectively, to holders of its Serlesommon stock.

Treasury Stock

In conjunction with the April 2007 debt refinanciigote 14), the Company, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary Celanese International Holdings Luxemgdua.r.l. (“CIH"), formerly Celanese Caylux Hatdjs
Luxembourg S.C.A., repurchased 2,021,775 sharis ofitstanding Series A common stock in a modifiedtch
Auction” tender offer from public shareholders, aiexpired on April 3, 2007, at a purchase pric83.50 per
share. The total price paid for these shares wasi#ion. The Company also separately purchadedugh its
wholly-owned subsidiary CIH, 329,011 shares of@wnpany’s Series A common stock at $30.50 per dhame
the investment funds associated with The Blacks@reip L.P. The total price paid for these sharas w
$10 million.

In June 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors auitled the repurchase of up to $330 million of its
Series A common stock. During 2007, the Companynamased 8,487,700 shares of its Series A comnoak sit
an average purchase price of $38.88 per sharetétaleof $330 million pursuant to this authorizaiti The Compar
completed repurchasing shares related to this @atttion during July 2007.

In February 2008, the Company’s Board of Directarthorized the repurchase of up to $400 milliothef
Company’s Series A common stock. This authorizatvas increased to $500 million in October 2008. The
authorization gives management discretion in deténg the conditions under which shares may bensmased.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Coynourchased 9,763,200 shares of its Series A
common stock at an average purchase price of $3®68hare for a total of $378 million pursuanttis
authorization.

These purchases reduced the number of sharesralitgjaand the repurchased shares may be used by the
Company for compensation programs utilizing the @any’s stock and other corporate purposes. The @oynp
accounts for treasury stock using the cost method.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss),

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss),wigich is displayed in the consolidated statemehts
shareholders’ equity, represents net earnings)(fdas the results of certain shareholders’ eqeiiignges not
reflected in the consolidated statements of opmmatiSuch items include unrealized gain (loss) arkatable
securities, foreign currency translation, certangion and postretirement benefit obligations améalized gain
(loss) on interest rate swaps.
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The components of Accumulated other comprehensis@me (loss), net are as follows:

Accumulated

Unrealized Unrealized Other
Gain (Loss) or Foreign Gain (Loss! Pension and  Comprehensive

Marketable Currency on Interest  Postretirement Income

Securities Translation  Rate Swap: Benefits (Loss), Net

As Adjusted (Note 31)
(In $ millions)

Balance as of December 31, 2( 9 17 4 - 30
Curren-period chang: 17 70 (47) 124 17C
Tax benefit (expenst - - - (4) (4)

Balance as of December 31, 2( 26 87 (37 12C 19¢€
Curren-period chang: (23 @ (130 (79) (549 (781)
Tax benefit (expenst - - - 5 5

Balance as of December 31, 2( 3 (43 (11€) (429 (580)
Curren-period chang: (5) 10 23 (150 (122
Tax benefit (expenst 2 (5) (8) 53 42

Balance as of December 31, 2( - (39) (107) (521 (660)

@ Includes a net reclassification adjustment of (@2)on to the consolidated statements of opersti

18. Other (Charges) Gains, Ne’

The components of Other (charges) gains, net didlaw/s:
Year Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)

Employee termination benefi (10%) (29 (39

Plant/office closure a7 @) (11)

Deferred compensation triggered by Exit Event (N2 - - (74)

Plumbing action: 10 - 4

Insurance recoveries associated with Clear Lakead é@Note 30 6 38 40

Resolution of commercial disputes with a ven - - 31

Asset impairment (14) (11%5) 9

Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocation (Note (16) 12 (5)

Sorbates antitrust actions (Note . - 8 -

Other - 1 (2)
Total (13€) (10§) (58)

2009

During the first quarter of 2009, the Company beegfiorts to align production capacity and stafflagels
with the Company’s view of an economic environmanprolonged lower demand. For the year ended
December 31, 2009, Other charges included empli@yegnation benefits of $40 million related to tieisdeavor.
As a result of the shutdown of the vinyl acetatenoroer (“VAM”) production unit in Cangrejera, Mexicthe
Company recognized employee termination benefig&lahillion and long-lived asset impairment
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losses of $1 million during the year ended Decen3fie2009. The VAM production unit in Cangrejeraghito is
included in the Company’s Acetyl Intermediates segin

As a result of the Project of Closure (Note 4), @ttharges for the Company included exit costs of
$89 million during the year ended December 31, 2008fich consisted of $60 million in employee teration
benefits, $17 million of contract termination coatsl $12 million of long-lived asset impairmentdes related to
capitalized costs associated with asset retiremigigations (Note 13). The Pardies, France facisitincluded in th
Acetyl Intermediates segment.

Due to continued declines in demand in automotie electronic sectors, the Company announced pdans
reduce capacity by ceasing polyester polymer priboluat its Ticona manufacturing plant in Shelbyrti
Carolina. Other charges for the year ended DeceBthe2009 included employee termination benefit$2million
and long-lived asset impairment losses of $1 nmillielated to this event. The Shelby, North Carolawlity is
included in the Advanced Engineered Materials segme

Other charges for the year ended December 31, @@6%artially offset by $6 million of insurance
recoveries in satisfaction of claims the Compangenglated to the unplanned outage of the ComgaDigar Lake
Texas acetic acid facility during 2007, a $9 millidecrease in legal reserves for plumbing claingstduhe
Company’s ongoing assessment of the likely outcofibe plumbing actions and the expiration of ttadige of
limitation.

2008

Other (charges) gains, net for asset impairmewgtades long-lived asset impairment losses of $9Rami
related to the potential closure of the Compangttia acid and VAM production facility in Pardigsiance, the
VAM production unit in Cangrejera, Mexico (whichetiCompany subsequently decided to shut down efteati the
end of February 2009) and certain other faciliti@sthe $92 million recorded in December 2008, #¥lion relates
to the Acetyl Intermediates segment and $16 miltelates to the Advanced Engineered Materials sagme
Consideration of this potential capacity reducticas necessitated by the significant change in lisieagjeconomic
environment and anticipated lower customer demand.

Additionally, the Company recognized $23 millionlofig-lived asset impairment losses related to the
shutdown of the Company’s Pampa, Texas facilityetfcintermediates segment).

Other (charges) gains, net for employee termindimefits includes severance and retention charfges
$13 million related to the sale of the Company’'sPa, Texas facility and $8 million of severance egténtion
charges related to other business optimizationsplendertaken by the Company.

2007

Other (charges) gains, net for employee termindimmefits and plant/office closures include chargéstec
to the Company’s plan to simplify and optimizeBsiulsions and PVOH businesses (Industrial Speesategment)
to become a leader in technology and innovationgaod in both new and existing markets. Other (gha) gains,
net for employee termination benefits and plani¢eftlosures also includes charges related toateeas the
Company’s Pampa, Texas facility. In addition, trerPany recorded an impairment of long-lived asséts
$3 million during the year ended December 31, 2007.

In December 2007, the Company received a one-tagenpnt in resolution of commercial disputes with a
vendor.
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For the year ended December 31, 2007, asset impaisnmcluded $6 million of goodwill impairment

related to the PVOH business.

The changes in the restructuring reserves by bssisegment are as follows:

Advanced
Engineered  Consumer Industrial Acetyl
Materials Specialties Specialties  Intermediates Other Total
(In $ millions)
Employee Termination Benefi
Reserve as of December 31, 2( : t 1 1t z 3i
Additions 1 2 1 13 4 21
Cash payment (D) 5) (6) (12) (©) 27)
Currency translation adjustme - - (1) - (2) (2)
Reserve as of December 31, 2( 2 2 6 17 2 29
Additions 12 9 6 66 12 10&
Cash payment (8) (@) 9 (23) ()] (54)
Currency translation adjustme 1 - - - - 1
Reserve as of December 31, 2( 7 4 3 60 7 81
Plant/Office Closure
Reserve as of December 31, 2( 1 3 1 2 1 8
Additions - - - - -
Cash payment (1) - (1) 2 - 4
Currency translation adjustme - (2) - - (2)
Reserve as of December 31, 2( - 2 - - 1 3
Additions - - - 17 17
Transfers - 2) - - - 2)
Cash payment - - - - -
Reserve as of December 31, 2( - - - 17 1 18
Total 7 4 3 77 8 99
19.Income Taxes
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befaselty jurisdiction are as follows:
Year Ended
December 31
2009 2008 2007
As Adjusted (Note 31)
(In $ millions)
us 29¢ 13t (112
International (43) 29¢ 54¢
Total 251 433 437
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The income tax provision (benefit) consists of fibliowing:

Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Current
us 11 62 (9
Internationa 14¢€ 92 163
Total 15¢ 154 154
Deferred

us (4049 (37 17
Internationa 2 (54) (62)
Total (402 (97) (44)
Income tax provision (benefi (243) 63 11C

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettemporary differences between the carrying ameont
assets and liabilities for financial reporting pagps and the amounts used for income tax purp8agsficant
components of the consolidated deferred tax aasetdiabilities were as follows:

As of
December 31
2009 2008
(In $ millions)

Deferred tax asse

Pension and postretirement obligatit 36! 30¢
Accrued expense 19t 19t
Inventory 10 8
Net operating loss and tax credit carryforwe 37¢ 27¢
Other 22( 192
Subtotal 1,161 97¢
Valuation allowanct (334 (652) @

Total 827 32€

Deferred tax liabilitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 33€ 322
Investment: 45 41
Other 90 49
Total 471 412
Net deferred tax assets (liabilitie 35€ (86)

(@ Includes deferred tax asset valuation allowanciesapily for the Company’s deferred tax assetdim S,
Luxembourg, France and Germany, as well as othieigio jurisdictions. These valuation allowancesites|
primarily to net operating loss carryforward betefind other net deferred tax assets, all of wimialt not be
realizable

Since 2004, the Company has maintained a valuatiowance against its US net deferred tax ass@tSBF
ASC Topic 740Jncome Taxesrequires the Company to continually assess allale positive and negative
evidence to determine whether it is more likelynthat that the net deferred tax assets will bezedl During 200¢
the Company concluded that due to cumulative oifity, it is more likely than not that it will edize its net US
deferred tax assets with the exception of certaite 1et operating loss
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carryforwards. Accordingly, during the year endeztBmber 31, 2009, the Company recorded a defeaxdoenhefit
of $492 million for the release of the beginningtioé-year US valuation allowance associated witls¢hUS net
deferred tax assets expected to be realized in 200%ubsequent years.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the valuatiowance decreased by $318 million consisting of:
(1) income tax benefits, net, of $314 million, &) increase of $1 million allocated to Accumulabiaer
comprehensive income, (3) an increase of $11 mill@ated to foreign currency translation adjusttsemd
(4) $16 million of other decreases related to uogeized tax benefits and other adjustments to defeaxes. The
charge to Accumulated other comprehensive incomta¢eieto deferred tax assets associated with thep@oy’s
pension and postretirement obligations. The chamgaluation allowance associated with foreign enoy
translation adjustments is related to changesfierdml tax assets for unrealized foreign exchargesgand losses
on effective hedges and on foreign income previotested but not yet received in the US. The chaitge relates to
foreign currency translation adjustments for deféax assets recorded in various foreign jurigatist The
decrease related to unrecognized tax benefits tred adjustments to deferred taxes includes adprsisrto
temporary differences and net operating loss camwdrds due to changes in uncertain tax positions.

A reconciliation of the significant differences Ween the US federal statutory tax rate of 35% aed t
effective income tax rate on income from continuapgrations is as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
As Adjusted (Note 31)
(In $ millions)

Income tax provision computed at US federal stayutax rate 8¢ 152 152
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting fr
Change in valuation allowan (319 ) 9
Equity income and dividenc (20 a7 8
Expenses not resulting in tax bene 4 18 38
US tax effect of foreign earnings and divide 10 (5) 27
Other foreign tax rate differentig() (15 (84) (95)
Legislative change 71 3 (21)
Tax-deductible interest on foreign equity instrumentst&er related item (76) - (29
State income taxes and otl 9 1 10
Income tax provision (benefi (243) 63 11C

@ Includes impact of earnings from China and Singajsaibject to tax holidays which expire between®&0d
2013 and favorable tax rates in other jurisdictic

Federal and state income taxes have not been piwoid accumulated but undistributed earnings of
$2.8 billion as of December 31, 2009 as such egsiirave been permanently reinvested in the busifibss
determination of the amount of the unrecognize@ed tax liability related to the undistributedreéngs is not
practicable.

The effective tax rate for continuing operationstfee year ended December 31, 2009 was (97)% cadpar
to 15% for the year ended December 31, 2008. Tieetefe tax rate for 2009 was favorably impactedhwy release
of US valuation allowance, partially offset by lawaarnings in jurisdictions participating in taxlidays, increases
in valuation allowances on certain foreign net defé tax assets and the effect of new tax leg@siati Mexico.
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The Company operates under tax holidays in vagoustries which are effective through December 2013
In China, one of the Company’s entities has a taiday that provided for a zero percent tax rat2d07 and 2008.
For 2009 through 2011, the Company’s tax rate % 80 the statutory rate, or 12.5% based on the 20@@tory
rate of 25%. In Singapore, one of the Company’giesthas a tax holiday that provides for a zen@get tax rate
through 2010. For 2011 through 2013, the CompataxXsate will be 10% based on the current statutaty of
17%. The impact of these tax holidays decreaseidgiotaxes $2 million for the year ended Decemide2809.

The Corporate Tax Reform Act of 2008 was signethieyGerman Federal President in August 2007. The
Act reduced the Company’s combined corporate stgtuax rate from 40% to 30% while imposing limitets on
the deductibility of certain expenses, includinteiest expense. The Company recognized a tax benefi
$39 million in 2007 related to the statutory ragduction on its German net deferred tax liabilities

Mexico enacted the 2008 Fiscal Reform Bill on Oetob, 2007. Effective January 1, 2008, the billeapd
the existing asset-based tax and established ardigahe tax system consisting of a new minimumtfat(the
“IETU") and the existing regular income tax systerhe IETU system taxes companies on cash basiacwhe,
consisting only of certain specified items of rewermnd expense, at a rate of 16.5%, 17% and 17062008, 2009
and 2010 forward, respectively. In general, comganiust pay the higher of the income tax or thdJEalthough
unlike the previous asset tax, the IETU is not itedxle against future income tax liabilities. Then@pany has
determined that it will primarily be subject to tHeTU in future periods, and as such it has recttd® expense
(benefit) of $(5) million, $7 million and $20 midh in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively, for tixesféects of the
IETU system.

On December 7, 2009, Mexico enacted the 2010 Maxiex Reform Bill (“Tax Reform Bill") to be
effective January 1, 2010. Under this new legisfatthe corporate income tax rate will be tempbyrancreased
from 28% to 30% for 2010 through 2012, then reduce2B% in 2013, and finally reduced back to 2892014 anc
future years. These rate changes would impact timep@ny in the event that it reverts to paying ta®s regular
income tax basis versus an IETU basis. Furthereuadrrent law, income tax loss carryforwards régmbin the tax
consolidation that were not utilized on an indivalupompany basis within 10 years were subject¢aptire. The
Tax Reform Bill as enacted accelerates this recagiariod from 10 years to 5 years and effectivetyuires
payment of taxes even if no benefit was obtainealitph the tax consolidation regime. Finally, sigraht
modifications were also made to the rules for inedaxes previously deferred on intercompany divideas well
as to income taxes related to differences betweradatidated and individual Mexican tax earnings prafits. The
estimated income tax impact to the Company ofribig legislation at December 31, 2009 is $73 miljpayable
$12 million in 2010, $14 million in 2012, $12 mdh in 2013 and $35 million in 2014 and thereafter.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had US fedetabperating loss carryforwards of $41 millioatth
are subject to limitation. These net operating tasyforwards begin to expire in 2021.

The Company also had foreign net operating losyfmawards as of December 31, 2009 of $1 billion fo
Luxembourg, Canada, China, Germany, Mexico andrdtireign jurisdictions with various expiration dat Net
operating losses in China have various carryforvp@mibds and begin expiring in 2011. Net operakirsges in
Luxembourg, Canada and Germany have no expiratiten tlet operating losses in Mexico have a ten year
carryforward period and began to expire in 2009wENer, these losses are not available for use uhderew IETL
tax regulations in Mexico. As the IETU is the primnaystem upon which the Company will be subjedatoin
future periods, no deferred tax asset has beegctedl in the consolidated balance sheets as ofnilmre31, 2009
for these income tax loss carryforwards.

The Company adopted the provisions of FASB ASC @ @@i0-10 effective January 1, 2007. FASB ASC
Topic 740-10 clarifies the accounting for incomeesm by prescribing a minimum recognition thresteotdx benefit
is required to meet before being recognized irfittancial statements. FASB ASC Topic 740-10 alsaovjafes
guidance on derecognition, measurement, classditanterest and penalties, accounting in
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interim periods, disclosure and transition. Assuteof the implementation of FASB ASC Topic 740-1ite
Company increased Retained earnings by $14 midlr@hdecreased Goodwill by $2 million as includethiz
consolidated balance sheets. In addition, cergadrtiabilities for unrecognized tax benefits, adlvae related
potential penalties and interest, were reclassffi@oh current liabilities to noncurrent liabilitiekiabilities for
unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 26l@%erto various US and foreign jurisdictions.

A reconciliation of the amount of unrecognized exefits is as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008
(In $ millions)
As of the beginning of the ye 19t 20C
Increases in tax positions for the current y 19 -
Increases in tax positions for prior ye 39 7
Decreases in tax positions of prior ye (38) (20
Settlement: (7) (2)
As of the end of the yei 20¢ 19t

Included in the unrecognized tax benefits as ofdbdmer 31, 2009 are $208 million of tax benefitg,tta
recognized, would reduce the Company’s effectixerdde.

The Company recognizes interest and penaltiesrbtatunrecognized tax benefits in the provisian fo
income taxes. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008Ctdmpany has recorded a liability of $45 milliordan
$38 million, respectively, for interest and peredtiThis amount includes an increase of $7 mikind $2 million
for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 ctigely. As of December 31, 2009, $5 million of
unrecognized tax benefits are included in curreheliabilities (Note 12).

The Company operates in the US (including multgtége jurisdictions), Germany and approximately 40
other foreign jurisdictions including Canada, ChiReance, Mexico and Singapore. Examinations ageiog in a
number of those jurisdictions including, most sfigaintly, in Germany for the years 2001 to 2004 2665 to 2007
The Company’s US federal income tax returns for&8d beyond are open for examination under stafiie US
tax years 2006 to 2008 were selected for audi0kD2Currently, unrecognized tax benefits are mpeeted to
change significantly over the next 12 months.

20. Stock-Based and Other Management Compensation Plat

In December 2004, the Company approved a stockiiveeplan for executive officers, key employeed an
directors, a deferred compensation plan for exeewificers and key employees as well as other gemant
incentive programs.

The stock incentive plan allows for the issuancdadivery of up to 16,250,000 shares of the Comfgany
Series A common stock through the award of stotlongp, restricted stock units (“RSUs”) and othercktbased
awards as may be approved by the Company’s Comjiem&ommittee of the Board of Directors. At the
Company’s discretion under the 2004 incentive ph@,Company has the right to award dividend edenta on
RSU grants which are earned in accordance witlCtrapanys common stock dividend policy and are reinvests
additional RSUs. Dividend equivalents on these R&ddorfeited if vesting conditions are not met.

In April 2009, the Company approved a global insenplan which replaces the Company’s 2004 stock
incentive plan. The 2009 global incentive plan desithe Compensation Committee of the Board of
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Directors to award incentive and nonqualified stopkions, stock appreciation rights, shares of comstock,
restricted stock, restricted stock units and ingerttonuses (which may be paid in cash or stock@mbination
thereof), any of which may be performance-baseth westing and other award provisions that proefiective
incentive to Company employees (including officer&)n-management directors and other service peosidnder
the 2009 global incentive plan, the company no éoritas the option to grant RSUs with the rightadipipate in
dividends or dividend equivalents.

The maximum number of shares that may be issuedruhd 2009 global incentive plan is equal to
5,350,000 shares plus (a) any shares of Commork 8tatremain available for issuance under the 2064k
incentive plan (not including any shares of Comr8twock that are subject to outstanding awards uthee?004
stock incentive plan or any shares of Common Sthakwere issued pursuant to awards under the 1004
incentive plan) and (b) any awards under the 2@@eksncentive plan that remain outstanding thaisesfor any
reason to be subject to such awards (other thaedson of exercise or settlement of the awarde@ittent that
such award is exercised for or settled in vestedram-forfeitable shares). As of December 31, 2@0®tal of
3,812,359 shares remained available for awardsruhde2009 stock incentive plan. A total of 7,189 %nd
1,481,886 shares were subject to outstanding awsdisr the 2004 stock incentive plan and 2009 gliolcantive
plan, respectively.

Deferred Compensatio

The 2004 deferred compensation plan provides areggte maximum amount payable of $196 million.
initial component of the deferred compensation plasted in 2004 and was paid in the first quat&085. In May
2007, the Original Shareholders sold their remaim@quity interest in the Company triggering an Exient, as
defined by the plan. Cash compensation of $74 onilliepresenting the participants’ 2005 and 2008icgent
benefits, was paid to the participants during tharyended December 31, 2007. Participants contrinithe 2004
deferred compensation plan (see below for discassigarding certain participant’s decision to [aptite in a
revised program) continue to vest in their 2008 20@9 time-based and performance-based entitlerasrdsfined
in the deferred compensation plan. During the yeaded December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Cgmpan
recorded compensation expense of $1 million, $8onibnd $84 million, respectively, associated wiftls plan. As
of December 31, 2009, there was no deferred conapiengpayable remaining associated with this plan.

On April 2, 2007, certain participants in the Comya deferred compensation plan elected to pasteijn
a revised program, which includes both cash awandsrestricted stock units (see Restricted StodksUelow).
Under the revised program, participants relinquistieir cash awards of up to $30 million that woldve
contingently accrued from 2007-2009 under the pebplan. In lieu of these awards, the revised mete
compensation program provides for a future cashrdwwaan amount equal to 90% of the maximum po&dpayou
under the original plan, plus growth pursuant te ofithree participant-selected notional investnveticles, as
defined in the associated agreements. Participanss remain employed through 2010 to vest in ttve amvard. The
Company will recognize expense through DecembeB10 and make award payments under the revisepgm
in the first quarter of 2011, unless participanéseto further defer the payment of their indivddlawards. Based on
participation in the revised program, the Compaxpeased $10 million, $8 million and $6 million dugi the years
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respsgtreddted to the revised program.

In December 2007, the Company adopted a deferneghensation plan whereby certain of the Company’s
senior employees and directors were offered themppity to defer a portion of their compensatinrekchange for
a future payment amount equal to their defermelots gr minus certain amounts based upon the market
performance of specified measurement funds seldstele participant. Participants are required akendeferral
elections under the plan prior to January 1 ofydsr such deferrals will be withheld from their quansation. The
Company expensed less than $1 million and $1 millioring the years ended December 31, 2009 and, 2008
respectively, related to this plan.
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Long-Term Incentive Plan

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company adopted@-term incentive plan (the “LTIP Plan”) which cose
certain members of management and other key emgdayiethe Company. The LTIP Plan is a thyeas cash base
plan in which awards are based on annual and feaeeumulative targets (as defined in the LTImPI|
February 2007, $26 million was paid to the LTIPmpfearticipants. There are no additional amountsuwhaker the
LTIP Plan.

In December 2008, the Company granted time-vestis) awards of $22 million to the Company’s
executive officers and certain other key employ&esh award of cash vests 30% on October 14, Z198,0n
October 14, 2010 and 40% on October 14, 2011slsdte discretion, the compensation committee®Btbard of
Directors may at any time convert all or a portidrihe cash award to an award of timesting restricted stock uni
The liability cash awards are being accrued an@es@d over the term of the agreements outlinedealiswring the
year ended December 31, 2009, less than $1 millespaid to participants who left the Company. ttdber 200¢
the Company paid cash awards totaling $6 millioadtive employees, representing 30% of the remginin
outstanding cash awards. During the years endedrbleer 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company expensed|Banmi
and less than $1 million, respectively, relatethe cash awards.

Stock Options

The Company has a stock-based compensation plam#ies awards of stock options to the Company’s
executives and certain employees. It is the Conpaulicy to grant options with an exercise pricgial to the
average of the high and low price of the Compa®gses A common stock on the grant date. The opisued
have a ten-year term and vest on a graded basiperieds ranging from one to five years. The eated value of
the Company'’s stock-based awards less expectegltfods is recognized over the awards’ respectdgting period
on a straight-line basis.

The fair value of each option granted is estimatedhe grant date using the Black-Scholes optidirgy
method. The weighted average assumptions use@ imtiiel are outlined in the following table:

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
Risk-free interest rat 2.90% .30% 260%
Estimated life in year 5.20 7.70 6.80
Dividend yield 0.96 % 0.38% 0.42%
Volatility 54.30% 31.40% 27.50%

The computation of the expected volatility assupptised in the Black-Scholes calculations for neants
is based on the Company’s historical volatilitithen establishing the expected life assumptiorsCtbhmpany
reviews annual historical employee exercise behmafioption grants with similar vesting periods.
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A summary of changes in stock options outstandiragifollows:

Year Ended December 31, 2009

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining Aggregate
Number of Average Contractual Intrinsic
Options Exercise Price Term Value
(In millions) (In$) (In years) (In $ millions)
As of December 31, 20( 7.C 19.3¢
Granted 0.1 17.17
Exercisec (0.9 17.7¢
Forfeited 0.9 34.0¢
As of December 31, 20( 6.C 19.01 5.€ 7€
Options exercisable at end of yt 5.C 17.0¢ 5.3 75

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of stqations granted during the years ended December 31
2009, 2008, and 2007 was $7.46, $16.78, and $1redfectively, per option. The total intrinsic valof options
exercised during the years ended December 31, 2008, and 2007 was $9 million, $27 million, and} $8illion,
respectively. As of December 31, 2009, the Compeat/approximately $7 million of total unrecognized
compensation expense related to stock optionsyéxg estimated forfeitures, expected to be recmghover a
weighted-average period of 1.3 years. Cash recdroed stock option exercises was $14 million, $1i8iom, and
$69 million during the years ended December 31920008, and 2007, respectively. There was no ¢gvefit
realized from stock option exercises during the wealed December 31, 2009. During the year endedébieer 31,
2008 the Company reversed $8 million of the $1%iomiltax benefit that was realized during the yerrded
December 31, 2007.

During 2009, the Company extended the contraciigabf 4 million fully vested share options held by
6 employees. As a result of that modification, @wnpany recognized additional compensation expehse
$1 million for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Restricted Stock Units'RSUs”)

Performance-based RSUThe Company grants performance-based RSUs todh@p@ny’s executive
officers and certain employees once per year. Tdragany may also grant performance-based RSUs tairc@ew
employees or to employees who assume positionmeco#asing responsibility at the time those eveatsio The
number of performance-based RSUs that ultimatety isedependent on one or both of the followingeisthe
terms of the specific award agreement: The achiemeiof 1) internal profitability targets (performancondition)
and 2) market performance targets measured byotgarison of the Company’s stock performance vesisus
defined peer group (market condition).

The performance-based RSUs generally cliff-vesinduthe Company’s quarter-end September 30 béartk-
period three years from the date of grant. Thenalte number of shares of the Company’s Series Avtammstock
issued will range from zero to stretch, with sthetiefined individually under each award, net ofspeal income
taxes withheld. The market condition is factoreto ithe estimated fair value per unit and compeosakpense for
each award will be based on the probability of exinig internal profitability targets, as applicald@d recognized
on a straight-line basis over the term of the retipe grant, less estimated forfeitures. For penfmmce-based RSUs
granted without a performance condition, compenratixpense is based on the fair value per unigrézed on a
straight-line basis over the term of the grants lestimated forfeitures.
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In April 2007, the Company granted performance-8d&88Us to certain employees that vest annually in
equal tranches beginning October 1, 2008 througbliec 1, 2011 and include a market condition. The
performance-based RSUs awarded include a catchewisipn that provides for an additional year o$tieg of
previously unvested amounts, subject to certainimams. Compensation expense is based on the faie y&r uni
recognized on a straight-line basis over the tefrthegrant, less estimated forfeitures.

A summary of changes in performance-based RSUsanwlisg is as follows:

Weighted
Number of Average
Units Fair Value

(In thousands) (In$)
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 1,18t 19.6¢
Granted 42C 38.1¢
Vested (79 21.3(
Forfeited (119 17.2¢
Nonvested at December 31, 2(C 1,41¢ 25.2¢

The fair value of shares vested for performancet&SUs during the years ended December 31, 2@D9 an
2008 was $2 million and $3 million, respectivelynefe were no vestings that occurred during the geded
December 31, 2007.

Fair value for the Company’s performance-based RBatsestimated at the grant date using a MonteCarl
simulation approach. Monte Carlo simulation walagid to randomly generate future stock returngtierCompan
and each company in the defined peer group for geaiit based on company-specific dividend yield&tilities
and stock return correlations. These returns wseel to calculate future performance-based RSUngesti
percentages and the simulated values of the vestédrmance-based RSUs were then discounted temirealue
using a risk-free rate, yielding the expected valfithese performance-based RSUs.

The range of assumptions used in the Monte Camalsiion approach is outlined in the following &bl

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
Risk-free interest rat 1.11% 1.05% 4.53-4.55%
Dividend yield 0.00-4.64% 0.00-12.71% 0.00- 2.76%
Volatility 25- 75% 20- 70% 20- 45%

In December 2008, the Company granted 200,000 eaioce units to be settled in cash to the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer. The terms of the perforramnits are substantially similar to the perfornsoased RSU
granted in December 2008 and include a performaondition and a market condition. The value of the
performance units is equivalent to the value of simere of the Company’s Series A common stock agdaenounts
that may vest under the performance unit awardesgeat are to be settled in cash rather than sbéthe
Company’s Series A common stock. The compensatiomuttee of the Board of Directors may elect tovan all
or any portion of the performance units award t@amard of an equivalent value of performance-b&sgUs.

Time-based RSUsThe Company grants non-employee Directors timedh&SUs annually that generally
vest one year after grant. The fair value of theetbased RSUs is equal to the closing price o€Citrapany’s
Series A common stock on the grant date.
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The Company also grants time-based RSUs to the @oyrgexecutives and certain employees that vest
ratably over time intervals ranging from two to fguears. The fair value of the time-based RSUgjiskto the
average of the high and low price of the Compa®gses A common stock on the grant date.

A summary of changes in time-based RSUs outstanidiag follows:

Employee Time-based RSU: Director Time-Based RSU:

Weighted Weighted

Number of Average Number of Average

Units Fair Value Units Fair Value

(In thousands' (In $) (In thousands; (In$)

Nonvested at December 31, 2( 10t 39.3¢ 1t 44.0:
Granted 421 23.1% 41 16.5¢
Vested (29 37.6( (19 44.02
Forfeited D 39.5: - -
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 502 25.57 41 16.5¢

As of December 31, 2009, there was approximatebyrilion of unrecognized compensation cost related
to RSUs, excluding estimated forfeitures, expetidae recognized over a weightaderage period of 2.3 years. -
fair value of shares vested for time-based RSUmdtuhe years ended December 31, 2009 and 200&2vasllion
and $1 million, respectively. No RSUs vested dutimgyear ended December 31, 2007.

21.Leases

Total rent expense charged to operations undepalating leases was $148 million, $141 million and
$122 million for the years ended December 31, 22098 and 2007, respectively. Future minimum |gesenents
under non-cancelable rental and lease agreemeith Wave initial or remaining terms in excess o€ gear as of
December 31, 2009 are as follows:

Capital Operating
(In $ millions)

2010 68 5C
2011 39 36
2012 38 31
2013 35 24
2014 35 16
Later year: 27¢€ 46
Sublease incom - (29

Minimum lease commitmen 48€ 17¢
Less amounts representing intel 244

Present value of net minimum lease obligati 24:

The Company expects that, in the normal courseusiness, leases that expire will be renewed orocejpl
by other leases.
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22.Derivative Financial Instruments
Interest Rate Risk Manageme!

To reduce the interest rate risk inherent in then@any’s variable rate debt, the Company utilizésrest
rate swap agreements to convert a portion of thiala rate debt to a fixed rate obligation. Thiegerest rate swap
agreements are designated as cash flow hedgesinfesest rate swap agreement is terminated fids maturity,
the amount previously recorded in Accumulated otloenprehensive income (loss), net is recognizemeatnings
over the period that the hedged transaction impaantsings. If the hedging relationship is discamgith because it is
probable that the forecasted transaction will reaiuo according to the original strategy, any relamounts
previously recorded in Accumulated other compreivenscome (loss), net are recognized into earnings
immediately.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had an irttemés swap agreement in place with a notionalevalu
of $300 million. On March 29, 2007, in connectioithathe April 2007 debt refinancing, the Comparmyntmated
this interest rate swap agreement and recognigaiheof $2 million related to amounts previouslgorled in
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net.

In March 2007, in anticipation of the April 2007ldeefinancing, the Company entered into various US
dollar and Euro interest rate swap agreements,hécame effective on April 2, 2007, with notioaadounts of
$1.6 billion and €150 million, respectively. Thetiomal amount of the $1.6 billion US dollar intereste swaps
decreased by $400 million effective January 2, 2008 decreased by another $200 million effectiveidey 2,
2009. To offset the declines, the Company enteredUS dollar interest rate swaps with a combinetibnal
amount of $400 million which became effective onuly 2, 2008 and an additional US dollar interatt swap
with a notional amount of $200 million which becasafective April 2, 2009. The notional amount oé tinterest
rate swaps decreased by $100 million effective dandl, 2010. No new swaps were entered into tebffe
declines.

The Company recognized interest (expense) incoom fredging activities relating to interest rate gsvaf
($63) million, ($18) million and $6 million for thgears ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 200 &atasgly. The
Company recorded a net loss of $0 million for tearyended December 31, 2009 and less than $1 miiiceach ¢
the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, to @tmme (expense), net in the consolidated statesrod
operations for the ineffective portion of the irtstrrate swap agreements. The Company recordedrealiged gain
(loss) on interest rate swaps of $15 million angBj$million during the years ended December 3192@1td 2008,
respectively.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Certain entities have receivables and payablesndigrated in currencies other than their respective
functional currencies, which creates foreign exgfearisk. The Company enters into foreign curremmewérds and
swaps to minimize its exposure to foreign currefiggtuations. Through these instruments, the Compaitigates
its foreign currency exposure on transactions wiitd party entities as well as intercompany tratisas. The
currently outstanding foreign currency contractsla@dging booked exposure, however the Companyfioaytime
to time hedge its currency exposure related tocBsted transactions. Forward contracts are noguigsid as hedg
under FASB ASC Topic 815.
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The following table indicates the total US dollguévalents of net foreign exchange exposure related
(short) long foreign exchange forward contractstautding by currency. All of the contracts includedhe table
below will have approximately offsetting effectsrn actual underlying payables, receivables, intagany loans ¢
other assets or liabilities subject to foreign exwe remeasurement.

2010 Maturity
(In $ millions)
Currency
Euro (379
British pound sterling (90
Chinese renmint (200
Mexican pes( 5)
Singapore dolla 27
Canadian dolla (48)
Japanese ye 8
Brazilian real (11)
Swedish kroni 5
Other @
Total (677

To protect the foreign currency exposure of a meg$tment in a foreign operation, the Company edter
into cross currency swaps with certain financiatitntions in 2004. The cross currency swaps aadtro-
denominated portion of the senior term loan wesgiated as a hedge of a net investment of a foigigration.
The Company dedesignated the net investment hadgtodhe debt refinancing in April 2007 and redeated the
cross currency swaps and new senior Euro termifodualy 2007. As a result, the Company recordedrifiéon of
mark-to-market losses related to the cross currem@ps and the new senior Euro term loan durirgggériod.

Under the terms of the cross currency swap arraagemthe Company paid approximately €13 million in
interest and received approximately $16 milliomniterest on June 15 and December 15 of each ybarfair value
of the net obligation under the cross currency smegs included in current Other liabilities in twnsolidated
balance sheets as of December 31, 2007. Upon tyadfithe cross currency swap agreements in Ju@8,2be
Company owed €276 million ($426 million) and waseah$333 million. In settlement of the obligatiomet
Company paid $93 million (net of interest of $3lmit) in June 2008.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Coyngradiesignated €385 million of the €400 Euro-
denominated portion of the term loan, previouslyigieated as a hedge of a net investment of a foxgigration.
The remaining €15 million Euro-denominated portadrihe term loan was dedesignated as a hedgeetf a n
investment of a foreign operation in June 200910 the dedesignations, the Company had beeg esiernal
derivative contracts to offset foreign currency @syres on certain intercompany loans. As a reétiiteo
dedesignations, the foreign currency exposure etday the Euro-denominated term loan is expectedfset the
foreign currency exposure on certain intercompaay$, decreasing the need for external derivabwéracts and
reducing the Company’s exposure to external copatées.

The effective portion of the gain (loss) on theiive (cross currency swaps) is recorded in Acalated
other comprehensive income (loss), net. For thesyeaded December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, therdrobarge:
to Accumulated other comprehensive income (lost)was $0 million, $(19) million and $(19) million,
respectively. The gain (loss) related to items eaet from the assessment of hedge effectivenebs afoss
currency swaps are recorded to Other income (expenst in the consolidated statements of operstiBar the
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007ntberda charged t
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Other income (expense), net in the consolidataérsnts of operations was $0 million, $1 milliord&{6) million,
respectively.

Commodity Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the prices of comnagditiits procurement of certain raw materials. The
Company manages its exposure primarily throughutieeof long-term supply agreements and derivative
instruments. The Company regularly assesses itsiggaof purchasing a portion of its commaodity riggments
forward and utilization of other raw material hasinstruments, in addition to forward purchaseti@mts, in
accordance with changes in market conditions. Fahparchases and swap contracts for raw materials a
principally settled through actual delivery of fhieysical commodity. For qualifying contracts, thendpany has
elected to apply the normal purchases and norned saception of FASB ASC Topic 815, as it was pinb at the
inception and throughout the term of the contrhat they would not settle net and would resulthggical delivery.
As such, realized gains and losses on these ctsaeeincluded in the cost of the commodity ugagettlement «
the contract.

In addition, the Company occasionally enters iimaricial derivatives to hedge a component of a raw
material or energy source. Typically, these tygasamsactions do not qualify for hedge accountifigese
instruments are marked to market at each repopéngd and gains (losses) are included in Cosalefssin the
consolidated statements of operations. The Companognized no gain or loss from these types ofractg during
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 anth&s$1 million during the year ended December2BD7. As
of December 31, 2009, the Company did not haveopey financial derivative contracts for commodities

The following table presents information regardaignges in the fair value of the Company’s denneati

arrangements:
Year ended December 31, 20(
Gain (Loss)
Recognizec
in Other Gain (Loss)
Comprehensive  Recognizec
Income in Income

(In $ millions)

Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instnts

Interest rate sway (40 (6) @
Derivatives designated as net investment hedgistguments

Eurc-denominated term log — —
Derivatives not designated as hedging instrum

Foreign currency forwards and sw: — (20

Total (40) (83)

(MAmount represents reclassification from Accumulatéter comprehensive income and is classified asdat
expense in the consolidated statement of opera

See Note 23, Fair Value Measurements, for additiofi@mation regarding the fair value of the Compa
derivative arrangements.
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23.Fair Value Measurements

As discussed in Note 2, the Company adopted cqptavisions of FASB ASC Topic 820 on January 1,
2008 and 2009. FASB ASC Topic 820 establisheseetliered fair value hierarchy that prioritizesuitgpto
valuation techniques used in fair value calculatiorhe three levels of inputs are defined as fdatow

Level 1 — unadjusted quoted prices for identicakss or liabilities in active markets accessiblehsy
Company

Level 2 — inputs that are observable in the maitketother than those inputs classified as Level 1
Level 3 — inputs that are unobservable in the ntpi&ee and significant to the valuation

FASB ASC Topic 820 requires the Company to maxintieeuse of observable inputs and minimize the use
of unobservable inputs. If a financial instrumeseésiinputs that fall in different levels of theraiehy, the
instrument will be categorized based upon the lovea®| of input that is significant to the fairlua calculation.

The Company'’s financial assets and liabilitiesragasured at fair value on a recurring basis arlddec
marketable securities and derivative financialrinstents. Marketable securities include US goverriraad
corporate bonds, mortgage-backed securities antlyesgcurities. Derivative financial instrumentslunde interest
rate swaps and foreign currency forwards and swaps.

Marketable SecuritiesWhere possible, the Company utilizes quoted piiitestive markets to measure
debt and equity securities; such items are claskds Level 1 in the hierarchy and include equegusities and US
government bonds. When quoted market prices fattickd assets are unavailable, varying valuatichii&ues are
used. Common inputs in valuing these assets includeng others, benchmark yields, issuer spreadsafd
mortgage-backed securities trade prices and rgoesgbrted trades. Such assets are classifiedas Reén the
hierarchy and typically include mortgage-backedisies, corporate bonds and other US governmenirgees.

Derivative Financial InstrumentsDerivative financial instruments are valued in tharket using
discounted cash flow techniques. These techniquesporate Level 1 and Level 2 inputs such asestaates and
foreign currency exchange rates. These marketsmmet utilized in the discounted cash flow caléafatonsidering
the instrumens term, notional amount, discount rate and crésht Significant inputs to the derivative valuatifom
interest rate swaps and foreign currency forwandssavaps are observable in the active markets mndassified ¢
Level 2 in the hierarchy.
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The following fair value hierarchy table presemtformation about the Company’s assets and liadsliti

measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Fair Value Measurement

Using
Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other
Markets for Observable
Identical Assets Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total
(In $ millions)
Marketable securities, at fair val
US government debt securiti — 28 2¢
US corporate debt securiti — 1 1
Equity securitie: 52 — 52
Money market deposits and other securi — 2 2
Derivatives not designated as hedging instrum
Foreign currency forwards and swe — 12 12@)
Total assets as of December 31, 2 52 43 95
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instnis
Interest rate sway — (68) (68) @
Interest rate sway — (44) (44) ®
Derivatives not designated as hedging instrum
Foreign currency forwards and swe — (7) 7)) @
Total liabilities as of December 31, 20 — (119 (119
Marketable securitie
US government debt securiti — 52 52
US corporate debt securiti — 3 3
Equity securitie: 42 — 42
Money market deposits and other securi — 3 3
Derivatives not designated as hedging instrum
Foreign currency forwards and swz — 54 54 (1)
Total assets as of December 31, 2 42 112 154
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instnis
Interest rate sway — (42 42 @
Interest rate sway — (76) (76) ®
Derivatives not designated as hedging instrum
Foreign currency forwards and sws — (25) (25) @
Total liabilities as of December 31, 20 — (143) (143)

@ Included in current Other assets in the consolitlhtdance sheet
(@ Included in current Other liabilities in the coridated balance shee
®) Included in noncurrent Other liabilities in the solidated balance shee
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Summarized below are the carrying values and etghfair values of financial instruments that aoé n
carried at fair value on the Company’s consoliddteldnce sheets:

As of December 31  As of December 31
2009 2008
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(In $ millions)

Cost investments (As Adjusted, Note 8 and Note 12¢ — 13C —
Insurance contracts in nonqualified pension tr 66 66 67 67
Long-term debt, including current installments of I-term debt 3,361 3,24¢ 3,381 2,40«

In general, the cost investments included in théetabove are not publicly traded and their falugea are
not readily determinable; however, the Companyevek the carrying values approximate or are less tite fair
values.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the fair valdesish and cash equivalents, receivables, tradabes;
short-term debt and the current installments offtarm debt approximate carrying values due tcstimt-term
nature of these instruments. These items have déaduded from the table with the exception of therent
installments of long-term debt. Additionally, centoncurrent receivables, principally insuranceokerables, are
carried at net realizable value.

The fair value of long-term debt is based on vaduest from third-party banks and market quotations.

24.Commitments and Contingencie

The Company is involved in a number of legal arglifetory proceedings, lawsuits and claims incidietata
the normal conduct of business, relating to suctiarsas product liability, antitrust, intellectyabperty, workers’
compensation, prior acquisitions and divestitupast waste disposal practices and release of chéninto the
environment. While it is impossible at this timedtermine with certainty the ultimate outcomehefse
proceedings, lawsuits and claims, the Companytigedg defending those matters where the Compamaised as
defendant. Additionally, the Company believes, base the advice of legal counsel, that adequatrves have
been made and that the ultimate outcomes of ali Btigation and claims will not have a materiavadse effect on
the financial position of the Company; however, tftenate outcome of any given matter may have tera
impact on the results of operations or cash flofwh® Company in any given reporting period.

Plumbing Action:

CNA Holdings LLC. (“CNA Holdings”), a US subsidianf the Company, which included the US business
now conducted by the Ticona business which is deduin the Advanced Engineered Materials segméantgawith
Shell Oil Company (“Shell”), E.l. DuPont de Nemoarsd Company (“DuPont’and others, has been a defenda
a series of lawsuits, including a number of clag®as, alleging that plastics manufactured by ¢hesmpanies that
were utilized in the production of plumbing systeimsresidential property were defective or causech plumbing
systems to fail. Based on, among other thingsfittaings of outside experts and the successfubfiécona’s
acetal copolymer in similar applications, CNA Haolgé does not believe Ticossacetal copolymer was defective
caused the plumbing systems to fail. In many c@3$é¢& Holdings’ potential future exposure may be lbieci by
invocation of the statute of limitations since CKildings ceased selling the resin for use in thenbing systems
in site-built homes during 1986 and in manufacturedhes during 1990.
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In November 1995, CNA Holdings, DuPont and Shefeesd into national class action settlements that
called for the replacement of plumbing systemdafhtants who have had qualifying leaks, as well as
reimbursements for certain leak damage. In conmeetith such settlement, the three companies hesktdgo fund
these replacements and reimbursements up to aagaigramount of $950 million. As of December 31)20he
aggregate funding is $1,109 million, due to addiiocontributions and funding commitments made ariim by
other parties.

During the period between 1995 and 2001, CNA Hgsdiwas also named as a defendant in the following
putative class actions:

* Cox, et al. v. Hoechst Celanese Corporation, et Bb. 94-0047 (Chancery Ct., Obion County,
Tennessee) (class was certified).

» Couture, et al. v. Shell Oil Company, et,dNo. 200-06-000001-985 (Quebec Superior Courta@aj

< Dilday, et al. v. Hoechst Celanese Corporatioralet No. 15187 (Chancery Ct., Weakley County,
Tennessee).

e Furlan v. Shell Oil Company, et alNo. C967239 (British Columbia Supreme Court, aner
Registry, Canada).

e Gariepy, et al. v. Shell Oil Company, et d\No. 30781/99 (Ontario Court General Division, €da).

e Shelter General Insurance Co., et al. v. Shell@impany, et al. No. 16809 (Chancery Ct., Weakley
County, Tennessee).

e St Croix Ltd., et al. v. Shell Oil Company, et,dllo. 1997/467 (Territorial Ct., St. Croix Divisipthe
US Virgin Islands).

e Tranter v. Shell Oil Company, et alNo. 46565/97 (Ontario Court General Division, €da).

In addition, between 1994 and 2008 CNA Holdings nasied as a defendant in numerous non-eletssns
filed in Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Louisiana, Missippi, New Jersey, Tennessee and Texas, the tiffh\slands
and Canada of which ten are currently pendinglllofahese actions, the plaintiffs have soughorery for alleged
damages caused by leaking polybutylene plumbinghde amounts have generally not been specifiethbsé
cases generally do not involve (either individuallyin the aggregate) a large number of homes.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had remaiadicguals of $55 million, of which $1 million is
included in current Other liabilities in the coridaked balance sheets. As of December 31, 200& dhgpany had
remaining accruals of $64 million, of which $2 naitt was included in current Other liabilities irethonsolidated
balance sheets.

The Company reached settlements with CNA Holdimg®lrers specifying their responsibility for these
claims. During the year ended December 31, 20@7Cttmpany received $23 million of insurance prosdezm
various CNA Holdings’ insurers as full satisfactifmm their responsibility for these claims. Duritige year ended
December 31, 2008, the Company received less thanilion from insurers. During the year ended Daber 31,
2009, the Company recognized a $9 million decréatgal reserves for plumbing claims due to thenpany’s
ongoing assessment of the likely outcome of thenping actions and the expiration of the statutiénaitation.
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Plumbing Insurance Indemnifications

Celanese GmbH entered into agreements with inseremmpanies related to product liability settlersent
associated with Celcdhplumbing claims. These agreements, except thoseiméblvent insurance companies,
require the Company to indemnify and/or defenddghrsurance companies in the event that third gasgiek
additional monies for matters released in theseeagents. The indemnifications in these agreementetiprovide
for time limitations.

In certain of the agreements, Celanese GmbH reg@ifixed settlement amount. The indemnities under
these agreements generally are limited to, bubinescases are greater than, the amount receissdtieament from
the insurance company. The maximum exposure uhdsetindemnifications is $95 million. Other settbern
agreements have no stated limits.

There are other agreements whereby the settlingénagreed to pay a fixed percentage of claimsrétate
to that insurer’s policies. The Company has prayiskelemnifications to the insurers for amounts paiexcess of
the settlement percentage. These indemnificationsot provide for monetary or time limitations.

Sorbates Antitrust Action:

In May 2002, the European Commission informed Hee&IG (“Hoechst”) of its intent to officially
investigate the sorbates industry. In early Jan@afa, the European Commission served Hoechstjrdut, Inc., |
US subsidiary of Nutrinova Nutrition Specialtiesc&od Ingredients GmbH and previously a wholly owned
subsidiary of Hoechst (“Nutrinova”), and a numbécompetitors of Nutrinova with a statement of abijens
alleging unlawful, anticompetitive behavior affextithe European sorbates market. In October 26@F tiropean
Commission ruled that Hoechst, Chisso Corporatimicel Chemical Industries Ltd. (“Daicel”), The Nipn
Synthetic Chemical Industry Co. Ltd. and Ueno Fieemicals Industry Ltd. operated a cartel in theoRaan
sorbates market between 1979 and 1996. The Eurdperamission imposed a total fine of €138 millionsarch
companies, of which €99 million was assessed agHioschst and its legal successors. The case adaitrinova
was closed. Pursuant to the Demerger Agreementhigdthst, Celanese GmbH was assigned the obligatiated
to the sorbates antitrust matter; however, Hoeelmst,its legal successors, agreed to indemnifyr@ésa GmbH for
80% of any costs Celanese GmbH incurred relatitkisomatter. Accordingly, Celanese GmbH recognized
receivable from Hoechst from this indemnificatitmJune 2008, the Court of First Instance of theopaan
Communities (Fifth Chamber) reduced the fine agditteechst to €74.25 million and in July 2008, Hostgbeid the
€74.25 million fine. In August 2008, the Companydkioechst €17 million, including interest of €2 loih, in
satisfaction of its 20% obligation with respecthe fine.

Based on the advice of external counsel and awesighe existing facts and circumstances relatinthe
sorbates antitrust matters, including the settléroéthe European Uniog’investigation, as well as civil claims fil
and settled, the Company released its accrualedsla the settled sorbates antitrust matters lachtlemnification
receivables resulting in a gain of $8 million, riatluded in Other (charges) gains, net, in thesobdated
statements of operations for the year ended Dece®ih@008.

In addition, in 2004 a civil antitrust action stglEreeman Industries LLC v. Eastman Chemical Coalet.
was filed against Hoechst and Nutrinova, Inc. i ltaw Court for Sullivan County in Kingsport, Tessee. The
plaintiff sought monetary damages and other rétieflleged conduct involving the sorbates industiye trial cour
dismissed the plaintiff's claims and upon appeal$upreme Court of Tennessee affirmed the dismiéshe
plaintiff's claims. In December 2005, the plainfifst an attempt to amend its complaint and theeeattion was
dismissed with prejudice. Plaintiff’counsel subsequently filed a new complaint witlv glass representatives in
District Court of the District of Tennessee. Then(pany’s
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motion to strike the class allegations was gramespril 2008 and the plaintiff's request to appés ruling
remains pending.

Polyester Staple Antitrust Litigatiol

CNA Holdings, the successor in interest to Hoe€ledtinese Corporation (“HCC”), Celanese Americas
Corporation and Celanese GmbH (collectively, thels&@ese Entities”) and Hoechst, the former parERIGC,
were named as defendants in two actions (invol2mindividual participants) filed in September 2086US
purchasers of polyester staple fibers manufactanedsold by HCC. The actions allege that the defetsd
participated in a conspiracy to fix prices, rigoahd allocate customers of polyester staple sdfide United States.
These actions were consolidated in a proceediray Mylti-District Litigation Panel in the United $¢s District
Court for the Western District of North Carolinglet In re Polyester Staple Antitrust LitigatioMDL 1516. On
June 12, 2008 the court dismissed these actiorissagdl Celanese Entities in consideration of gnpant by the
Company of $107 million. This proceeding relatedates by the polyester staple fibers businesshwiaechst sol
to KoSa, Inc. in 1998. Accordingly, the impact bistsettlement is reflected within discontinuedragiens in the
consolidated statements of operations for the grded December 31, 2008. The Company also preyieastred
into tolling arrangements with four other allege8 purchasers of polyester staple fibers manufattane sold by
the Celanese Entities. These purchasers were c¢lated in the settlement and one such company dilgidagainst
the Company in December 2008 in the Western Digtfidlorth Carolina entitleililliken & Company v. CNA
Holdings, Inc., Celanese Americas Corporation armkehst AC(No. 8-CV-00578). The Company is actively
defending this matter and has filed a motion tonis, which is pending with the court.

In December 1998, HCC sold its polyester staplénass (the “1998 Sale”) to KoSa B.V., f/lk/a Arteva
B.V., a subsidiary of Koch Industries, Inc. (“KoSatinder an asset purchase agreement (“APA”"). lgustiof
2002, Arteva Specialties, S.a.r.l., a subsidiari{@®a (“Arteva Specialties”), pled guilty to a crimal violation of
the Sherman Act relating to anti-competitive contdaiowing the 1998 Sale. Shortly thereafter, vas polyester
staple customers filed approximately 50 civil antist lawsuits against KoSa and Arteva Specialties)e of which
alleged anti-competitive conduct prior to the 188e. In a complaint filed on November 3, 2003hia United
States District Court for the Southern DistriciN#w York, Koch Industries, Inc. et al. v. Hoechst Aktiengdiist et
al., No. 03-cv-8679, Koch Industries, Inc., KoSa, AgeSpecialties and Arteva Services S.a.r.l. sotggtdvery
from Hoechst and the Celanese Entities exceediid $8llion. In the complaint, the plaintiffs allegielaims of
fraud, unjust enrichment and indemnification faaneed liabilities and for breach of contractuadresentations and
warranties under the APA. Both parties filed mosidor summary judgment in 2009. On July 19, 20t46,dourt
granted in part and denied in part the pendinganstiThe court dismissed the plaintiffs’ claimsfiaud and unjust
enrichment, which also eliminated plaintiffs’ clairfor punitive damages. The court also held thapthintiffs
cannot recover damages for liabilities arising @uhe operation of the polyester staple businessrired after the
1998 Sale. The plaintiffs can recover damagedh@icosts of defending and settling civil antitrastions brought
against them to the extent such damages arosd the operation of the polyester staple busine&s po the 1998
Sale (i.e., “Retained Liabilities” as defined iretAPA). The plaintiffs have alleged that they pajgroximately
$135 million for the costs of settling and defergdboth pre- and post-1998 Sale civil antitrustati The court
reserved for trial the calculation and allocatiérmaoy damages to which the plaintiffs would be thedi under the
relevant sections of the APA. Because of insuffitiaformation, including that contained in the oet, we are
unable to estimate the amount of the Company’sflrsthis matter. The court also preserved fol ttia plaintiffs’
claim for breach of contractual representationswwadanties under the APA. No date has been séti&br The
Company is actively defending this matter.
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Acetic Acid Patent Infringement Matter

On May 9, 1999, Celanese International Corpordiled a private criminal action stylddelanese
International Corporation v. China Petrochemical\dopment Corporatioagainst China Petrochemical
Development Corporation (“CPDC”) in the Taiwan Khamg District Court alleging that CPDC infringe&l@nese
International Corporation’s patent covering the ofanture of acetic acid. Celanese Internationap@@tion also
filed a supplementary civil brief that, in view dfianges in Taiwanese patent laws, was subsequemierted to a
civil action alleging damages against CPDC based period of infringement of ten years, 1991-200%) based o
CPDC'’s own data that was reported to the Taiwaresarities and exchange commission. Celanese &tienal
Corporation’s patent was held valid by the Taiwangastent office. On August 31, 2005, the Distriou@ held that
CPDC infringed Celanese International Corporati@tstic acid patent and awarded Celanese Intenatio
Corporation approximately $28 million (plus inte)ef®er the period of 1995 through 1999. In OctoB@68, the
High Court, on appeal, reversed the District Cau$28 million award to the Company. The Companyeafgd to
the Superior Court in November 2008, and the caumanded the case to the Intellectual Property tGoudune 4,
2009. On January 16, 2006, the District Court aedr@elanese International Corporation $800,000s(jplterest)
for the year 1990. In January 2009, the High Caurtappeal, affirmed the District Court’s award &fDC
appealed on February 5, 2009 to the Supreme Gdanrfune 29, 2007, the District Court awarded Cslane
International Corporation $60 million (plus intef)efr the period of 2000 through 2005. CPDC appeahis ruling
and on July 21, 2009, the High Court ruled in CP®favor. The Company appealed to the Supreme @adrin
December 2009, the case was remanded to the bitelleProperty Court.

Workers Compensation Claims

The Company has been provided with notices of ddiled with the South Carolina Workers’
Compensation Commission and the North Carolinagtvéti Commission. The notices of claims identifrious
alleged injuries to current and former employeésirag from alleged exposure to undefined chemiatitsurrent an
former plant sites in South Carolina and North Gaeo As of December 31, 2009, there were 950 dgiending.
The Company has reserves for defense costs rétathdse matters.

Asbestos Claim

As of December 31, 2009, Celanese Ltd. and/or CNddidgs, Inc., both US subsidiaries of the Company,
are defendants in approximately 526 asbestos dasesg the year ended December 31, 2009, 56 neescaere
filed against the Company, 90 cases were resofvedtll case was added after further analysis bydeutsunsel.
Because many of these cases involve numerousiffiaitite Company is subject to claims significgriti excess of
the number of actual cases. The Company has resknvdefense costs related to claims arising frloese matters.
The Company believes that there is no material exporelated to these matters.

Award Proceedings in relation to Domination Agreemat and Squeeze-Out

On October 1, 2004, a Domination Agreement betwaslanese GmbH and the Purchaser became
operative, pursuant to which the Purchaser becdiingated to offer to acquire all outstanding Ce&mbH
shares from the minority shareholders of Celanasbl&in return for payment of fair cash compensafi@qgueeze-
Out”). The amount of this fair cash compensatiois @etermined to be4d.92 per share, plus interest, in accord:
with applicable German law. Until the Squeeze-Oaswegistered in the commercial register in Gerntany
December 22, 2006, any minority shareholder whotetenot to sell its shares to the Purchaser witteeito
remain a shareholder of Celanese GmbH and to reéeimn the
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Purchaser a gross guaranteed annual payment simaitss of €3.27 per Celanese GmbH share lessrceoiqiorate
taxes in lieu of any dividend.

The amounts of the fair cash compensation andeofttaranteed annual payment offered under the
Domination Agreement as well as the Squeeze-Oupeosation are under court review in two separateiap
award proceedings. The amounts of the fair castpeosation and of the guaranteed annual paymenedftsmder
the Domination Agreement may be increased in spawgiard proceedings initiated by minority shareleotg which
may further reduce the funds the Purchaser camwiteemake available to the Company. As of MarchZ8®5,
several minority shareholders of Celanese GmbHithitidted special award proceedings seeking thetsoeview
of the amounts of the fair cash compensation antdeofjuaranteed annual payment offered under timeifixdion
Agreement. As a result of these proceedings, tteuabof the fair cash consideration and the guaethainnual
payment offered under the Domination Agreementa el increased by the court so that all minorigreholders,
including those who have already tendered theireshmto the mandatory offer and have receiveddineash
compensation could claim the respective higher artsoT he court dismissed all of these proceedindgarch
2005 on the grounds of inadmissibility. Thirty-tarelaintiffs appealed the dismissal, and in Jan2a66, twenty-
three of these appeals were granted by the colety Were remanded back to the court of first instamwhere the
valuation will be further reviewed. On December 2@06, the court of first instance appointed areeixip help
determine the value of Celanese GmbH. In the dustrter of 2007, certain minority shareholders thaeived
€66.99 per share as fair cash compensation alsbdilard proceedings challenging the amount thesived as fai
cash compensation. The case remains pending khbfomurt of the first instance.

The Company received applications for the commerecewf award proceedings filed by 79 shareholders
against the Purchaser with the Frankfurt Districti€ requesting the court to set a higher amounttf® Squeeze-
Out compensation. The motions are based on vaailbeged shortcomings and mistakes in the valuaifd@elanes:
GmbH done for purposes of the Squeeze-Out. On Magd07, the court of first instance appointed @rmn
representative for those shareholders that havéledtan application on their own.

Should the court set a higher value for the Squéa#ecompensation, former Celanese GmbH sharet®lder
who ceased to be shareholders of Celanese Gmbkb dine Squeeze-Out are entitled, pursuant to kesetht
agreement between the Purchaser and certain f@elanese GmbH shareholders, to claim for theireshtre
higher of the compensation amounts determined &g dlurt in these different proceedings. Paymemiseth
shareholders already received as compensatiohdarshares will be offset so that those sharehsiad#o ceased
be shareholders of Celanese GmbH due to the Sqadzare not entitled to more than the higher efamount set
in the two court proceedings.

The Purchaser and Celanese GmbH have entered m&@w domination agreement on March 26, 2010 w
became effective on April 9, 2010 (the “Dominatisgreement 11”). Under the Domination Agreementtiie
Purchaser is required, among other things, to cosgie Celanese GmbH for any annual loss incuretdrmined
in accordance with German accounting requiremént§elanese GmbH at the end of the fiscal yearhithvthe
loss was incurred. This obligation to compensatar@se GmbH for annual losses will apply duringghgre term
of the Domination Agreement Il. If Celanese GmbkElrs losses during any period of the operative w&frthe
Domination Agreement Il and if such losses leadrit@nnual loss of Celanese GmbH at the end of iaey §iscal
year during the term of the Domination Agreementié Purchaser will be obligated to make a coordmg cast
payment to Celanese GmbH to the extent that thpeotise annual loss is not fully compensated fotHzy
dissolution of profit reserves accrued at the l@feCelanese GmbH during the term of the Dominafigreement
II. The Purchaser may be able to reduce or avatl payments to Celanese GmbH by off-setting againgt loss
compensation claims by Celanese GmbH any valualieterclaims against Celanese GmbH that the Purchaes)
have. If the Purchaser is obligated to make caghmpats to Celanese GmbH to cover an annual lossyayenot
have sufficient funds to make payments on our itetliiess when due and, unless the Purchaser itoati¢ain
funds from a
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source other than annual profits of Celanese Gnilhid,Purchaser may not be able to satisfy its otiigdo fund
such shortfall.

Guarantees

The Company has agreed to guarantee or indemnityglrties for environmental and other liabilities
pursuant to a variety of agreements, includingteease business divestiture agreements, leaselgensettt
agreements and various agreements with affiliabedpanies. Although many of these obligations contadonetary
and/or time limitations, others do not provide sligfitations.

As indemnification obligations often depend on dleeurrence of unpredictable future events, theréutu
costs associated with them cannot be determingtdsaime.

The Company has accrued for all probable and redpestimable losses associated with all known
matters or claims that have been brought to ientitin. These known obligations include the follogui

» Demerger Obligations

The Company has obligations to indemnify Hoechsd, its legal successors, for various liabilitiesl@nthe
Demerger Agreement, including for environmentabiliies associated with contamination arising untie
divestiture agreements entered into by Hoechst prithe demerger.

The Company’s obligation to indemnify Hoechst, @&sdegal successors, is subject to the following
thresholds:

« The Company will indemnify Hoechst, and itgdésuccessors, against those liabilities up to
€250 million;

* Hoechst, and its legal successors, will beasé liabilities exceeding €250 million, howeves th
Company will reimburse Hoechst, and its legal sasoes, for one-third of those liabilities for amtsithat exceed
€750 million in the aggregate.

The aggregate maximum amount of environmental imdfécations under the remaining divestiture
agreements that provide for monetary limits is agpnately €750 million. Three of the divestiturer@gments do
not provide for monetary limits.

Based on the estimate of the probability of losdaurthis indemnification, the Company had reseofes
$32 million and $27 million as of December 31, 2@®@ 2008, respectively, for this contingency. Véhibie
Company is unable to reasonably determine the pilityaof loss or estimate such loss under an indiication,
the Company has not recognized any related lisdslit

The Company has also undertaken in the Demergerehgent to indemnify Hoechst and its legal succe
for liabilities that Hoechst is required to disaparincluding tax liabilities, which are associatgth businesses that
were included in the demerger but were not demedgedo legal restrictions on the transfers of sterns. These
indemnities do not provide for any monetary or tiingtations. The Company has not provided for eegerves
associated with this indemnification as it is nagl@able or estimable. The Company has not mad@ayments to
Hoechst or its legal successors during the yeatsdeBecember 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively,ninection witk
this indemnification.
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« Divestiture Obligations

The Company and its predecessor companies agréedetmnify third-party purchasers of former
businesses and assets for various pre-closing toamgli as well as for breaches of representatiwasanties and
covenants. Such liabilities also include environtaklability, product liability, antitrust and ogh liabilities. These
indemnifications and guarantees represent starwentlactual terms associated with typical divestitagreements
and, other than environmental liabilities, the Campdoes not believe that they expose the Compaapyt
significant risk. As of December 31, 2009 and 2G68,Company has reserves in the aggregate of $§8@mand
$33 million, respectively, for these matters.

The Company has divested numerous businessestriveras and facilities through agreements containing
indemnifications or guarantees to the purchasesnyMf the obligations contain monetary and/or tiinétations,
ranging from one year to thirty years. The aggregatount of guarantees provided for under thesseaggnts is
approximately $1.9 billion as of December 31, 200ther agreements do not provide for any monetatyne
limitations.

Purchase Obligation:

In the normal course of business, the Company &irits commitments to purchase goods and servioer
a fixed period of time. The Company maintains a bernof “take-or-pay” contracts for purchases of raaterials
and utilities. As of December 31, 2009, there warstanding future commitments of $1.7 billion unde
take-or-pay contracts. The Company recognized $illiomof losses related to take-or-pay contractri@mation
costs for the year ended December 31, 2009 refatdtk Company’s Pardies, France Project of Clo&ge
Note 18). The Company does not expect to incumaaterial losses undtake-or-pay contractual arrangements
unrelated to the Pardies, France Project of Clofaiditionally, as of December 31, 2009, there watheer
outstanding commitments of $713 million represemtimintenance and service agreements, energy #ityd ut
agreements, consulting contracts and software agnets.

In April 2007, Southern Chemical Corporation (“Swerin”) filed a petition in the 190 Judicial District
Court of Harris County, Texas styled Southern CleaiCorporation v. Celanese Ltd. (Cause
No. 200°-25490), seeking declaratory judgment relatingitoterms of a multi-year supply contract. The tri@rt
granted the Company’s motion for summary judgmemfiarch 2008 dismissing Southern’s claims. In Sajpier
2009, the intermediate Texas appellate court redettse trial court decision and remanded the aatieettrial court
The Texas Supreme Court subsequently declineddaottes’ requests that it hear the case. On Aubgis?010,
Southern filed a second amended petition addifgimdor breach of contract and seeking damagas in
unspecified amount from the Company. Trial has Issgrior August 2011. The Company does not beliege
contractual interpretations set forth by Southeamehmerit and is vigorously defending the matter.
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25. Supplemental Cash Flow Information
The following table represents supplemental cash fhformation for cash and non-cash activities:

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Taxes, net of refunc 17 9¢ 18:
Interest, net of amounts capitaliz 20¢ 25¢ 414
Noncash investing and financing activit
Fair value adjustment to securities available &de snet of tas 3 (25) 17
Capital lease obligatior 38 10z 80
Accrued capital expenditur 9) (7 18
Asset retirement obligatior 30 8 4
Accrued Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocation ci 22 17 19

1) Amount includes premiums paid on early redemptibdebt and related issuance costs, net of amounts
capitalized, of $217 million for the year ended Beber 31, 2007

26.Business and Geographical Segmen

Business Segmen

The Company operates through the following busisegsnents:

» Advanced Engineered Materials

The Company’s Advanced Engineered Materials segoherelops, produces and supplies a broad portfolio
of high performance technical polymers for applaain automotive and electronics products as aglbther
consumer and industrial applications. The Compamyits strategic affiliates are a leading partioipa the global
technical polymers industry. The primary produdt&\dvanced Engineered Materials are used in a braade of
products including automotive components, electarappliances, industrial applications, battepasators,
conveyor belts, filtration equipment, coatings, meatldevices, electrical and electronics.

» Consumer Specialties

The Company’s Consumer Specialties segment cordithie Acetate Products and Nutrinova businesses.
The Acetate Products business primarily producdssapplies acetate tow, which is used in the prooliof filter
products. The Company also produces acetate flakehvis processed into acetate fiber in the forra tdw band.
The Company’s Nutrinova business produces and Sehett®, a high intensity sweetener, and food protection
ingredients, such as sorbates, for the food, bgeesiad pharmaceuticals industries.

* Industrial Specialties

The Company’s Industrial Specialties segment inetuthe Emulsions, PVOH and EVA Performance
Polymers businesses. The Company’s Emulsions kassise global leader which produces a broad ptoduc
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portfolio, specializing in vinyl acetate ethylemawsions, and is a recognized authority on low V@@atile
organic compounds), an environmentally-friendlyhtemlogy. As a global leader, the Company’s PVOH imss
produced a broad portfolio of performance PVOH citcaia engineered to meet specific customer requargs The
Company’s emulsions and PVOH products are usedniitl@ array of applications including paints andtiags,
adhesives, building and construction, glass fitextjles and paper. EVA Performance Polymers offiecemplete
line of low-density polyethylene and specialty ééme vinyl acetate resins and compounds. EVA Perdoice
Polymers’ products are used in many applicationkiding flexible packaging films, lamination filnrgducts, hot
melt adhesives, medical tubing and devices, automotrpet and solar cell encapsulation films.

In July 2009, the Company completed the sale ®®WU©OH business to Sekisui (Note 4).

* Acetyl Intermediates

The Company’s Acetyl Intermediates segment prodaoessupplies acetyl products, including acetid,aci
VAM, acetic anhydride and acetate esters. Thesgugts are generally used as starting materialsdiarants,
paints, adhesives, coatings, medicines and moher@hemicals produced in this business segmerurgasic
solvents and intermediates for pharmaceuticalcaljural and chemical products.

» Other Activities

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administrathetivities
such as legal, accounting and treasury functiodsraerest income or expense associated with fingractivities
of the Company, and the captive insurance companies

The business segment management reporting andbiogtisystems are based on the same accounting
policies as those described in the summary of fgmit accounting policies in Note 2. The Compavgleates
performance based on operating profit, net earn(iogs), cash flows and other measures of finapadiormance
reported in accordance with US GAAP.

Sales and revenues related to transactions betwesmess segments are generally recorded at Vihlaes
approximate third-party selling prices.
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Advanced
Engineerec Consumer Industrial Acetyl Other
Materials Specialties Specialties Intermediates Activities Eliminations Consolidatec
(In $ millions)
As Adjusted (Note 31
Year ended December 31, 2C
Net sales 80¢ 1,0841) 97¢ 2,60:1 z (389 5,08:
Other (charges) gains, r (18) 9) 4 91 22 ® — (13€)
Equity in net earnings (loss)
affiliates 78 1 — 5 15 — 99
Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before te 114 28¢ 89 10z (342) — 251
Depreciation and amortizatic 73 50 51 12z 11 — 30¢
Capital expenditure 27 50 45 36 9 — 1672
Goodwill and intangible asse 38t 29¢ 62 34¢ — — 1,09z
Total asset 2,26¢ 1,08: 74C 1,98t 2,33¢ — 8,41
As Adjusted (Note 31
Year ended December 31, 2C
Net sales 1,061 1,15t 1,40¢€ 3,87t 2 (67€) 6,82
Other (charges) gains, r (29 2 ?3) (78) 4 — (10¢)
Equity in net earnings (loss) of
affiliates 15¢ — — 3 14 — 17z
Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before te 19C 237 47 31z (359 — 43¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 76 53 62 15C 9 — 35C
Capital expenditure 55 49 67 86 10 — 2672
Goodwill and intangible asse 39¢ 30¢ 73 365 — — 1,143
Total asset 1,91¢ 99t 90:< 2,19¢ 1,15(C — 7,15¢

@ Includes $389 million, $676 million and $660 milio@f intersegment sales eliminated in consolidatorrihe
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 ctasghe.

(@) Excludes expenditures related to the relocatiom@iCompany’s Ticona plant in Kelsterbach (Note 28]
includes a decrease in accrued capital expenditdr®3 million and $7 million for the years endedd@mber 3:
2009 and 2008, respectively (see Note

®) Includes $10 million of insurance recoveries reedifrom the Company’s captive insurance compaiesed

to the Edmonton, Alberta, Canada facility that @tiates in consolidatior

As Adjusted (Note 31

Year ended December 31, 2C

Net sales

Other (charges) gains, r

Equity in net earnings (loss) of
affiliates

Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before te

Depreciation and amortizatic

Capital expenditure

Advanced
Engineerec Consumetr Industrial Acetyl Other
Materials Specialtie: Specialtie: Intermediates Activities Eliminations Consolidatec
(In $ millions)
1,03( 1,111 1,34¢ 3,61 2 (660) 6,44+
(4) 4 (23 72 99 ® — (58)
12< 3 — 6 18 — 15C
26( 23t 28 61: (69¢) — 437
69 51 59 10€ 6 — 291
59 43 63 13C 11 — 30€2)
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@ Includes $389 million, $676 million and $660 miliof intersegment sales eliminated in consolidatowrthe
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 ctasghe.

@ Excludes expenditures related to the relocatiath@fCompany’s Ticona plant in Kelsterbach (Note &%)
includes a decrease in accrued capital expendiofr®8 million and $7 million for the years endedd@mber 3:
2009 and 2008, respectively (see Note

® Includes $35 million of insurance recoveries reedifrom the Company’s captive insurance compaiesed
to the Clear Lake, Texas facility (Note that eliminates in consolidatio

Geographical Segments

Revenues and noncurrent assets are presenteddraiezllocation of the business. The following ¢abl
presents net sales based on the geographic loadtthbe Company’s facilities:

Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)

Net sales
us 1,26: 1,71 1,75:
Internationa 3,82( 5,104 4,69(
Total 5,08: 6,82: 6,444
Significant international net sales sources incl
Germany 1,73 2,46¢ 2,34¢
China 46( 398 182
Singapore 513 78¢ 762
Belgium 45¢ 47¢€ 29t
Canade 17z 27¢€ 26€
Mexico 271 391 34¢

The following table presents property, plant andigepent, net based on the geographic locationef th
Company’s facilities:

As of December 31
2009 2008
(In $ millions)

Property, plant and equipment, |

us 63 73
Internationa 2,16% 1,73

Total 2,791 2,47(

Significant international property, plant and equént, net sources inclus

Germany 1,07¢ 682
China 51€ 492
Singapore 98 111
Belgium 27 24
Canadz 131 117
Mexico 103 10k
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27.Transactions and Relationships with Affiliates andRelated Parties

The Company is a party to various transactions affifiated companies. Entities in which the Compaas
an investment accounted for under the cost or yquétthod of accounting, are considered affiliates; transactior
or balances with such companies are considerdatdftransactions. The following table repres¢nésCompany’s
transactions with affiliates for the periods prdsdn

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Purchases from affiliate(1)(2) 14 14 12
Sales to affiliate(t) 6 36 12€
Interest income from affiliate 1 2 1
Interest expense to affiliat 1 9 7

() Purchases and sales from/to affiliates are accduoteat prices which, in the opinion of the Compan
approximate those charged to tl-party customers for similar goods or servic

@ Primarily includes utilities and services purchafedh InfraServ Hoechs
Refer to Note 8 for additional information relateddividends received from affiliates.
The following table represents the Company’s batangith affiliates for the periods presented:
As of December 31

2009 2008
(In $ millions)

Trade and other receivables from affilia — 8
Current notes receivable (including interest) fraffiliates 12 9
Noncurrent notes receivable (including interesijrfraffiliates 7 9
Total receivables from affiliate 18 _ 26
Accounts payable and other liabilities due affédis 15 18
Shor-term borrowings from affiliate 85 10z
Total due affiliates 10C 121

The Company has agreements with certain affiligiggmarily InfraServ entities, whereby excess &ff#
cash is lent to and managed by the Company, ablarinterest rates governed by those agreements.

For the year ended 2007, the Company made payretits Advisor of $7 million in accordance with the
sponsor services agreement dated January 26, 20@mmended. These payments were related to thefghke oxo
products and derivatives businesses and the atquoisi APL (Note 4).
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28.Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
As Adjusted (Note 31)
(In $ millions, except for share and per share dafe

Amounts attributable to Celane

Corporation
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic 494 494 371 371 32¢ 32¢
Earnings (loss) from discontinued
operations 4 4 (90 (90 90 90
Net earnings (loss 49¢ 49¢ 281 281 41€ 41€
Less: cumulative preferred sto
dividend (10) — (10) — (10) —
Net earnings (loss) available to comn
shareholder 48€ 49¢ 271 281 40€ 41€
Weighted average shar— basic 143,688,74 143,688,74 148,350,27 148,350,27 154,475,02 154,475,02
Dilutive stock option: 1,167,92; 2,559,26: 4,344,64.
Dilutive restricted stock unit 172,24¢ 504,43¢ 362,13(
Assumed conversion of preferred st 12,086,60 12,057,89 12,046,20
Weighted average shar— diluted 143,688,74 157,115,52 148,350,27 163,471,87 154,475,02 171,227,99
Per shar
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic 3.37 3.14 2.44 2.27 2.0t 1.9C
Earnings (loss) from discontinued
operations 0.03 0.0% (0.67) (0.55) 0.5¢ 0.5%
Net earnings (loss 3.4C 3.17 1.8 1.72 2.6% 2.4%

The following securities were not included in tlenputation of diluted net earnings per share ds éflect
would have been antidilutive:

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Stock options 2,433,51 2,298,15 336,13
Restricted stock unit 302,63! 90,62°¢ —
Total 2,736,15I 2,388,78: 336,13

29.Ticona Kelsterbach Plant Relocatior

In November 2006, the Company finalized a settldragneement with the Frankfurt, Germany, Airport
(“Fraport”) to relocate the Kelsterbach, Germangohia business, included in the Advanced Engineldiaérials
segment, resolving several years of legal dispitiesed to the planned Fraport expansion. As dtrebthe
settlement, the Company will transition Ticona'mgtions from Kelsterbach to the Hoechst Indusk&dk in the
Rhine Main area in Germany by mid-2011. Under thigiral agreement, Fraport agreed to pay Ticonata bf
€670 million over a five-year period to offset thests associated with the transition of the busifress its current
location and the closure of the Kelsterbach plemEebruary 2009, the Company announced the Frappgrvisory
board approved the acceleration of the 2009 an@ pagments of €200 million and €140 million, respesy,
required by the settlement agreement signed in 208&. In February 2009, the Company received @digted
amount of €322 million ($412 million) under this
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agreement. In addition, the Company received €38omi$75 million) in value-added tax from Frapevhich was
remitted to the tax authorities in April 2009. in& 2008, the Company received €200 million ($31lliam) from
Fraport under this agreement. Amounts received ffoaport are accounted for as deferred proceedarand
included in noncurrent Other liabilities in the sofidated balance sheets.

Below is a summary of the financial statement inhigasociated with the Ticona Kelsterbach plant

relocation:
Total From
Year Ended
December 31, Inception Through
2009 2008 December 31, 20C
(In $ millions)
Proceeds received from Frap 41 31 74¢
Costs expense 16 12 33
Costs capitalize 37z 20z 61€

(@ Includes increase in accrued capital expendituf&2® million and $17 million for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectiv

30.Insurance Recoveries

In May 2007, the Company announced that it hadrgatamned outage at its Clear Lake, Texas acetit aci
facility. At that time, the Company originally exgied the outage to last until the end of May. Upestart of the
facility, additional operating issues were idetifiwhich necessitated an extension of the outageriner, more
extensive repairs. In July 2007, the Company ancedithat the further repairs were unsuccessfuestart of the
unit. All repairs were completed in early AugusDZ@nd normal production capacity resumed. Dutiregyears
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Companydext®6 million and $38 million, respectively, ofirance
recoveries from its reinsurers in partial satistactof claims that the Company made based on lagsedting from
the outage. These insurances recoveries are irttlnd@ther (charges) gains, net in the consolidatatements of
operations (Note 18).

In October 2008, the Company declared force majenri¢s specialty polymers products produced at its
EVA Performance Polymers facility in Edmonton, Aitase Canada as a result of certain events and guéese
cessation of production. The Company replaced dathbing-lived assets during 2009. Any contingeattilities
associated with the outage may be mitigated byCthmpany’s insurance policies.

31.Subsequent Event:

Dividends

On January 5, 2010, the Company declared a cagtediy of $0.265625 per share on its Preferred Stock
amounting to $3 million and a cash dividend of #0p@r share on its Series A common stock amoumding
$6 million. Both cash dividends are for the pericam November 2, 2009 to January 31, 2010 and waie on
February 1, 2010 to holders of record as of JanL&r®010.

On April 5, 2010, the Company declared a cash divilof $0.04 per share on its Common Stock amay
to $6 million. The cash dividends are for the paffimm February 1, 2010 to April 30, 2010 and wea&l on
May 1, 2010 to holders of record as of April 15120

On April 26, 2010, the Company announced that d@arB of Directors approved a 25% increase in the
Company’s quarterly Common Stock cash dividend. Dhectors increased the quarterly dividend rate
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from $0.04 to $0.05 per share of Common Stock qnaaterly basis and $0.16 to $0.20 per share ofrf@omStock
on an annual basis. The new dividend rate is aggliicto dividends payable beginning in August 2010.

On July 1, 2010, the Company declared a cash dididé $0.05 per share on its Common Stock amounting
to $8 million. The cash dividends are for the pgfimm May 1, 2010 to July 31, 2010 and were paidhagust 2,
2010 to holders of record as of July 15, 2010.

Preferred Stock

On February 1, 2010, the Company delivered notidke holders of its 4.25% Convertible Perpetual
Preferred Stock (the “Preferred Stock”) that it walling for the redemption of all 9.6 million otasding shares of
Preferred Stock. Holders of the Preferred Stoclevesttitled to convert each share of Preferred Stuok
1.2600 shares of the Company’s Series A CommorkSpae value $0.0001 per share (“Common Stock st
time prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on Fahry 19, 2010. As of such date, holders of PreteBtock had
elected to convert 9,591,276 shares of PreferreckShto an aggregate of 12,084,942 shares of Camfstock. Thi
8,724 shares of Preferred Stock that remainedandstg after such conversions were redeemed bg dhepany on
February 22, 2010 for 7,437 shares of Common Siackccordance with the terms of the PreferredStioc
addition to the shares of Common Stock issuedspeet of the shares of Preferred Stock convertddeseemed,
the Company paid cash in lieu of fractional shafé& Company recorded expense of less than $lomiti 2010 ir
Additional paid-in capital related to the conversand redemption of the Preferred Stock

Treasury Stock

During 2010, the Company repurchased a total af3,4D2 shares of its Series A common stock at an
average purchase price of $27.82 per share faabhab$41 million. The Company has the abilityrépurchase an
additional $81 million of Series A common stock &®n the Board of Director’s authorization of $36illion.

Purchase Obligation:

During the first quarter of 2010, the Company sestdly completed an amended raw material purchase
agreement with a supplier who had filed for bankzypUnder the original contract, the Company madieance
payments in exchange for preferential pricing onade volumes of material purchases over the [ffthe contract.
The cancellation of the original contract and #rents of the subsequent amendment resulted in thgp&uy
accelerating amortization in 2010 on the unamattizepayment balance of $22 million. The accelérate
amortization was recorded in 2010 to Cost of sate®llows: $20 million was recorded in the Acdtylermediates
segment and $2 million was recorded in the Advarttegineered Materials segment.

Ventures

The Company indirectly owns a 25% interest in itgibhal Methanol Company (“Ibn Sina”) affiliate
through CTE Petrochemicals Company (“CTE)jpint venture with Texas Eastern Arabian Corpgoraktd. (whict
also indirectly owns 25%). The remaining interestin Sina is held by Saudi Basic Industries Caaion
(“SABIC"). SABIC and CTE entered into the Ibn Sijént venture agreement in 1981. In April 2010, @@mpany
announced that Ibn Sina will construct a 50,000p0lyacetal (“POM”) production facility in Saudi Abia and that
the term of the joint venture agreement was extenuiil 2032. Upon
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successful startup of the POM facility, the Compauydirect economic interest in lbn Sina will iease from 25%
to 32.5%. SABIC’s economic interest will remain bhaoged.

In connection with this transaction, the Comparaseessed the factors surrounding the accountinigoehet
for this investment and changed the accounting fiteencost method of accounting for investment$iéodquity
method of accounting for investments beginning Apr2010. Financial information relating to thisrestment for
prior periods has been retrospectively adjusteaptaly the equity method of accounting. Effectiverifp, 2010, the
Company moved its investment in the Ibn Sina afidifrom its Acetyl Intermediates segment to itv#@uted
Engineered Materials segment to reflect the chamgfee affiliate’s business dynamics and growth opportunities
result of the future construction of the POM fdyilBusiness segment information for prior periodduded in
Note 26 has been retrospectively adjusted to rettecchange

The retrospective effect of applying the equity moet of accounting to this investment to the conlsaéd
statements of operations is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
As As Adjusted for Effect As As Adjusted for Effect As As Adjusted for Effect
Originally Retrospective of Originally Retrospective of Originally Retrospective of
Reported Application Change Reported Application Change Reported Application Change

(In $ millions, except per share data

Equity in net earnings (loss) of

affiliates 48 99 51 54 17z 11¢€ 82 15C 68
Dividend income — cost

investment 98 57 (41) 167 48 (119 11€ 38 (78)
Earnings (loss) from continuing

operations before te 241 251 10 434 432 1) 447 437 (10)
Earnings (loss) from continuing

operations 484 494 10 371 37C 1) 337 327 (10)
Net earnings (loss 48¢ 49¢ 10 281 28C (@) 4217 417 (10)
Net earnings (loss) attributable to

Celanese Corporatic 48¢ 49¢ 10 282 281 1) 42€ 41€ (10)
Net earnings (loss) available to

common shareholde 47¢ 48¢ 10 27z 271 (@) 41€ 40€ (10)

Earnings (loss) per common
share— basic

Continuing operation 3.3C 3 0.07 2.44 2.44 - 211 2.0t (0.06)
Discontinued operatior 0.0¢ 0.08 - (0.61) (0.67) - 0.5¢ 0.5€ -
Net earnings (loss— basic 3.3¢ 3.4C 0.07 1.82 1.8 - 2.6€ 2.68 (0.06)

Earnings (loss) per common
share— diluted

Continuing operation 3.0¢ 3.14 0.0€ 2.2¢ 227 (0.02) 1.9¢ 1.9C (0.0€)
Discontinued operatior 0.0% 0.0& - (0.55) (0.55) - 0.5% 0.58 -
Net earnings (loss— diluted 3.11 3.17 0.0€ L7z 1.7z (0.09) 2.4¢ 2.45 (0.06)
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The retrospective effect of applying the equity Imoet of accounting to this investment to the comlsaéd
balance sheet is as follows:

As of December 31
2009 2008
As As Adjusted for Effect As As Adjusted for Effect
Originally Retrospective of Originally Retrospective of
Reported Application Change Reported Application Change
(In $ millions)
Investments in affiliate 79C 792 2 78¢ 781 (8)
Total asset 8,41( 8,41: 2 7,16¢ 7,15¢ (8)
Retained earning 1,502 1,50¢ 3 1,047 1,04( (7)
Accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss), ne (65€) (660) (@) (579 (580) 1)
Total Celanese Corporation shareholder
equity 584 58¢ 2 182 174 (8)
Total shareholde’ equity 584 58€ 2 184 17¢€ (8)
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity 8,41( 8,41 2 7,16¢ 7,15¢ (8)

The retrospective effect of applying the equity moet of accounting to this investment to the conlsaéd
statement of cash flows is as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
As As Adjusted for Effect As As Adjusted for Effect As As Adjusted for Effect
Originally Retrospective of Originally ~ Retrospective of Originally Retrospective of
Reported Application Change  Reported Application Change  Reported Application Change
(In $ millions)
Net earnings (loss 48¢ 49¢ 10 281 28C Q) 427 417 (20
Adjustments to reconcile n
earnings (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activitie
Other, ne 22 12 (10) 36 37 1 2 8 10
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The retrospective effect of applying the equity Imoet of accounting to this investment to the busnes
segment financial information (Note 26) is as falfo

Year Ended December 31
2009 2007

As Adjusted 2008 As Adjusted
As for Effect As As Adjusted for Effect As for Effect
Originally ~ Retrospective of Originally Retrospective of Originally ~ Retrospective of
Reported Application Change Reported Application Change Reported Application Change
(In $ millions)

Advanced Engineered Materials

Earnings (loss) from continuing

operations before te 62 114 52 69 19C 121 18¢ 26C 71
Acetyl Intermediates Earnings

(loss) from continuing operatiol

before tax 144 10z (42 434 31z (122 694 61: (81)

Plant Closures

In April 2010, the Company announced it was consigea plan to consolidate its global acetate
manufacturing capabilities by proposing the closfriés acetate flake and tow manufacturing opereiin
Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom. The consolidat®désigned to strengthen the Company’s compepdsiion,
reduce fixed costs and align future production cijes with anticipated industry demand trends. €besolidation
is also driven by a global shift in product constioqp The Company would expect to serve its acetagtomers
under this proposal by optimizing its global protioic network, which includes facilities in Lanakéglgium;
Narrows, Virginia; and Ocotlan, Mexico, as wellthe Compan’s acetate affiliate facilities in China.

During the first quarter of 2010, the Company cadel that certain long-lived assets of the Spondon,
Derby, United Kingdom facility were partially impead. Accordingly, in 2010 the Company recorded lined
asset impairment losses of $72 million to Otheafgks) gains, net. The Spondon, Derby, United Kangéhacility
is included in the Consumer Specialties segment.

On August 24, 2010 the Company announced it hadlgded it will consolidate its global acetate
manufacturing capabilities by closing its acetéd&d and tow manufacturing operations in Spondarhp, United
Kingdom. The Company has been consulting with eggsls and their representatives since the annoyropdser
cessation of operations at the Spondon plant madgpadl 27, 2010. These consultations did not resua
demonstrated basis for viable continuing operatfonsicetate flake and tow operations at the sitetherefore, the
Company intends to cease operations in the lattergh 2011.

Acquisitions

On May 5, 2010, the Company acquired two produetdj Zenité® liquid crystal polymer (“LCP”) and
Thermx® polycyclohexylene-dimethylene terephthalate (“PCTfdm DuPont Performance Polymers. The
acquisition will continue to build upon the Companposition as a global supplier of high performancaterials
and technology-driven applications. These two pebtines broaden the Company’s Ticona EngineeriolgrRers
offerings within its Advanced Engineered Materiségiment, enabling the Company to respond to a ligolma
customer base, especially in the high growth atsdtand electronics application markets. Pro fofinancial
information since the acquisition date has not h@ewmided as the acquisition

77




Table of Contents

did not have a material impact on the Company’arfgial information. During 2010, the Company inedirr
$1 million in direct transaction costs as a resfithis acquisition.

The Company allocated the purchase price of thaisition to identifiable intangible assets acquibeded
on their estimated fair values. The excess of mselprice over the aggregate fair values was redaad goodwill.
Intangible assets were valued using the relief froyalty and discounted cash flow methodologiescivtaire
considered a Level 3 measurement under FASB ASGBaD. The relief from royalty method estimates th
Company’s theoretical royalty savings from ownguaiii the intangible asset. Key assumptions usékisrmodel
include discount rates, royalty rates, growth ratates projections and terminal value rates. Disteates, royalty
rates, growth rates and sales projections areshingptions most sensitive and susceptible to chasgigey require
significant management judgment. The key assumgtiged in the discounted cash flow valuation moddlide
discount rates, growth rates, cash flow projectams terminal value rates. Discount rates, groates and cash
flow projections are the most sensitive and susigieptio change as they require significant managejuelgment.
The Company, with the assistance of third-party&abn consultants, calculated the fair value efititangible
assets acquired to allocate the purchase priteaespective acquisition date.

The consideration paid for the product lines ardamounts of the intangible assets acquired rezedrit
the acquisition date are as follows:

Weighted
Average Life
(In years) (In $ millions)
Cash consideratic 46
Intangible assets acquir
Trademarks and trade nan indefinite 9
Developed technolog 10 7
Covenant not to compete and ot 3 11
Custome-related intangible asse 10 6
Goodwill 13
Total 46

In connection with the acquisition, the Company d@smitted to purchase certain inventory at a fitlate
valued at a range between $12 million and $17 omilli

Commitments and Contingencies

During 2010, the following litigation matters (Na2d) were updated to reflect new facts: Polyestepls
Antitrust Litigation; Award Proceedings in relatibtm Domination Agreement and Squeeze-Out; and Rseh
Obligations.

Interest Rate Risk Manageme!

On August 27, 2010 the Company executed an intesiessswap with a notional amount of $1.1 billiés. a
result of the swap, the Company has fixed the LIBfRion of $1.1 billion of the Company’s floatimgte debt at
1.7125% effective January 2, 2012 through Janua®p24.
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Debt Refinancing

On September 7, 2010, the Company announcednttiei process of issuing $400 million of senior
unsecured notes due in 2018 (the “Notes”) throtgylvholly-owned subsidiary Celanese US. The Notdde
senior unsecured obligations of Celanese US anGaonepany. The proceeds from this offering will lsed for
general corporate purposes, including the repaywfestisting senior secured credit facility indebtess. In
connection with this offering, the Company is segkio amend its existing senior credit facility,isfhconsists of
$2,280 million of US dollar denominated and €400iom of Euro-denominated term loans due in 2014, a
$600 million revolving credit facility terminatinig 2013 and a $228 million credit-linked revolvifagility
terminating in 2014. The proposed amendment wautthng other things, amend certain terms and congitf the
credit facilities and extend the maturity of ponisoof the facilities. The proposed transaction wWaxtend (i) the
maturity of a portion of the existing term loanQatober 2016 and (ii) the maturity of a portiortheé existing
revolving credit facility to October 2015. The Coamy also intends to repay approximately $200 nmll its term
loans using cash on hand. The extended faciliti#$w/subject to modified interest rates.
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Exhibit 99.2

BUSINESS

Overview

We are a leading global technology and specialtterreds company. We are one of the world’s largest
producers of acetyl products, which are intermedifiemicals, for nearly all major industries, adl a® a leading
global producer of high performance engineeredrpelg that are used in a variety of high-value esel-u
applications. As a recognized innovator in the cicata industry, we engineer and manufacture a wadesty of
products essential to everyday living. Our broaatlpct portfolio serves a diverse set of end-use&ketaincluding
paints and coatings, textiles, automotive applicetj consumer and medical applications, performantaestrial
applications, filter media, paper and packagingnaical additives, construction, consumer and inthlstdhesives,
and food and beverage applications. Our produnjeydeading global positions due to our large shafrglobal
production capacity, operating efficiencies, prefary production technology and competitive castcttires.

Our large and diverse global customer base corefisteajor companies in a broad array of industivgs.
hold geographically balanced global positions aadigipate in diversified end-use applications. ¥éenbine a
demonstrated track record of execution, strongoperénce built on shared principles and objectiaes, a clear
focus on growth and value creation. Known for ofieral excellence and execution of our businesdeggies, we
deliver value to customers around the globe witt-re class technologies.

Based in Dallas, Texas, our operations are prignfrdated in North America, Europe and Asia andssin
of 29 global production facilities (39, includingmaffiliates) and, as of June 30, 2010, employraximately
7,200 employees worldwide. For the twelve monthtdednJune 30, 2010, we generated net sales of $Ebléh
and Operating EBITDA of $1,042 million. The followg charts present a percentage of share breakdomat sale:
and Operating EBITDA by segment and net sales dipne in each case for the twelve months ended 30n2010

Operating EBITDA by Business
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Business Segments

We operate principally through four business segmekxdvanced Engineered Materials, Consumer
Specialties, Industrial Specialties and Acetyl tntediates. The table below illustrates each busisegment’s net
sales for the twelve months ended June 30, 20eksas each business segment’s major producteaddise

applications.

Advanced Engineerec

Materials Consumer Specialties Industrial Specialties Acetyl Intermediates
LTM June 30, 2010 Nel $1,023 million $1,057 million $976 million $2,539 million
Sales @
Key Products « Polyacetal products * Acetate tow » Conventional emulsionss Acetic acid
(“POM")
* Acetate flake * Vinyl acetate ethylene + Vinyl acetate
¢ Polyphenylene sulfide emulsions (“VAE") monomer (“VAM”)
(“PPS”) ¢ Sunet® sweetener
¢ Low-density ¢ Acetic anhydride
¢ Polybutylene e Sorbates polyethylene resins
terephthalate (“PBT") (“LDPE”) ¢ Acetaldehyde
« Long-fiber reinforced » Ethylene vinyl acetate « Ethyl acetate
thermoplastics (“LFT") (“EVA”) resins and
compounds « Butyl acetate
« Ultra-high molecular
weight polyethylene « Formaldehyde
(“GUR @")
¢ Liquid crystal polymer
(“LcpP)
Major End-Use ¢ Fuel system e Filter products « Photovoltaic cell ¢ Paints
Applications componentt systems ¢ Coatings
« Conveyor system * Beverage: e Paints ¢ Adhesives
« Battery separatol » Confections » Coatings ¢ Lubricants
« Electronics * Baked good: * Adhesives « Pharmaceutical
« Automotive safety * Textiles ¢ Films
systems
« Appliances » Paper finishin¢ « Textiles
¢ Electronics ¢ Flexible packagint ¢ Inks
¢ Filtrations ¢ Lamination product « Plasticizers
« Medical device: ¢ Medical tubing * Esters
¢ Telecommunication ¢ Automotive parts ¢ Solvents

(1) Consolidated net sales of $5,597 million for thelt'e months ended June 30, 2010 also includes Kiamrin
net sales from Other Activities, which is attriboi&to our captive insurance companies. Net Sale€dnsumer
Specialties and Acetyl Intermediates excludes iatgrment sales of $386 million for the twelve msrghded

June 30, 201(

Advanced Engineered Materials

Our Advanced Engineered Materials segment devetppsuces and supplies a broad portfolio of high
performance technical polymers for applicationumoaotive and electronics products, as well asratbasumer

and industrial applications. Together with our tgic affiliates, we are a leading participanttie global technical
polymers industry. The primary products of Advang&edjineered Materials are POM, PPS, PBT, LFT, GUWiRd
LCP. These materials are used in a broad rangedfipts including automotive components, electrgrappliance
and industrial applications. GURis used in battery separators, conveyor




belts, filtration equipment, coatings and medialides. Primary end uses for LCP are electricaledectronics.

Advanced Engineered Materials’ technical polymergenchemical and physical properties enabling them,
among other things, to withstand extreme tempegatuesist chemical reactions with solvents antstaind
fracturing or stretching. These products are usewide range of performance-demanding applicatiorthe
automotive and electronics sectors as well asharatonsumer and industrial goods.

Advanced Engineered Materials works in concert vtgtltustomers to enable innovations and develep ne
or enhanced products. Advanced Engineered Matddeises its efforts on developing new markets and
applications for its product lines, often develgpaustom formulations to satisfy the technical prmtessing
requirements of a customer’s applications. For gptapAdvanced Engineered Materials has collaboradddfuel
system suppliers to develop an acetal copolymdr thié chemical and impact resistance necessarithstand
exposure to hot diesel fuels in the new generaifa@ommon rail diesel engines. The product can aésased in
automotive fuel sender units where it remains stabkthe high operating temperatures present @c#injection
diesel engines and can meet the requirements afetllivegeneration of biofuels.

Prices for most of these products, particularlycgdized product grades for targeted applicatigesierally
reflect the value added in complex polymer chemigirecision formulation and compounding, and tkiemsive
application development services provided. Theseiafized products are not typically susceptibleytdlical
swings in pricing.

Sales from the Advanced Engineered Materials basingpresented 16%, 15% and 16% of our consoli
net sales for the years ended December 31, 2008, &td 2007, respectively. Operating EBITDA frora th
Advanced Engineered Materials business repres@dd 23% and 23% of our total Operating EBITDA (ering
the Other Activities segment) for the years endeddinber 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectivelgsSaim the
Advanced Engineered Materials business represd®dof our consolidated net sales for the twelvatm®ended
June 30, 2010. Operating EBITDA from the AdvancediBeering Materials business represented 30% rotiobal
operating EBITDA (excluding the Other Activitiesgseent) for the twelve months ended June 30, 2010.

Key Products

POM. Also known in the chemical industry as polyoxyhyé¢ne or polyacetal, POM is sold under the
trademark Hostaforrfi in all regions but North America, where it is saldder the trademark Celcén Polyplastics
and KEPCO are leading suppliers of POM and othginerering resins in the Asia-Pacific region. POMised for
mechanical parts, including door locks and sedtrhethanisms, in automotive applications and intetsal,
consumer and medical applications such as drugetglsystems and gears for large appliances. P@W¥opther
engineering resins, are manufactured in the As@fiPaegion by PolyPlastics, our 45%-owned strategnture
and KEPCO, our 50%-owned strategic venture.

The primary raw material for POM is formaldehyddjet is manufactured from methanol. Advanced
Engineered Materials currently purchases formaldetig the United States from our Acetyl Intermeeategment
and, in Europe, manufactures formaldehyde fromhmsed methanol.

Our strategic joint venture in Saudi Arabia, knoamNational Methanol Company or “Ibn Sina,” prodsice
methanol and methyl tertiary-butyl ether (“MTBEW.e recently announced the extension of our |bn [Riim
venture, including the construction of a new 50,80POM manufacturing facility in Saudi Arabia.dtmeering
and construction on the facility is expected toibég 2010.




LFT. Celstrar® and CompeP are long-fiber reinforced thermoplastics, which artgextra strength and
stiffness, making them more suitable for largetgtran conventional thermoplastics and both prtsdaie used in
automotive, transportation and industrial applmadi

GUR®. A highly engineered material designed for heduyy automotive and industrial applications, G
is used in items such as car battery separatotganeustrial conveyor belts and specialty medara consumer
applications, such as sports equipment and prath&JR® micro powder grades are used for high-performance
filters, membranes, diagnostic devices, coatingsaattitives for thermoplastics and elastomers. GUiBers are
also used in protective ballistic applications.

Polyesters. Our products also include certain polyesters sisc@elane® PBT, CelaneX® PET, VandaP,
a series of PBT-polyester blends and Riteflexa thermoplastic polyester elastomer, used in hatfide variety of
automotive, electrical and consumer applicatiomsluiding ignition system parts, radiator grillelgotrical switches
appliance and sensor housings, LEDs and techrieakf Raw materials for polyesters vary. Base mms, such
as dimethyl terephthalate and PTA, are widely adé with pricing dependent on broader polyesterfand
packaging resins market conditions. Smaller volgpecialty co-monomers for these products are tilpisapplied
by a limited number of companies.

Liquid crystal polymers, such as Vecfrand Zenite® , are used in electrical and electronics applicetio
and for precision parts with thin walls and compéé&apes or in high heat cookware applications.

Fortron®, a PPS product, is used in a wide variety of aotora and other applications, especially those
requiring heat and/or chemical resistance, inclgdirel system parts, radiator pipes and halogep laousings,
often replacing metal. Other possible applicatietds include norwoven filtration devices such as coal fired po'
plants. Fortror® is manufactured by Fortron Industries LLC (“ForttprAdvanced Engineered Materials’ 50%-
owned strategic venture with Kureha Corporatiodagan.

Facilities

Between Advanced Engineered Materials and itsafi$, we have polymerization, compounding and
research and technology centers in Germany, Bi@iha, South Korea, Japan, the United States andi&rabia.




Geographic Regions

The following table illustrates the destinatiortioé net sales of the Advanced Engineered Matesedsen
by geographic region.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination—Adveced Engineered Materials

Year Ended
December 31
2009 2008 2007
% of % of % of
$ Segmen $ Segmen $ Segmen
(Dollars in millions)
North America $28¢ 35% $ 36F 34% $ 38¢ 38%
Europe and Africi 40:< 50% 558 52% 517 50%
Asia-Pacific 82 10% 10¢€ 10% 88 8%
South Americe 38 5% 37 4% 37 4%
Total $80¢ $1,061 $1,03(

Advanced Engineered Materials’ sales in Asia arderdirectly and through distributors including its
strategic affiliates. Polyplastics, KEPCO and Fatare accounted for under the equity method amebtbre not
included in Advanced Engineered Materials’ consaikd net sales.

Customers

Advanced Engineered Materials’ principal customaesconsumer product and medical device
manufacturers, as well as suppliers to the autamatidustry. Because of the highly engineered eatfithe end
products, Advanced Engineered Materials collabsrafi¢h its customers to assist in developing angraving
specialized applications and systems. Advancedrieegéd Materials has strong and long-standingioekttips
with the majority of its customers, and also ussgidutors and electronic marketplaces for itsangroducts, in
order to reach a larger customer base. For mostlefinced Engineered Materials’ products, contradtis
customers typically have a term of one to two years

Competition

Advanced Engineered Materials’ principal compestimciude BASF AG (“BASF”), E. |. DuPont de
Nemours and Compan“DuPont”), DSM N.V., Sabic Innovative Plastics aBdlvay S.A. Other regional
competitors include Asahi Kasei Corporation, MitshbGas Chemicals, Inc., Chevron Phillips Chem@ampany
L.P., Braskem S.A., Lanxess AG, Teijin, Sumitoma;. land Toray Industries Inc.

Consumer Specialties

The Consumer Specialties segment is comprisedrofAcetate Products and Nutrinova businesses. Our
Acetate Products business primarily produces apgli&s acetate tow, which is used in the produatibfiltration
products. We also produce acetate flake, whiclndsgssed into acetate fiber in the form of a towch®ur
Nutrinova business produces and sells SI1®, a high intensity sweetener, and food protectimedients, such as
sorbates, for the food, beverage and pharmaceirnidastries.




Sales from the Consumer Specialties business mmexs21%, 17% and 17% of our consolidated nes sale
for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and, 266pectively. Operating EBITDA from the Consumer
Specialties business represented 36%, 24% and 20U total Operating EBITDA (excluding the Othectivities
segment) for the years ended December 31, 2008, 20@ 2007, respectively. Sales from the ConsiBpercialties
business represented 19% of our consolidated fest f&a the twelve months ended June 30, 2010. &iper
EBITDA from the Consumer Specialties business gmeed 30% of our total Operating EBITDA (excludthg
Other Activities segment) for the twelve months&dune 30, 2010.

Key Products

Acetate flake and towAccording to the 2009 Stanford Research Institoternational Chemical
Economics Handbook, as of 2008 we were the wohldiding producer of acetate tow, (inclusive of gheduction
of our China ventures). Acetate tow is used pritpani cigarette filters. To produce acetate tow,fisgt produce
acetate flake by processing wood pulp with acetid and acetic anhydride. The wood pulp comes freforested
trees and is purchased on the open market, arat#tie acid and acetic anhydride is an intermediat@roduce
internally from acetic acid. The acetate flakehisrt further processed into acetate fiber in thefof a tow band.

We have an approximate 30% interest in three matudag ventures in China that produce acetatesflak
and tow. Our partner in each of the ventures i<thimese state-owned tobacco entity, China Natidohhcco
Corporation. In addition to being our productiomtpar, China National Tobacco accounted for appnaxely 12%
of our 2009 acetate tow sales.

Sunett sweetenerAcesulfame potassium, a high intensity sweetareketed under the trademark Sunett
®, is used in a variety of beverages, confectiomkdairy products throughout the world. Surfatticing for
targeted applications reflects the value added lyihbva, through consistent product quality anchbde supply.
Nutrinove’s strategy is to be the most reliable and highestity producer of this product, to develop newdurct
applications and expand into new segments.

Nutrinova’s food ingredients business consists of the prémlueind sale of food protection ingredients, ¢
as sorbic acid and sorbates, and high intensitetmers worldwide. Nutrinova'’s food protection iedjents are
mainly used in foods, beverages and personal catipts. The primary raw materials for these prieglace ketene
and crotonaldehyde. Sorbates pricing is extremahgisive to demand and industry capacity and isweoessarily
dependent on the prices of raw materials.

Facilities

Acetate Products has production sites in the Urtiades, Mexico, the United Kingdom and Belgiund an
participates in three manufacturing ventures im@hiWe recently announced the shutdown of our tectda and
flake manufacturing operations at our Spondon, éthKingdom site. We will continue to maintain odaffoil
manufacturing operations at this site.

Nutrinova has a production facility in Germanyveal as sales and distribution facilities in alljora
regions of the world.




Geographic Regions

The following table illustrates the destinatiortloé net sales of the Consumer Specialties segnyent b
geographic region.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination—Conser Specialties

Year Ended
December 31
2009 2008 2007
% of % of % of
$ Segmen $ Segmen $ Segmen
(Dollars in millions)
North America $ 17¢ 16% $ 194 17% $ 201 18%
Europe and Africi 452 42% 497 43% 427 3%
Asia-Pacific 40z 37% 413 36% 437 3%9%
South Americe 48 5% 51 4% 46 4%
Total $1,07¢ @ $1,15¢ $1,111

(@ Excludes inte-segment sales of $6 million for the year ended B 31, 200€

Sales of acetate tow are principally to the majbatco companies that account for a majority oflavade
cigarette production. Our contracts with most aof customers are entered into on an annual basis.

Nutrinova primarily markets Sunettto a limited number of large multinational and ewil customers in
the beverage and food industry under long-termaammdial contracts. Nutrinova markets food proteditigmnedients
primarily through regional distributors to smalldamedium sized customers and directly through reajieales
offices to large multinational customers in thedaodustry.

Competition

Acetate Products’ principal competitors include @hiChemical Industries Ltd. (“Daicel”), Eastman
Chemical Corporation (“Eastman”) and Rhodia S.A.

The principal competitors for Nutrinova’'s Surfégweetener are Holland Sweetener Company, The
NutraSweet Company, Ajinomoto Co., Inc., Tate &4 ALC and several Chinese manufacturers. In sat
Nutrinova competes with Nantong AA, Daicel, Yu Yidoigbo, Yancheng AmeriPac and other Chin
manufacturers of sorbates.

Industrial Specialties

Our Industrial Specialties segment is compriseduwfEmulsions and EVA Performance Polymers
businesses and is a leading producer of envirorattgisensitive, low VOC emulsion applications. @unulsions
products are used in a wide array of applicatiootuding paints and coatings, adhesives, constnucgjlass fiber,
textiles and paper. EVA Performance Polymers offetsmplete line of low-density polyethylene and@alty
EVA resins and compounds used in many applicafiociading flexible packaging films, lamination filproducts,
hot melt adhesives, medical devices and tubingraotive, carpeting and solar cell encapsulationdilEVA resins
and compounds are produced in high-pressure raaitton ethylene and VAM.




Primary raw materials for our emulsions and EVAdurcts are VAM and ethylene, which is produced by
our Acetyl Intermediates business, and ethylenéchwive purchase externally from a variety of soarce

Sales from the Industrial Specialties businesserted 19%, 21% and 21% of our consolidated fex sa
for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and, 286pectively. Operating EBITDA from the Industri
Specialties business represented 11%, 9% and @r abtal Operating EBITDA (excluding the Other Adties
segment) for the years ended December 31, 2008, 20@ 2007, respectively. Sales from the IndUsheecialties
business represented 18% of our consolidated fest fa the twelve months ended June 30, 2010. &iper
EBITDA from the Industrial Specialties businessresgnted 8% of our total Operating EBITDA (exclydthe
Other Activities segment) for the twelve months&sdune 30, 2010.

Key Products

The products in our Emulsions business include entional vinyl- and acrylate-based emulsions agth-hi
pressure VAE. Emulsions are made from VAM, acrykdters and ethylene. Our Emulsions businesseiadirig
producer of VAE in Europe. These products are adagponent of water-based architectural coatindisesives,
non-wovens, textiles, glass fiber and other appboa.

EVA Performance Polymers produces low-density pblylene and EVA resins and compounds that are
used in the manufacture of hot melt adhesives naotive carpet, lamination film products, flexiblagkaging films
medical tubing and solar cell encapsulation filEBgA resins and compounds are produced in luggssure reacto
from ethylene and VAM.

Facilities

The Emulsions business has production sites itUtlieed States, Canada, China, Spain, Sweden, the
Netherlands and Germany. EVA Performance Polymassahproduction facility in Edmonton, Alberta, Cda:

Geographic Regions

The following table illustrates the destinationtioé net sales of the Industrial Specialties segrgnt
geographic region.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination—Indstrial Specialties

Year Ended
December 31
2009 2008 2007
% of % of % of
$ Segmen $ Segmen $ Segmen
(Dollars in millions)
North America $382 39% $ 617 44% $ 58¢ 43%
Europe and Africi 504 52% 684 48% 674 50%
Asia-Pacific 78 8% 81 6% 69 5%
South Americe _ 10 1% 24 2% 20 2%
Total $974 $1,40¢ $1,34¢




Customers

Industrial Specialties’ products are sold to a tieegroup of regional and multinational customgically
manufacturers of water-based paints and coatinfgsives, paper, building and construction produggéss fiber,
non-wovens and textiles. EVA Performance Polymeustomers are primarily manufacturers of adhesives,
automotive components, packaging materials, predienand solar energy products.

Competition

Principal competitors in the Emulsions businestuitie The Dow Chemical Company (“Dow”), BASF,
Dairen, Wacker and several smaller regional manufacs. Principal competitors for the EVA Perforroan
Polymers resins and compounds business include muPxxonMobil Chemical, Arkema and several Asian
manufacturers.

Acetyl Intermediates

Our Acetyl Intermediates segment produces and mgatetyl products, including acetic acid, VAMetc
anhydride and acetate esters. These products aeeallg used as starting materials for colorardnts, adhesives,
coatings, and medicines. Other chemicals producéuis business segment are organic solvents aedriadiates
for pharmaceutical, agricultural and chemical peidu

Sales from the Acetyl Intermediates business reptesl 44%, 47% and 46% of our consolidated nessale
for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and, 286pectively. Operating EBITDA from the Acetyl
Intermediates business represented 33%, 44% and#8us total Operating EBITDA (excluding the Other
Activities segment) for the years ended DecembepB@9, 2008, and 2007, respectively. Sales framiitetyl
Intermediates business represented 45% of our tidatea net sales for the twelve months ended 30n2010.
Operating EBITDA from the Acetyl Intermediates mess represented 32% of our total Operating EBITDA
(excluding the Other Activities segment) for theelve months ended June 30, 2010.

Key Products

Acetyl Products. Acetyl products include acetic acid, VAM, acedithydride and acetaldehyde. Acetic acid
is primarily used to manufacture VAM, PTA and otheetyl derivatives. VAM is used in a variety ohadives,
paints, films, coatings and textiles. Acetic anlgers a raw material used in the production ofutese acetate,
detergents and pharmaceuticals. Acetaldehyde @jar ieedstock for the production of a variety efidatives,
such as pyridines, which are used in agriculturatipcts. We manufacture acetic acid, VAM and acaticydride
for our own use, as well as for sale to third et

Acetic acid and VAM, our basic acetyl intermedigpesducts, are impacted by global supply and demand
fundamentals and are cyclical in nature. The ppialciaw materials in these products are: ethyleséch we
purchase from numerous sources; carbon monoxidehwie purchase under long-term contracts; and ameth
which we purchase under long-term and short-temtraots. With the exception of carbon monoxideséheaw
materials are commaodity products available fromidewariety of sources.

Our production of acetyl products employs leadingppietary and licensed technologies, including our
proprietary AOPIu® 2 and AOPIu# technologies for the production of acetic acid ®#datage® and VAntage
Plus™ VAM technology. We believe our production technglag one of the lowest cost in the industry and
provides us a sustainable cost advantage overomopetitors.




Solvents and DerivativesThese include a variety of solvents, formaldehsé other chemicals, which in
turn are used in the manufacture of paints, coatiaghesives and other products.

Many solvents and derivatives products are derfk@t our production of acetic acid. Primary produate

. Ethyl acetate, an acetate ester that @vast used in coatings, inks and adhesives atiaein
manufacture of photographic films and coated pazerd

. Butyl acetate, an acetate ester that is a sohaad in inks, pharmaceuticals and perfu

Formaldehyde and formaldehyde derivative produetsiarivatives of methanol and are made up of the
following products:

. Formaldehyde, paraformaldehyde and formaedsprimarily used to produce adhesive resins for
plywood, particle board, coatings, POM engineerggjns and a compound used in making
polyurethane; an

. Special solvents, such as crotonaldehydéciware used by the Nutrinova line for the prothrcbf
sorbates, as well as raw materials for the fragraamd food ingredients indust

Solvents and derivatives are commodity productsadtearized by cyclicality in pricing. The principaw
materials used in solvents and derivatives prodarescetic acid, various alcohols, methanol, etieyland
ammonia. We manufacture many of these raw matddalsur own use as well as for sales to thirdipartincluding
our competitors in the solvents and derivativesrass. We purchase ethylene from a variety of ssund/e
manufacture acetaldehyde in Europe for our ownaseyell as for sale to third parties.

Facilities

Acetyl Intermediates has production sites in thé@&dhStates, China, Mexico, Singapore, Spain, Framd
Germany. Over the last few years, we have continoiatiift our production capacity to lower costguotion
facilities while expanding in growth areas, suctCasa.
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Geographic Regions

The following table illustrates net sales by desion of the Acetyl Intermediates segment by geplgia
region.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination—Acgt Intermediates

Year Ended
December 31
2009 2008 2007
% of % of % of
$ Segmen $ Segmen $ Segmen
(Dollars in millions)
North America $ 501 22% $ 74% 23% $ 68t 23%
Europe and Africi 771 35% 1,19¢ 37% 1,18: 40%
Asia-Pacific 884 40% 1,14: 36% 96¢ 33%
South Americe 64 3%  11€ 1%  11¢ 4%
Total $2,22(1) $3,19¢) $2,9551)

(@ Excludes inter-segment sales of $383 million, $6iflion and $660 million for the years ended Decem®l,
2009, 2008 and 2007, respective

Customers

Our Acetyl Intermediates business markets its prtadbooth directly to customers and through distatsl
Acetic acid, VAM and acetic anhydride are globasibesses which have several large customers, wiech
generally supply under multiyear contracts. Theamers of acetic acid, VAM and acetic anhydridedoice
polymers used in watdrased paints, adhesives, paper coatings, polyeBbersnodifiers, pharmaceuticals, cellulc
acetate and textiles. We have long-standing relakigps with many of these customers.

Solvents and derivatives are sold to a diversegofwegional and multinational customers both unde
multiyear contracts and on the basis of long-stagndelationships. The customers of solvents anatéres are
primarily engaged in the production of paints, cugg and adhesives. We manufacture formaldehydeuioown
use as well as for sale to a few regional custorthetsinclude manufacturers in the wood products@remical
derivatives industries. Specialty solvents and asiare sold globally to a wide variety of customprsnarily in the
coatings and resins and the specialty productssinés.

Competition

Our principal competitors in the Acetyl Intermedisisegment include Sipchem, BASF, British Petroleum
PLC, Chang Chun Petrochemical Co., Ltd., DaicelvPBastman, DuPont, LyondellBasell Industries, Nipp
Gohsei, Perstorp Inc., Jiangsu Sopo Corporationy®rLtd., Showa Denko K.K., and Kuraray Co. Ltd.

Other Activities

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administrathetivities
such as legal, accounting and treasury functiorierést income and expense associated with our
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financing activities, and our captive insurance panies. Our two wholly-owned captive insurance canigs are a
key component of our global risk management progesmwell as a form of self-insurance for our propdiability
and workers compensation risks. The captive inag@ompanies issue insurance policies to our sialigid to
provide consistent coverage amid fluctuating cwstie insurance market and to lower Idegmn insurance costs |
avoiding or reducing commercial carrier overhead @gulatory fees. The captive insurance compaeian risk a
levels approved by management and obtain reinsarameerage from third parties to limit the net niskained. One
of the captive insurance companies also insurdainghird-party risks.

Joint Ventures & Affiliates

We have a significant portfolio of strategic retatships and joint ventures in various regions udiclg
Asia-Pacific, North America, the Middle East and@pe. Historically, we have entered into thesetatyia
investments in order to gain access to local demanimize costs and accelerate growth in areabelieve have
significant future business potential. Dependinghmlevel of investment and other factors, we antéor our joint
ventures using either the equity method or coshotkebdf accounting.

In the aggregate, our strategic investments gemesighificant sales, earnings and cash flow. Famgpte,
during the twelve months ended June 30, 2010, quityeaffiliates generated combined sales of $4lmb
resulting in $152 million of equity in earnings incaffiliates during the same period.

Additionally, for the twelve months ended June 1.0, our Chinese acetate joint ventures genecatstl
dividends to us of $71 million.
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The table below represents our significant strateghtures as of June 30, 2010:

Year
Location Ownership Segment Partner (s) Entered
Equity Method Investments
Korea Engineering Plastics Co. Ltd  South Korea 50% Advanced Mitsubishi Gas 1999
Engineered Materia Chemical
Company,
Inc./Mitsubishi
Corporatior
Polyplastics Co., Ltd. Japan 45% Advanced Daicel Chemical 1964
Engineered Materia  Industries Ltd
Fortron Industries LLC us 50% Advanced Kureha Corporatic 1992
Engineered Materia
National Methanol Compan Saudi Arabia 25% Advanced SABIC/ Texas 1981
Engineered Materia Eastern Arabian
Corporation Ltd
Cost Method Investments
Kunming Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd. China 30% Consumer Specialti  China National 1993
Tobacco
Corporatior
Nantong Cellulose Fibers Co. Lt China 31% Consumer Specialti  China National 1986
Tobacco
Corporatior
Zhuhai Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd. China 30% Consumer Specialti  China National 1993
Tobacco
Corporatior

Korea Engineering Plastics Co. LtdFounded in 1987, KEPCO is a leading producer@fRn South
Korea. Mitsubishi Gas Chemical Company, Inc. owd%4&nd Mitsubishi Corporation owns 10% of KEPCO.
KEPCO operates a POM plant in Ulsan, South Korebpanticipates with Polyplastics and Mitsubishi Gas
Chemical Company, Inc. in a POM facility in Nanto@hina.

Polyplastics Co., Ltd. Polyplastics is a leading supplier of enginegyadtics in the Asia-Pacific region.
Polyplastics’ principal production facilities achted in Japan, Taiwan, Malaysia and China. Wiea|
Polyplastics is a leading producer and market&@ in the Asia-Pacific region.

Fortron Industries LLC. Fortron is a leading global producer of PPS.eart facility is located in
Wilmington, North Carolina.

National Methanol Company (Ibn Sina)Vith production facilities in Saudi Arabia, 1bind represents
approximately 2% of the world’s methanol productaapacity and is one of the workdargest producers of MTB
a gasoline additive. We indirectly own a 25% ing¢tia Ibn Sina through CTE Petrochemicals Comparjgint
venture with Texas Eastern Arabian Corporation [tekas Eastern Arabian Corporation Ltd indirectiyns an
additional 25% interest in Ibn Sina, and the remmaib0% interest is held by SABIC 50%. SABIC ispessible foi
all product marketing.

In connection with the extension of the joint veetuve reassessed the factors surrounding the maiegu
method for this investment and changed the accogifitom the cost method of accounting for
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investments to the equity method of accountingrfeestments beginning April 1, 2010. Also on Afrjl2010, we
announced that Ibn Sina would begin constructioa 50,000 ton POM plant in Saudi Arabia. The puepafsthe
plant is to supply POM to support Celanese’s AElnsent growth as well as our joint venture partnezgional
business development.

China acetate joint venturesWe hold an approximately 30% ownership inter8884 board
representation) in three separate Acetate Proguotiiction entities in China: the Nantong, Kunmamgl Zhuhai
Cellulose Fiber Companies. In each instance, ttingSk state-owned tobacco entity, China NationaE€oo
Corporation, controls the remainder. With an estad@0% share of the world’s cigarette productind a
consumption, China is the world’s largest and f&tsgeowing area for acetate tow products accorthirthe 2009
Stanford Research Institute International Chentimanomics Handbook. Combined, these ventures ararlkeet
leader in Chinese domestic acetate production endell positioned in the Chinese cigarette market.

In December 2009, we announced plans with ChingoNailt Tobacco to expand our acetate flake and tow
capacity at our Nantong facility. Our Chinese aget@ntures fund their operations using operatashdlow.

Our Chinese acetate joint ventures pay a dividarttde second quarter of each fiscal year, basedeon
ventures’ performance for the preceding year. IB2@008, and 2007, we received cash dividend$6fillion,
$46 million, and $37 million, respectively. In atidn, in 2010, we received cash dividends of $7llioni for 2010.

Despite the fact that our ownership interest exs@8%6 in each of our China Acetate Products vesjuve
account for these investments using the cost mathadcounting because we cannot exercise significfluence
over these entities. We determined that we canrertise significant influence over these entitias tb local
government investment in and influence over thesiéies, limitations on our involvement in the
day-to-day operations and the present inabilitthefentities to provide timely financial informatiprepared in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States.

Other Equity Investments

InfraServs. We hold ownership interests in several entitiested in Germany that own and develop
industrial parks and provide on-site general andiaistrative support to tenants. The table belopresents our
equity investments in InfraServ ventures as of Bhe010:

Company Ownership %
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf K 3%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack K 27%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst K 32%

Raw Materials and Energy

We purchase a variety of raw materials and enexgy Sources in many countries for use in our prodaoc
processes. We have a policy of maintaining, whezil@ve, multiple sources of supply for materidlewever,
some of our individual plants may have single sesiaf supply for some of their raw materials, sasttarbon
monoxide, steam and acetaldehyde. Although we haga able to obtain sufficient supplies of raw malg, there
can be no assurance that unforeseen developmdhtotaffect our raw materials supply. Even if have multiple
sources of supply for a raw material, there candassurance that these sources can make up flasthef a major
supplier. There cannot be any guarantee that philiity will not be affected should we be requitedqualify
additional sources of supply to our specificationthe
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event of the loss of a sole supplier. In additibie, price of raw materials varies, often substéiptirom year to
year.

A substantial portion of our products and raw materare commodities whose prices fluctuate as aetark
supply and demand fundamentals change. Our praduEcilities rely largely on fuel oil, natural gasd electricity
for energy. Most of the raw materials for our Ewgap operations are centrally purchased by onerddutsidiaries,
which also buys raw materials on behalf of thirdipa. We manage our exposure through forward @seh
contracts, long-term supply agreements and multipaechasing and sales agreements.

We also currently purchase and lease suppliesraiugaprecious metals, such as rhodium, used afystd
for the manufacture of Acetyl Intermediates produEbr precious metals, the leases are distrithgésieen a
minimum of three lessors per product and are dividéo several contracts.

Research and Development

All of our businesses conduct research and devedoparctivities to increase competitiveness. Our
businesses are innovation-oriented and conducargs@nd development activities to develop new,apithize
existing, production technologies, as well as teettep commercially viable new products and appioces. We
consider the amounts spent during each of theHeest fiscal years on research and developmentitagito be
sufficient to drive our current strategic initiagis.

Intellectual Property

We attach significant importance to patents, traaiés) copyrights and product designs in order tbemt
our investment in research and development, matwrfag and marketing. Patents may cover procegsedcts,
intermediate products and product uses. We aldotegegister trademarks extensively as a meapsadécting the
brand names of our products. We protect our intelbd property vigorously against infringement atgb seek to
register design protection where appropriate.

Patents. In most industrial countries, patent protectiaists for new substances and formulations, as well
as for unique applications and production procedsewever, we do business in regions of the wottere
intellectual property protection may be limited aifficult to enforce. We maintain strict informati security
policies and procedures wherever we do businesh Bformation security policies and procedureduide data
encryption, controls over the disclosure and sadpley of confidential information, as well as emyse awareness
training. Moreover, we monitor competitive develagts and vigorously defend against infringementsuof
intellectual property rights.

Trademarks. AOPIlus® 2, AOPIus®, VAntage®, VAntage Plus™, BuyTiconaDirecf™ , Celanex®,
Celcon®, Celstrar®, Celvolit®, Compel®, Erkol®, GUR®, Hostaform®, Impet®, Mowilith ®, Nutrinova®,
Riteflex®, Sunetf®, Vandar®, Vectra®, Vinamul®, EcCoVAE®, Durosef®, Ateva®, Acetex®, and certain other
products and services named in this document adeitnarks, service marks or registered trademarkelainese.
The foregoing is not intended to be an exhaustiveomprehensive list of all trademarks, serviceksar registere
trademarks owned by Celanese. Fortfas a registered trademark of Fortron Industries Lbfie of Celanese’s
equity investments.

Neither Celanese nor any particular business segimemterially dependent upon any one patent,
trademark, copyright or trade secret.
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Environmental and Other Regulation

We are subject to environmental laws and regulatiworldwide that impose limitations on the discleaod
pollutants into the air and water and establishddads for the treatment, storage and disposailimf and hazardot
wastes. We believe that we are in substantial ciamgé with all applicable environmental laws anglutations. We
are also subject to retained environmental obligatispecified in various contractual agreemenssrgrifrom the
divestiture of certain businesses by us or onaiopoedecessor companies.

Due to our industrial history and through retaigedtractual and legal obligations, we have thegatbion tc
remediate specific areas on our own sites as walhadivested, orphan or US Superfund sites (asatkbelow). In
addition, as part of the demerger agreement betweamd Hoechst AG (“Hoechst"), a specified portbthe
responsibility for environmental liabilities fromrauumber of Hoechst divestitures was transferragstdNe provide
for such obligations when the event of loss is plid® and reasonably estimable.

In the US, we may be subject to substantial cldimsight by US federal or state regulatory agenaies
private individuals pursuant to statutory authodtycommon law. In particular, we have potentiabllity under the
US Federal Comprehensive Environmental Responsap€osation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended, a
related state laws (collectively referred to asp&@tund”) for investigation and cleanup costs giragimately 40
sites. At most of these sites, numerous compaimielsiding certain of our subsidiaries and predemessmpanies,
have been natified that the Environmental Protecfigency, state governing bodies or private indiaid consider
such companies to be potentially responsible ma¢tleRP”) under Superfund or related laws. The pedlings
relating to these sites are in various stages.cldanup process has not been completed at mosesitethe status
the insurance coverage for most of these procesdéngncertain. Consequently, we cannot accurdegigrmine ou
ultimate liability for investigation or cleanup dssat these sites.

As events progress at each site for which we haea bamed a PRP, we accrue, as appropriate, l#yjiabi
for site cleanup. Such liabilities include all co#tat are probable and can be reasonably estiniatedtablishing
these liabilities, we consider our shipment of wasta site, our percentage of total waste shippdite site, the
types of wastes involved, the conclusions of angiss, the magnitude of any remedial actions theat be
necessary and the number and viability of other2Rften we join with other PRPs to sign joint desie
agreements that settle, among PRPs, each partgsmiage allocation of costs at the site. Althotighultimate
liability may differ from the estimate, we routigaleview the liabilities and revise the estimateappropriate, bas
on the most current information available.
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Employees

As of June 30, 2010, we had approximately 7,200leyees worldwide. The following table sets fortle th
approximate number of employees on a continuingsbas

Employees as of
June 30, 2010

North America

us 2,35(C
Canade 25C
Mexico 70C
Total 3,30(

Europe
Germany 1,60(
Other Europ 1,50(
Total 3,10(¢
Asia 75C
Rest of World 50
Total 7,20(C

Many of our employees are unionized, particulamysiermany, Canada, Mexico, Brazil, Belgium and
France. In the United States, however, less thaemoarter of our employees are unionized. Morearmegermany
and France, wages and general working condition®fen the subject of centrally negotiated collecbargaining
agreements. Within the limits established by theggeements, our various subsidiaries negotiatettirevith the
unions and other labor organizations, such as wsrkeuncils, representing the employees. Collechargaining
agreements between the German chemical employswsiasons and unions relating to remuneration glyehave
a term of one year, while in the United Statesradlyear term for collective bargaining agreementgpical. We
offer comprehensive benefit plans for employeesthait families and believe our relations with eoydes are
satisfactory.

Backlog

We do not consider backlog to be a significantdatbr of the level of future sales activity. In geal, we di
not manufacture our products against a backlogasdrs. Production and inventory levels are basetthemevel of
incoming orders as well as projections of futurmead. Therefore, we believe that backlog infornratsonot
material to understanding our overall businesssiradild not be considered a reliable indicator afahility to
achieve any particular level of revenue or finahp&xformance.

Properties
Description of Propert

We own or lease nhumerous production and manufactdaicilities throughout the world. We also own or
lease other properties, including office buildinggrehouses, pipelines, research and developmalitiés and
sales offices. We continuously review and evaloatefacilities as a part of our strategy to
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optimize our business portfolio. The following talslets forth a list of our principal production atber facilities
throughout the world as of June 30, 2010.

Site Leased/Owned Products/Functions
Corporate Offices

Budapest, Hungar Leasec Administrative offices
Dallas, Texas, U. Leasec Corporate headquarte
Mexico City, Mexico Leasec Administrative offices
Shanghai, Chin Leasec Administrative Offices
Singapore Leasec Administrative Offices
Sulzbach, German Leasec Administrative Offices
Advanced Engineered Materia

Auburn Hills, Michigan, U< Leasec Automotive Development Cent
Bishop, Texas, U. Owned POM, GUR®, Compoundin¢
Florence, Kentucky, U Owned Compounding

Fuji City, Japar
Kelsterbach, Germar
Kuantan, Malaysii
Kaiserslautern, German(l)
Oberhausen, Germar(®)
Shelby, North Carolina, U
Suzano, Brazi

Ulsan, South Korea

Wilmington, North Carolina, U!
Winona, Minnesota, U
Nanjing, China@

Consumer Specialties
Frankfurt am Main, German{?

Kunming, China

Lanaken, Belgiun
Nantong, Ching

Narrows, Virginia, US
Ocotlan, Jalisco, Mexic
Spondon, Derby, Ut
Zhuhai, China

Industrial Specialties
Boucherville, Quebec, Cana
Enoree, South Carolina, L
Edmonton, Alberta, Canac
Frankfurt am Main, German{?

Geleen, Netherlanc
Meredosia, lllinois, U<
Nanjing, China®@
Perstorp, Swede
Tarragona, Spairt!

Warrington, UK

Owned by Polyplastics Co., Lt®)
Owned

Owned by Polyplastics Co., Lt«(®
Leasec

Leasec

Owned

Owned

Owned by Korea Engineering Plas
Co., Ltd. ©

Owned by Fortron Industries LL(®)
Owned

Leasec

Owned by InfraServ GmbH & Co.
Hoechst KG®)

Owned by Kunming Cellulose Fibers
Co. Ltd. ®

Owned

Owned by Nantong Cellulose Fibers
Co. Ltd. ®

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned by Zhuhai Cellulose Fibers
Co. Ltd. ®

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned by InfraServ GmbH & Co.
Hoechst KG ®)

Owned

Owned

Leasec

Owned

POM, PBT, LCP, Compoundir
LFT, POM, Compoundin
POM, Compoundint

LFT

GUR®

LCP, PBT, PET, Compoundir
Compounding

POM

PPS
LFT
LFT, GUR®

Sorbates, Sunettsweetener
Acetate tow, Acetate flake

Acetate town
Acetate tow, Acetate flake

Acetate tow, Acetate flak
Acetate tow, Acetate flak
Acetate tow, Acetate flak
Acetate tow, Acetate flake

Conventional emulsior

Conventional emulsions, Vinyl acetate ethylene ek
LDPE, EVA

Conventional emulsions, Vinyl acetate ethylene ek

Vinyl acetate ethylene emulsio

Conventional emulsions, Vinyl acetate ethylene aiouk
Conventional emulsions, Vinyl acetate ethylene aiouk
Conventional emulsions, Vinyl acetate ethylene aiouk

Owned by Complejo Industrial Tagsa Conventional emulsions, Vinyl acetate ethylene aiuk

AIE ©
Owned
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Site is no longer operating as of December 31, 2




Site Leased/Owned Products/Functions

Acetyl Intermediate:

Bay City, Texas, USD Leasec VAM
Bishop, Texas, U. Owned Formaldehydkt
Cangrejera, Veracruz, Mexic Owned Acetic anhydride, Ethyl aceta
Clear Lake, Texas, U Owned Acetic acid, VAM
Frankfurt am Main, German{? Owned by InfraServ GmbH & Co.  Acetaldehyde, VAM, Butyl acetate
Hoechst KG®)
Jubail, Saudi Arabi Owned by Ibn Sine®) Methy! tertiary-butyl ether, Methanc
Jurong Island, Singapor® Leasec Acetic acid, Butyl acetate, Ethyl acetate, V/
Nanjing, China®@ Leasec Acetic acid, Acetic anhydride, VAP
Pampa, Texas, U Owned Site is no longer operating as of December 31, 2
Pardies, Franc Owned Site is no longer operating as of December 31, 2
Roussillon, France® Leasec Acetic anhydride
Tarragona, Spairt?) Owned by Complejo Industrial Tagsa VAM
AIE ©®

(1) Celanese owns the assets on this site, but utifiekand through the terms of a l-term land lease

(@ Multiple Celanese business segments conduct opesadit the Nanjing facility. Celanese owns the tasse this
site, but utilizes the land through the terms tdrag-term land lease

() Multiple Celanese business segments conduct opesadit the Frankfurt facility

4 Multiple Celanese business segments conduct opesadit the Tarragona site. Celanese owns its assthis
facility but shares ownership in the land. Cela’s ownership percentage in the land is 1

) A Celanese cost method investme
®) A Celanese equity method investme

Legal Proceedings

We are involved in a number of legal and regulafogceedings, lawsuits and claims incidental to the
normal conduct of our business, relating to suctiermas product liability, antitrust, intellectyabperty, workers’
compensation, prior acquisitions, past waste depasictices and release of chemicals into therenmient. While
it is impossible at this time to determine withteérty the ultimate outcome of these proceedirassuits and
claims, we are actively defending those mattersrevtiee Company is named as a defendant. Additipna#é
believe, based on the advice of legal counsel,atiatjuate reserves have been made and that thateltbutcomes
of all such litigation claims will not have a matdradverse effect on our financial position, bityave a material
adverse effect on our results of operations or fas¥s in any given accounting period. For a disoois of
commitments and contingencies related to legalragdlatory proceedings, see Note 17 to our unadidite
consolidated financial statements for the six msmihded June 30, 2010, which are included in tfising
memorandum, and Note 24 to our audited consolid&taedcial statements for the year ended Decembe?2@09,
which are included in this offering memorandum.
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Overview

Exhibit 99.3

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION

AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

We are a leading, global technology and speciatitenials company. We are one of the world’s largest
producers of acetyl products, which are intermedifiemicals, for nearly all major industries, adl a® a leading
global producer of high-performance engineeredpeks that are used in a variety of high-value es&l-u
applications. As an industry leader, we hold gephieally balanced global positions and particigatdiversified
end-use markets. Our operations are primarily &gtat North America, Europe and Asia. We combine a
demonstrated track record of execution, strongoperénce built on shared principles and objectiaes, a clear
focus on growth and value creation.

2010 Significant Events:

We announced a plan to close our acetake fand tow manufacturing operations in Spondonbype
United Kingdom in the latter part of 201

We acquired two product lines, Zen® LCP and Therm:® PCT, from DuPont Performance Polym

We announced five-year Environmental Heaftl Safety sustainability goals for occupatioadbty
performance, energy intensity, greenhouse gasewasie management for the year 2(

We received American Chemistry Council’ACC”) 2010 Responsible Care Initiative of the Year
Award. This award recognizes companies that dematedieadership in the areas of employee health
and safety, security or environmental protectiothenchemical industn

We announced the construction of a 50,000”OM production facility by our National Methanol
Company affiliate (“Ibn Sina”) in Saudi Arabia aegtended the term of the joint venture, which will
now run until 2032. Upon successful startup of @M facility, our indirect economic interest in Ibn
Sina will increase from 25% to a total of 32.5

We received formal approval of our previgumnounced plans to expand flake and tow cajsciti
each by 30,000 tons, at our affiliate facility imMong, China, with our affiliate partner, China
National Tobacco Corporatio

We announced a 25% increase in our quarterhmon stock cash dividend beginning August 2010.
The annual dividend rate will increase from $048®.20 per share of common stock and the
quarterly rate will increase from $0.04 to $0.05 sleare of common stoc

We redeemed all of our Convertible Perpeuaferred Stock for Series A Common Stock on
February 22, 201(

2009 Significant Events:

We announced the Frankfurt, Germany Airffftaport”) supervisory board approved the
acceleration of the 2009 and 2010 paymen€200 million anc€140 million, respectively




required by the settlement agreement signedrie 2007. On February 5, 2009, we received a
discounted amount of approximately €322 million{84nillion), excluding value-added tax of
€59 million ($75 million).

We acquired the business and assets of FB@BH (Future Advanced Composites Technology)
(“FACT"), a German company that develops, produanes markets LFT, for a purchase price of
€5 million ($7 million).

We shut down our VAM production unit in @gajera, Mexico, and ceased VAM production at the
site during the first quarter of 20C

Standard and Poor’s affirmed our ratings mavised our outlook from positive to stable ibRery
20009.

We received the ACC’s Responsible CeBastained Excellence Award for mid-size compariiés.

annual award, the most prestigious award giveniuA@€’'s Responsible Cafeinitiative, recognize:
companies for outstanding leadership under ACClarenmental Health and Safety performance

criteria.

We completed the sale of our polyvinyl ddab(“*PVOH") business to Sekisui Chemical Co., Lfiok
the net cash purchase price of $168 mill

We agreed to a “Project of Closufet our acetic acid and VAM production operatioh®ar Pardies
France facility. We ceased the production of acatid and VAM at our facility in Pardies, France on
December 1, 200!

We announced that Celanese US had ametgd$650 million revolving credit facility. The
amendment lowered the total revolver commitme®a00 million and increased the first lien senior
secured leverage ratio for a period of six quarteeginning June 30, 2009 and ending December 31,
2010.

We announced the creation of our new angnetary AOPIu$® 2 acetic acid technology, which
allows for expansion up to 1.5 million tons peratea annually

We successfully started up our expansioouofacetic acid unit in Nanjing, China which deedbthe
unit's capacity from 600,000 tons to 1.2 million tongaly.

We announced the expansion of our VAE mactufing facility at our Nanjing, China integrated
chemical complex to support continued growth pllainsughout Asia. The expanded facility will
double our VAE capacity in the region and is expddb be operational in the first half of 20

We launched a new, innovative POM technplibgt is expected to create significant additional
growth opportunities for our Advanced Engineeredévials segmen

We reached a long-term agreement to sugply to Jiangxi Jiangwei High-Tech Stock Co., Ltd
(“Jiangwei”). Jiangwei will cease production of @glcium carbide-based alternative for economic and
environmental reasons and source our V/




Results of Operations
Ibn Sina

We indirectly own a 25% interest in Ibn Sina thrb@TE Petrochemicals Company (“CTE"), a joint
venture with Texas Eastern Arabian Corporation [chich also indirectly owns 25%). The remainintgiest in
Ibn Sina is held by Saudi Basic Industries Corponaf'SABIC”). SABIC and CTE entered into the 1bing joint
venture agreement in 1981. In April 2010, we anmedrthat Ibn Sina will construct a 50,000 ton PQOfgdpiction
facility in Saudi Arabia and that the term of tlénf venture agreement was extended until 2032 nigoecessful
startup of the POM facility, our indirect econormterest in Ibn Sina will increase from 25% to 32.55ABIC's
economic interest will remain unchanged.

In connection with the transaction, we reassedsefbictors surrounding the accounting method fisr th
investment and changed the accounting from therne#itod of accounting for investments to the equigthod of
accounting for investments beginning April 1, 20EMhancial information relating to this investméat prior
periods has been retrospectively adjusted to applequity method of accounting.

In addition, in connection with the extension o jbint venture, we moved effective April 1, 2000y Ibn
Sina affiliate from our Acetyl Intermediates segitnenour Advanced Engineered Materials segmengflect the
change in the affiliate’s business dynamics andvifr@pportunities. Business segment informatiorpigor periods
included below has been retrospectively adjusteédftect the change.




Financial Highlights

Three Months Six Months Year Ended
Ended June 30. Ended June 30 December 31
2010 2009 2010 2009 2009 2008 2007
(As Adjusted) (As Adjusted) (As Adjusted)
(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited)

(Dollars in millions)
Statement of Operations Date

Net sales $1517 $ 1,24 $2,90 $ 2,39C $5,08: $ 6,827 $6,44¢
Gross profi 308 24¢ 521 44¢ 1,00z 1,25¢ 1,44¢
Selling, general and administrative
expense: 123 (114) (246 (226) (469 (540) (516
Other (charges) gains, r (6) (6) (83 (27 (136 (10§) (59
Operating profit (loss 15€ 89 14z 11€ 29C 44( 74¢
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliat 45 35 94 41 99 172 15C
Interest expens (49 (59 (98) (105  (207) (261) (262
Refinancing expenst — — — — — — (25€)
Dividend incom—cost investment 72 53 72 56 57 48 38
Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before te 224 127 217 11€ 251 43¢ 437
Amounts attributable to Celanese
Corporation
Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations 163 11C 17¢€ 94 494 371 32¢
Earnings (loss) from discontinu
operations 3) (@) ) — 4 (90) 9C
Net earnings (loss 16C 10¢ 174 94 49¢ 281 41€
Other Date
Depreciation and amortizatic 64 79 15z 15C 30¢ 35C 291
Operating margii) 10.2% 7.2% 4.%% 4% 57% 6.4% 11.6%
Earnings from continuing operations
before tax as a percentage of net s 14.8% 10.2% 7.5% 4% 4% 6.3% 6.8%

(1) Defined as operating profit divided by net sa

As of As of
June 30, December 31,
2010 2009 2009 2008
(unaudited) (audited)
(in millions)
Balance Sheet Data
Short-term borrowings and current installmentsooig-term debt—third

party and affiliate: $ 265 $ 224 $ 24z $ 23¢
Plus: Lon¢term debt 3,162 3,26¢ 3,25¢  3,30(
Total debi $3,427 $3,49: $3,501 $3,53:




Summary of Consolidated Resu—Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2010 Comparedhe Three and Si;
Months Ended June 30, 200

Net sales increased 22% during the three and sittrm@nded June 30, 2010 compared to the samalgerio
in 2009 primarily due to increased volumes acrosstrhusiness segments as a result of the gradimlary of the
global economy. Net sales also increased due teases in selling prices across the majority oftusiness
segments. The increase in net sales resulting duamacquisition of FACT in December 2009 within dwdvanced
Engineered Materials segment only slightly offéet tlecrease in net sales due to the sale of oyvipgl alcohol
(“PVOH") business in July 2009 within our Industr&pecialties segment. Unfavorable foreign curreingyacts
only slightly offset the increase in net sales.

Gross profit increased during the three and sixtimoanded June 30, 2010 compared to the same pémiod
2009 due to higher net sales. Gross profit as eepéaige of sales was consistent for three montasdedune 30,
2010 as compared to the three months ended Ju2®@9, Gross profit as a percentage of sales dettiniring the
six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared ta3DyrAH09 due to overall increased raw materialearatgy cost
which were only partially offset by increased psic€he writeeff of other productive assets of $17 million reldtc
our Singapore and Nanjing, China facilities andéased depreciation and amortization also contibtd a lower
gross profit percentage. The increase in amortimatias a result of $22 million of accelerated aimation to write-
off the asset associated with a raw material pelagreement with a supplier who filed for bankzymturing
2009. The accelerated amortization was record&2@snillion to our Acetyl Intermediates segment &2dnillion
to our Advanced Engineered Materials segment.

Selling, general and administrative expenses ise#or the three and six months ended June 3@, 201
compared to the same periods in 2009 primarilytdube increase in operations. As a percentagale$sselling,
general and administrative expenses declined doartfixed spending reduction efforts and restrriotu
efficiencies.

The components of Other (charges) gains, net didlaw/s:

Three Months Six Months Endec
Ended June 30, June 30,

2010 2009 2010 2009

(unaudited)

(in millions)
Employee termination benefi $ 4 $ (5 $ (9 $(29)
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocati 4) 3 (10 (6)
Plumbing action: 2 2 14 3
Insurance recoveries associated with Clear Lakead — — — 6
Asset impairment — — (72 @
Plant/office closure — — (6) —
Total $ (6 $ (6) $(83 $(27)

During the first quarter of 2010, we concluded textain long-lived assets were partially impaia¢dur
acetate flake and tow manufacturing operationspon8on, Derby, United Kingdom (see Note 3 to owaudited
consolidated financial statements for the six memihded June 30, 2010, which are included in tfésiog
memorandum). Accordingly, we wrote down the relgisaperty, plant and equipment to its fair value of
$31 million, resulting in long-lived asset impaimtdosses of $72 million for the six months endede)30, 2010.
The Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom facility is inded in our Consumer Specialties segment.




As a result of our Pardies, France Project of Glogsee Note 3 to our unaudited consolidated filahnc
statements for the six months ended June 30, 2@1i6h are included in this offering memorandum),neeorded
$1 million in employee termination benefits for tieee months ended June 30, 2010. We recordedastg of
$9 million during the six months ended June 30,0dhich consisted of $2 million in employee teration
benefits, $1 million of long-lived asset impairmésgses, $3 million of contract termination costd 3 million of
reindustrialization costs. The Pardies, Francdif@aés included in our Acetyl Intermediates segrhen

Other charges for the six months ended June 3@ 2@% partially offset by $13 million of recoveriasd a
$1 million decrease in legal reserves associatéd plumbing cases which is included in our AdvanEadineered
Materials segment.

During the first quarter of 2009, we began efféotalign production capacity and staffing levelgagi the
potential for an economic environment of prolontmger demand. For the six months ended June 3®,208
recorded employee termination benefits of $28 onillielated to this endeavor. As a result of thedsiwin of the
VAM production unit in Cangrejera, Mexico, we reoized employee termination benefits of $1 milliovddong-
lived asset impairment losses of $1 million durihg six months ended June 30, 2009. The VAM praduatnit in
Cangrejera, Mexico is included in our Acetyl Inteiates segment.

Other charges for the six months ended June 3® 2@8 partially offset by $6 million of insurance
recoveries in satisfaction of claims we made rel&tethe unplanned outage of our Clear Lake, Texa$ic acid
facility during 2007, a $2 million decrease in legeserves for plumbing claims for which the statof limitations
has expired and $1 million of insurance recovesiesociated with plumbing cases.

Operating profit increased for the three and sixithe ended June 30, 2010 as compared to the saiodg
in 2009. The increase in operating profit is a lteslincreased gross profit.

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befaseihcreased during the three and six months ended
June 30, 2010 compared to the same periods in 20®@rily due to increased equity in net earninfafiliates
and increased dividend income from cost investmienasidition to the increase in operating profit.

Our effective income tax rate for the three momthded June 30, 2010 was 27% compared to 13% for the
three months ended June 30, 2009. The increase ffective rate was primarily due to foreign lessot resultin
in tax benefits in the current period and increasesserves for uncertain tax positions and rdlateerest. Our
effective income tax rate for the six months endigage 30, 2010 was 19% compared to 19% for the sitins
ended June 30, 2009. Our 2010 effective rate wamdhly impacted by the effect of new tax legiglatin Mexico,
offset by foreign losses not resulting in tax béseh the current period and the effect of heatieaeform in the




Financial Highlights by Business Segme—Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2010 Comparedhe Three

and Six Months Ended June 30, 2009

Three Months Six Months
Ended June 30, Ended June 30,
2010 2009 Change 2010 2009 Change
(As Adjusted) (As Adjusted)
(unaudited)
(in millions)
Net sales
Advanced Engineered Materit $ 282 $ 184 $ 98 $ 564 $ 34¢  $ 21t
Consumer Specialtie 291 28C 11 52¢ 54€ ()]
Industrial Specialtie 26¢ 267 2 511 50¢ 2
Acetyl Intermediate 782 622 16C  1,50¢ 1,19¢ 312
Other Activities 1 1 — 1 1 —
Inter-segment elimination (10§) (110 2 (20€) (209) 3
Total $1517 $ 1,242 $ 273 $2,90F $ 2,39C $ 51t
Other (charges) gains, r
Advanced Engineered Materi $ 3 $ 4 $ 1 % 2 % (13) $ 15
Consumer Specialtie @ 3 2 (74) ©)] (72)
Industrial Specialtie — (D] 1 — (©)] 3
Acetyl Intermediate @ — (@D} (8 (@D} @)
Other Activities (1) 2 (3) 3) (7 4
Total $ 6 $ 6 $ — $ (83 $ (27 $ (56
Operating profit (loss
Advanced Engineered Materit $ 40 $ 1 $ 39 $ 8 % (17) $ 10t
Consumer Specialtie 64 66 2 34 132 (98)
Industrial Specialtie 16 19 (©)] 28 29 @
Acetyl Intermediate 68 39 29 68 50 18
Other Activities (32 (36) 4 (76) (78) 2
Total $ 15€ $ 890 $ 67 $ 14z $ 11€ $ 26
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
before tax
Advanced Engineered Materit $ 79 % 31 $ 48 $ 171 $ 13 $ 15€
Consumer Specialtie 137 11¢ 18 107 18¢ (82)
Industrial Specialtie 16 19 ©)] 28 29 Q)
Acetyl Intermediate 70 41 29 71 53 18
Other Activities (78) (83 5 (160 (167) 7
Total $ 224 $ 127 $ 97 $ 217 $ 11€ $ 101
Depreciation and amortizatic
Advanced Engineered Materit $ 18 $ 19 $ (1) $ 38 $ 3 $ 2
Consumer Specialtie 9 12 3 20 24 4
Industrial Specialtie 10 14 4 20 27 )
Acetyl Intermediate 24 32 (8) 69 59 10
Other Activities 3 2 1 6 4 2
Total $ 64 $ 79 $ (15 $ 155 $ 15¢ $ 3




Factors Affecting Business Segment Net Se—Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2010 Comparedhe
Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2009

The charts below set forth the percentage incréses@ease) in net sales from the period ended 3dne
2009 to the period ended June 30, 2010 attributaldach of the factors indicated for the followlngsiness
segments.

Volume Price Currency Other (1) Total
(unaudited)
(in percentages)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2010 Compared to TWoeehs Ended

June 30, 200!
Advanced Engineered Materi 52 2 (5) 42 53
Consumer Specialtie 6 @ (@D} — 4
Industrial Specialtie 13 9 (3) 18 ® 1
Acetyl Intermediate 14 15 3 — 26
Total Company 19 9 3 3 22
Six Months Ended June 30, 2010 Compared to Sixhddfnded
June 30, 200!
Advanced Engineered Materi 61 (4 — 5@ 62
Consumer Specialtie 3 — — — 3
Industrial Specialtie 14 3 — ane  —
Acetyl Intermediate 14 12 — — 26
Total Company 19 6 — 3 22

@) Includes the effects of the captive insurance cangsaand the impact of fluctuations in intersegment
eliminations.

( 2010 includes the effects of the FACT acquisit
(3 2010 does not include the effects of the PVOH kresipnwhich was sold on July 1, 20




Summary by Business Segm—Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2010 compatedhe Three and Six
Months Ended June 30, 200

Advanced Engineered Materiz

Three Months Six Months
Ended June 30, Ended June 30,
2010 2009 Change 2010 2009 Change
(As Adjusted) (As Adjusted)
(unaudited)
(Dollars in millions)
Net sales 282 184 98 564 34¢ 21t
Net sales varianc
Volume 52 % 61 %
Price 2% (4)%
Currency (5)% — %
Other 4% 5%
Other (charges) gains, r 3 4 1 2 (13 15
Operating profit (loss 40 1 39 88 a7 10t
Operating margil 14.2% 0.5% 15.€ % (4.9%
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations be
tax 79 31 48 171 13 15¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 18 19 (1) 38 36 2

Our Advanced Engineered Materials segment devetppsuces and supplies a broad portfolio of high
performance technical polymers for applicationumoaotive and electronics products, as well asratbasumer
and industrial applications. Together with our ttgic affiliates, we are a leading participanttie global technical
polymers industry. The primary products of Advanésdjineered Materials are POM, PPS, LFT, PBT, pibigene
terephthalate (“PET”), GUR and LCP. POM, PPS, LFT, PBT and PET are used madrange of products
including automotive components, electronics, apgles and industrial applications. GBI used in battery
separators, conveyor belts, filtration equipmeagtings and medical devices. Primary end markets@® are
electrical and electronics.

Advanced Engineered Materials’ net sales incre&8&dmillion and $215 million for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2010, respectively, comparhe same periods in 2009. The increase in et &
primarily related to significant increases in vokimhich is due to the gradual recovery in the dlelsanomy,
continued success in the innovation and commezeiédin of new products and applications and theiiaiten of
FACT in December 2009. Advanced Engineered Matniaported their lowest net sales during the timeaths
ended March 31, 2009. Since then, the businessesgdms continued to see sequential volume imprewéeach
quarter. The current quarter increase in net $atabe three months ended June 30, 2010 as cothpathe same
period in 2009 was positively impacted by increamesverage pricing as a result of implementedepincreases ai
product mix which was partially offset by unfavol@loreign currency impacts.

Operating profit increased $39 million and $105lianil for the three and six months ended June 30020
respectively, as compared to the same periods08.2lhe positive impact from higher sales volunmes,eased
pricing for our high performance polymers and ireep restocking was only partially offset by highaw material
and energy costs. Other charges positively impampedating profit for the six months ended June2B1,0 by
decreasing from an expense of $13 million for ilxer®nths ended June 30, 2009 to income of $2 anilfor the si:
months ended June 30, 2010. Other charges decrpasetily as a result of plumbing recoveries amdér
employee severance. Depreciation and amortizatidndes $2 million of accelerated amortizationtfe six
months ended June 30, 2010 to write off the assetciated with a raw material purchase agreemehtangupplier
who filed for bankruptcy during 2009.




Our equity affiliates, including lbn Sina, have expnced similar volume increases due to incredsetan:
during the three and six months ended June 30,. Z&L.a result, our proportional share of net eaysiof these
affiliates increased $52 million for the six mon#rsded June 30, 2010 compared to the same perD

Consumer Specialties

Three Months Six Months
Ended June 30 Ended June 30,
2010 2009 Change 2010 2009  Change
(unaudited)
(Dollars in millions)
Net sales 291 28C 11 52¢ 54€ ()]
Net sales varianc
Volume 6 % (3)%
Price (1)% — %
Currency (D)% — %
Other — % — %
Other (charges) gains, r @ 3 2 (79 3 (72)
Operating profit (loss 64 66 2) 34 132 (98)
Operating margil 22.C% 23.6% 6.4% 24.2%
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befave 137 11¢ 18 107 18¢ (82)
Depreciation and amortizatic 9 12 (3 20 24 4

Our Consumer Specialties segment consists of oatade Products and Nutrinova businesses. Our Acetat
Products business primarily produces and supptiegate tow, which is used in the production ogfilproducts. We
also produce acetate flake, which is processedbicetate tow and acetate film. Our Nutrinova bussrgroduces
and sells Suneft, a high intensity sweetener, and food protectigmedients, such as sorbates, for the food,
beverage and pharmaceuticals industries.

The decrease in net sales for the six months edateel 30, 2010 as compared to the same period Bi200
due to decreased volumes in our Acetate businesmaBunet® which were only partially offset by an increase in
demand in sorbates. Decreased volumes were printand to softening in consumer demand in Suhettd the
timing of sales related to an electrical disruptiom subsequent production outage at our manufagttacility in
Narrows, Virginia in our Acetate business. Thelfgcresumed normal operations during the quantehae expec
to recover the impacted volume throughout the radei of the year.

Operating profit decreased for the six months enllee 30, 2010 as compared to the same period& 20
Our fixed spending reduction efforts were not dbleffset the lower volumes, higher energy and maaterial costs
and additional expenditures related to the outageiiaNarrows, Virginia facility. An increase inhatr charges for
the six months ended June 30, 2010 had the mastisgmt impact on operating profit as it was urdeably
impacted by long-lived asset impairment losses/@ ®illion associated with management’s assessofehe
potential closure of our acetate flake and tow potidn operations in Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom

During the six months ended June 30, 2010, earriings continuing operations before tax decreasesitd
lower operating profit, which was partially offdst higher dividends from our China ventures of #iiBion
compared to 2009.
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Industrial Specialtie:

Three Months Six Months
Ended June 30, Ended June 30,
2010 2009 Change 2010 2009  Change
(unaudited)
(Dollars in millions)
Net sales 26¢ 267 2 511 50¢ 2
Net sales varianc
Volume 13% 14%
Price 9% 3%
Currency ()% — %
Other (18)% (17)%
Other (charges) gains, r — @ 1 — 3 3
Operating profit (loss 16 19 (3) 28 29 Q)
Operating margil 5.£% 7.1% 5.E% 5.7%
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare 16 19 (3) 28 29 1)
Depreciation and amortizatic 10 14 4 2 27 ©)

Our Industrial Specialties segment includes our Erons and EVA Performance Polymers businesses. Our
Emulsions business is a global leader which prosladeroad product portfolio, specializing in VABgas a
recognized authority on low volatile organic compds, an environmentally-friendly technology. Oun#sions
products are used in a wide array of applicatiockiding paints and coatings, adhesives, constmucgjlass fiber,
textiles and paper. EVA Performance Polymers offetesmplete line of low-density polyethylene andcalty
EVA resins and compounds. EVA Performance Polynmaducts are used in many applications includiexilfle
packaging films, lamination film products, hot matthesives, medical devices and tubing, automatamgeting an
solar cell encapsulation films.

In July 2009, we completed the sale of our PVYOHHmss to Sekisui Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Sekisui”) for
net cash purchase price of $168 million, excludivgvalue of accounts receivable and payable rexdiy
Celanese. The transaction resulted in a gain grodison of $34 million and includes long-term slypagreements
between Sekisui and Celanese.

Net sales increased $2 million for the three ardrsinths ended June 30, 2010 compared to the same
periods in 2009. Lower net sales resulting fromghle of our PVOH business were more than offsébtneased
volumes from our EVA Performance Polymers and Ermntsbusinesses. EVA Performance Polymers’ volumes
were lower for the second quarter of 2009 duedbnal issues at our Edmonton, Alberta, Canadat pfuch
technical production issues have been resolvedchandal operations resumed prior to the end ofhivd guarter of
2009. Higher prices in our EVA Performance Polynimrsiness due to a second quarter price increastaorable
product mix were partially offset by lower net sale Emulsions due to an unfavorable foreign exgkamate. Vinyl
acetate/ethylene emulsions production volumes aNanjing, China facility remained at full utilizah on strong
demand in the Asia-Pacific region. As previousipa@amced, we plan to expand our production capatidll to
support our continued success in new product dpwsdoit and application innovation.

Operating profit decreased $3 million and $1 millfor the three and six months ended June 30, 2010,
respectively, compared to the same periods in P0i0®arily due to the divestiture of our PVOH busiaelncreased
sales volumes and prices were largely offset biadrigaw material costs in both our EVA PerformaRoé/mers
and Emulsions businesses and increased spendirgnangly costs attributable to the resumption ofrrabr
operations at our EVA Performance Polymers EdmarAdirerta, Canada plant.
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Acetyl Intermediate

Three Months Six Months
Ended June 30 Ended June 30
2010 2009 Change 2010 2009 Change
(As Adjusted) (As Adjusted)
(unaudited)
(Dollars in millions)
Net sales 782 622 16C 1,50¢ 1,194 312
Net sales varianc
Volume 14% 14 %
Price 15% 12 %
Currency 3% — %
Other — % — %
Other (charges) gains, r @ — @ (8) Q) ©)
Operating profit (loss 68 39 29 68 50 18
Operating margil 8.7% 6.2% 4.5 % 4.2%
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before
tax 70 41 29 71 53 18
Depreciation and amortizatic 24 32 (8 69 59 10

Our Acetyl Intermediates segment produces and mgatetyl products, including acetic acid, VAMetc
anhydride and acetate esters. These products aeeallg used as starting materials for colorardnts, adhesives,
coatings, textiles, medicines and more. Other cbalsiproduced in this business segment are orgahients and
intermediates for pharmaceutical, agricultural ehemical products. To meet the growing demanddetia acid in
China and ongoing site optimization efforts, wecassfully expanded our acetic acid unit in Nanji@gina from
600,000 tons per reactor annually to 1.2 milliomstper reactor annually. Using new AOP# capability, the
acetic acid unit could be further expanded to lilban tons per reactor annually with only modedtaional
capital.

Acetyl Intermediates’ net sales increased $160onilhnd $312 million during the three and six manth
ended June 30, 2010, respectively, compared teaime periods in 2009 due to improvement in theajlebonomy
and increased overall demand. Current period iseei volume were also a direct result of our essful acetic
acid expansion at our Nanjing, China plant. We algmerienced favorable pricing which was driverribing raw
material costs and price increases in acetic awidvAM across all regions. The increase in netsalas only
slightly offset by unfavorable foreign currency iagps.

Operating profit increased during the three andreiths ended June 30, 2010 compared to the same
periods in 2009. The increase in operating preffiimarily due to higher volumes and prices amtlicéion in plant
costs resulting from the closure of our less adaged acetic acid and VAM production operationsandies,
France. The increase in operating profit was olfjhtly offset by higher variable costs and an @ase in other
charges. Higher variable costs were a direct regydtice increases, primarily in ethylene. Othlearges consisted
primarily of plant closure costs related to ourdtes, France facility.

Earnings from continuing operations before taxeased during the three and six months ended Jyne 30
2010 compared to the same periods in 2009 duectedned operating profit.
Other Activities

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administrative
activities, and our captive insurance companies.

Net sales remained flat for the three and six n®etided June 30, 2010.
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The operating loss for Other Activities decreasédriilion and $2 million for the three and six mbst
ended June 30, 2010, respectively, compared teaime periods in 2009. The decrease was primardyalia
$14 million gain on sale of assets, offset by $1Hion higher selling, general and administrativests. Higher
selling, general and administrative expenses wenegpily due to higher business optimization, finan
improvement initiatives, management compensatiahlegal costs.

The loss from continuing operations before tax éased $5 million and $7 million for the three and s
months ended June 30, 2010, respectively, comparte same periods in 2009. The decrease is phntare to
reduced interest expense resulting from lower @sterates on borrowings under the Senior Crediedgrent in
addition to higher returns on our equity investnsent

Summary of Consolidated Resu—Year Ended December 31, 2009 compared with YeaddéthDecember 31,
2008

The challenging economic environment in the Uni¢ates and Europe during the second half of 2008
continued throughout 2009. Net sales declined B9Ztom 2008 primarily as a result of decreasedatehdue to
the significant weakness of the global economyluly 2009, we completed the sale of our PVOH bussinghich
also contributed to the declines in our sales velsinn the fourth quarter of 2009, we began tcesgeadual
recovery in the global economy with increasing dedaithin some of our business segments. A decrieasalling
prices was also a significant factor on the deer@aset sales. Decreases in key raw material aaryg costs were
the primary factors in lower selling prices. A $lity unfavorable foreign currency impact also ciimtted to the
decrease in net sales.

Gross profit declined due to lower net sales. fgm@entage of sales, gross profit increased as leavme
material and energy costs more than offset decsaéaseet sales during the year ended December(8B,. For the
remainder of 2010, we expect raw material and gneogts to increase, which will partially be offégtincreases i
selling prices.

The components of Other (charges) gains, net didlaw/s:

Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008

(in millions)
Employee termination benefi $(105) $ (21)
Plant/office closure @an )
Plumbing action: 10 —
Insurance recoveries associated with Clear Lakea§ 6 38
Asset impairment (14) (11%)
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocati (16) 12
Sorbates antitrust actiol —
Other — 1

Total Other (charges) gains, | $(136) $(10€)

During the first quarter of 2009, we began effootsilign production capacity and staffing levelshnour
view of an economic environment of prolonged lodemand. For the year ended December 31, 2009, clthege:
included employee termination benefits of $40 miillrelated to this endeavor. As a result of theddwn of the
VAM production unit in Cangrejera, Mexico, we recaged employee termination benefits of $1 milliorddong-
lived asset impairment losses of $1 million durihg year ended December 31, 2009. The VAM produoatiut in
Cangrejera, Mexico is included in our Acetyl Intedrates segment.

As a result of the Project of Closure at our Pardigance facility, other charges included exitsos$
$89 million during the year ended December 31, 208fich consisted of $60 million in employee
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termination benefits, $17 million of contract termafion costs and $12 million of long-lived assepa@inment losses.
The Pardies, France facility is included in the tintermediates segment.

Due to continued declines in demand in automotie electronic sectors, we announced plans to reduce
capacity by ceasing polyester polymer productioouatTicona manufacturing plant in Shelby, North@iaa.
Other charges for the year ended December 31, @0fled employee termination benefits of $2 millend long-
lived asset impairment losses of $1 million relatethis event. The Shelby, North Carolina facilgyincluded in th
Advanced Engineered Materials segment.

Other charges for the year ended December 31, @@68%artially offset by $6 million of insurance
recoveries in satisfaction of claims we made rel&tethe unplanned outage of our Clear Lake, Taexa$ic acid
facility during 2007, a $9 million decrease in leggserves for plumbing claims due to the Companygoing
assessment of the likely outcome of the plumbirigpas and the expiration of the statute of limitati

Selling, general and administrative expenses deeteduring 2009 primarily due to business optinnrat
and finance improvement initiatives.

Operating profit decreased due to lower gross paoiil higher other charges partially offset by lowe
selling, general and administrative costs.

Equity in net earnings of affiliates decreased w2009, primarily due to reduced earnings from our
Advanced Engineered Materials’ affiliates resultfrgm decreased demand.

Our effective tax rate for continuing operationstfte year ended December 31, 2009 was (97)% cadpar
to 15% for the year ended December 31, 2008. Qactéfe tax rate for 2009 was favorably impactedhoy release
of the US valuation allowance, partially offsetlbywer earnings in jurisdictions participating irx taclidays,
increases in valuation allowances on certain foreigt deferred tax assets and the effect of nevetaglation in
Mexico.

Financial Highlights by Business Segment—2009 Comed with 2008

Year Ended
December 31
2009 2008 Change
(As Adjusted)

(in millions)
Net sales
Advanced Engineered Materit $ 80¢ $1,061 $ (259
Consumer Specialtie 1,08/ 1,15t (72)
Industrial Specialtie 974  1,40¢ (432
Acetyl Intermediate 2,60: 3,878 (1,272
Other Activities 2 2 —
Inter-segment Elimination (386) (67¢€) 287
Total $5,082 $6,82: $(1,74))
Other (charges) gains, r
Advanced Engineered Materit $ (18 $ (29 $ 11
Consumer Specialtie (©)] 2 @)
Industrial Specialtie 4 3 7
Acetyl Intermediate (92) (78) (13
Other Activities (22) 4 (26)
Total $(136) $ (108 $ (29
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Operating profit (loss
Advanced Engineered Materi:
Consumer Specialtie
Industrial Specialtie
Acetyl Intermediate
Other Activities

Total

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befape
Advanced Engineered Materi:
Consumer Specialtie
Industrial Specialtie
Acetyl Intermediate
Other Activities

Total

Depreciation and amortizatic
Advanced Engineered Materi:
Consumer Specialtie
Industrial Specialtie
Acetyl Intermediate
Other Activities

Total

Factors Affecting Business Segment Net Sales—20@@npared with 2008

Year Ended
December 31,

2009 2008 Change
(As Adjusted)
(in millions)
$ 38 $37 $ 1
231 19C 41
89 47 42
92 304 (212)
(160  (13¢) (22)
$29C $44C $(150
$114 $19C $ (76)
28¢ 237 51
89 47 42
102 312 (210
(342) (359 11
$251 $43% $(182
$73 $7 $ (3
50 53 (3)
51 62 (11)
127 15C (27)
11 9 2
$30¢ $35C $ (42

The table below sets forth the percentage incr@desease) in net sales for the years ended Dece3tibe

attributable to each of the factors indicated Far following business segments.

Volume Price Currency Other Total

(in percentages,

2009 Compared to 20(

Advanced Engineered Materit 2y @
Consumer Specialtie (12 7
Industrial Specialtie (10 (10
Acetyl Intermediate (6) (26)

Total Company (10) (16)

@ Includes the effects of the captive insurance camigss
@ Includes loss of sales related to the sale of ¥@HP business on July 1, 20C
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Summary by Business Segm—Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared with YeadéthDecember 31, 2008
Advanced Engineered Materi¢

Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 Change
(As Adjusted)
(Dollars in millions)

Net sales $80¢ $1,061 $ (259
Net sales varianc

Volume (21)%

Price (1)%

Currency (2)%

Other — %
Operating profit 38 37 1
Operating margil 4.7 % 3.5%
Other (charges) gains, r $(18) $ (29 $ 11
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befape 114 19C (76)
Depreciation and amortizatic 73 76 3

Net sales decreased during 2009 compared to 2008y as a result of lower sales volumes. Sigraifit
weakness in the global economy experienced duhi@ditst half of the year resulted in a dramaticluhe in deman
for automotive, electrical and electronic produagswvell as for other industrial products. As a ltesales volumes
dropped significantly across all product lines. iDgrthe second half of 2009, we experienced a poetl increase
in demand compared with the first half of the yasaia result of programs like “Cash for Clunkersthia United
States during the third quarter of 2009 and a grhidicovery in the global economy during the foutiarter of

2009.

Operating profit increased in 2009 as compared@82Lower raw material and energy costs and dsetka
overall spending more than offset the decline insaées. Decreased overall spending was the refsolir fixed
spending reduction efforts. Non-capital spendirguired on the relocation of our Ticona Kelsterbplamt was flat

compared to 2008.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax dasn due to a drop in equity in net earnings ofiatés
as compared to 2008. Equity in net earnings ofiafis was lower in 2009 primarily due to reducadhengs from
our Advanced Engineered Materials’ affiliates réiaglfrom decreased demand and a biennial shutdwne of

our affiliate’s plants.




Consumer Specialties

Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 Change
(Dollars in millions)
Net sales $1,08¢ $1,15¢ $ (7))
Net sales varianc
Volume (12)%
Price 7%
Currency (1)%
Other — %
Operating profit $ 231 $ 19C $ 41
Operating margil 21.2% 16.5%
Other (charges) gains, r $ (9 $ @ $ O
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare 28¢ 237 51
Depreciation and amortizatic 50 58 3

Net sales decreased $71 million during 2009 whempawed with 2008. The decrease in net sales wasn
primarily by decreased volume due to softening deirlargely in tow with less significant decreasegeazienced in
flake. Decreased volumes were primarily due to weak in underlying demand resulting from the gl@zainomic
downturn. The decrease in volume was partiallyetffs/ an increase in selling prices. A slightlyawdrable foreig
currency impact also contributed to the decreaseirsales.

Operating profit increased from $190 million in 30® $231 million in 2009. Fixed cost reductionoets,
improved energy costs and a favorable currency énga costs had a significant impact on the inaeasperating
profit.

Earnings from continuing operations before taxéased from $237 million in 2008 to $288 million2609
The increase was primarily due to the increaseerating profit and was also the result of an iasesin dividends
from our China ventures of $10 million. Increasédd&nds are the result of increased volumes aghdriprices, a
well as efficiency improvements.

Industrial Specialtie:

Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 Change
(Dollars in millions)
Net sales $974 $1,40€  $(432)
Net sales varianc
Volume (10)%
Price (10)%
Currency (2)%
Other (9)%
Operating profit $ 89 $ 47 $ 42
Operating margil 9.1% 3.2%
Other (charges) gains, r $ 4 $ B $ 7
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare 89 47 42
Depreciation and amortizatic 51 62 (11)
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Net sales declined by $432 million during 2009 canag to 2008, primarily due to the sale of our PVOH
business and lower demand due to the economic dowrithe decline in our emulsions volumes was cotmaged
in North America and Europe, offset partially byiwoe increases in Asia. EVA Performance Polymegs
volumes declined due to the impact of the forceemna event at our Edmonton, Alberta, Canada plemith is
offset in other charges in our Other Activities megt. Repairs to the plant were completed at theoéithe second
guarter 2009 and normal operations have resumet. daxreases in key raw material costs resultidgvirer selling
prices and unfavorable currency impacts also dmutied to the decrease in net sales for 2009 comipar2008.

Operating profit increased $42 million in 2009 cargd to 2008 as decreases in volume and selliegpri
were more than offset by lower raw material andg@neosts and reduced overall spending. Reducettismgeis
attributable to our fixed spending reduction eBprestructuring efficiencies and favorable foresgnrency impacts
on costs. The decrease in energy cost was dudhddwer natural gas costs and lower usage reguiitom a
decline in volumes. Our EVA Performance Polymersitoess contributed to the increase in Other (clsrggins,
net as a result of receiving $10 million in inswramecoveries in partial satisfaction of the logsssilting from the
force majeure event at our Edmonton, Alberta, Carpant. The gain on the sale of our PVOH busioéss
$34 million had a significant impact to the incre&s operating profit. Deprecation and amortizatidso had a
favorable impact on operating profit due to the PV/@vestiture and the shutdown of our Warringtoi, U
emulsions facility.

Acetyl Intermediate

Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 Change
(As Adjusted)
(Dollars in millions)

Net sales $2,60: $3,87F  $(1,272)
Net sales varianc

Volume (6)%

Price (26)%

Currency D)%

Other — %
Operating profi $ 92 $ 304 $ (212
Operating margil 3.5% 7.€%
Other (charges) gains, r $ (93 $ (7§ $ (19
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befape 10z 312 (210
Depreciation and amortizatic 122 15C (27)

Net sales decreased 33% during 2009 as compag&Dsprimarily due to lower selling prices acrobs a
regions and major product lines, lower volumes ami@vorable foreign currency impacts. Lower volumese
driven by a reduction in underlying demand in Eerapd in the Americas, which was only partiallysetfby
significant increases in demand in Asia. Loweripgovas driven by lower raw material and energggsj which
also negatively impacted our formula-based prigimgngements for VAM in the US. There were a nunaber
production issues in Asia among the major aceiit pwducers (other than Celanese), which coupliéd planned
outages, caused periodic and short-term markethiégh. In 2010, sales are expected to increasengzaced to the
corresponding period in 2009 as the global econbeyns to slowly recover.

Operating profit declined $212 million in 2009 coaned to 2008, primarily as a result of lower priaesos:
all regions and major product lines. Significadtwer realized pricing was partially offset by
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favorable raw material and energy prices, redupetiding due to the shutdown of our Pampa, Texaliysand
other reductions in fixed spending. The declindépreciation and amortization expense was primarisult of th
long-lived asset impairment losses recognizedénfdlirth quarter of 2008 related to our acetic acid VAM
production facility in Pardies, France, the Febyu2009 closure of our VAM production unit in Canjgma, Mexico
and lower depreciation expense resulting from thedown of our Pampa, Texas facility. Our operapngfit was
also negatively impacted by a $13 million incregs@®ther charges for 2009 compared to 2008, rejgimarily to
the planned shutdown of our Pardies, France facilit

The decrease in earnings from continuing operatieisre tax of $210 million is consistent with thecline
in operating profit.

Other Activities

Net sales remained flat in 2009 as compared to.28@8do not expect thirdarty revenues from our capt
insurance companies to increase significantly enrtear future.

The operating loss for Other Activities increasahf an operating loss of $138 million in 2008 to an
operating loss of $160 million in 2009. The inceeass primarily related to higher other charge® iflerease in
other charges was related to insurance retentists @ a result of our force majeure event at dundnton,
Alberta, Canada plant, partially offset in our Isthial Specialties segment and severance costsessikh of busine:
optimization and finance improvement initiative$ielincrease in other charges was patrtially offgdower selling,
general and administrative expenses primarilylattable to our fixed spending reduction efforts eetructuring
efficiencies.

The loss from continuing operations before tax eased $11 million in 2009 compared to 2008. This
decrease was primarily due to reduced interestresepeesulting from lower interest rates on borr@sinnder the
Senior Credit Agreement and favorable currency ithpa

Summary of Consolidated Resu—Year Ended December 31, 2008 compared with YeatdéthDecember 31,
2007

The challenging economic environment in the Uni¢aktes and Europe during the first half of 2008ilted
in higher raw material and energy costs which esthprice increase initiatives across all businegsngnts. During
the second half of 2008, the US credit crisis aredéd the economic slowdown and its spread ta o#ggons of th
world. Despite the halt in demand, we were able&intain the majority of our enacted price increabeough the
remainder of 2008. As a result, increased pricgsdmed net sales by 8%. Favorable foreign currémgacts also
had a positive impact on net sales of 3%.

Net sales declined 5% due to decreased volumeseieglumes were primarily a result of decreased
demand stemming from the global economic downtésndemand declined, particularly during the fougttarter o
2008, our customers began destocking to reduceitiveintory levels. In response, we aggressivelpagad our
global production capacity to align with the cutrenvironment. Decreased volumes in our acetake #and tow
businesses were not significantly impacted by tenemic downturn. Rather, decreased flake volumee whe
result of our strategic decision to shift our flgkeduction to our China ventures, which we accdonas cost
investments.

Gross profit declined as higher raw material, epengd freight costs more than offset increase®trsales
during the year ended December 31, 2008. The wmoextonomic environment resulted in higher natgasl,
ethylene, methanol and other commodity prices duttire first nine months of the year. Our freighstscalso
increased, primarily due to increased rates drbsehigher energy prices. Late in 2008, raw matenl energy
prices declined.
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The components of Other (charges) gains, net didlawss:

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007
(in millions)
Employee termination benefi $ 1) $ 32
Plant/office closure @) 12)
Deferred compensation triggered by Exit Ev — (74)
Plumbing action: — 4
Insurance recoveries associated with Clear Lakead 38 40
Resolution of commercial disputes with a ven — 31
Asset impairment (115) 9
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocati (12) (5)
Sorbates antitrust actiol 8 —
Other 1 (2)
Total Other (charges) gains, 1 $ (10¢) % (59)

Other charges increased in 2008 compared to 20D hatludes a long-lived asset impairment loss of
$92 million in connection with the 2009 closureooir acetic acid and VAM production facility in Pasl, France,
our VAM production unit in Cangrejera, Mexico aite tpotential closure of certain other facilitiekisTcapacity
reduction was necessitated by the significant ceamghe global economic environment and anticighétever
customer demand. Following the initial assessmétitie capacity reduction, we shut down the Caregee)/AM
production unit in February 2009.

In addition, we recognized $23 million of long-lov@sset impairment losses and $13 million of engsoy
termination benefits in 2008 related to the shutd@fvour Pampa, Texas facility.

During 2007, we fully impaired $6 million of goodivielated to our PVOH business.

Selling, general and administrative expenses ise@&24 million during 2008 primarily due to busise
optimization and finance improvement initiatives.

Operating profit decreased due to lower gross paniil higher other charges and selling, general and
administrative costs. The absence of a $34 miliaim on the sale of our Edmonton, Alberta, Canadaity during
2007 also contributed to lower operating profieB08 as compared to 2007.

Equity in net earnings of affiliates increased $#Rion during 2008, primarily due to increasedréags
from our Advanced Engineered Materials’ affiliat€sr effective income tax rate for 2008 was 15% parad to
25% in 2007. The effective income tax rate decr@@s2008 due to: 1) a decrease in the valuatimwahce, 2) tax
credits generated on foreign jurisdictions anch8)WS tax impact of foreign operations.

The loss from discontinued operations of $90 millduring 2008 primarily relates to a legal settlame
agreement we entered into during 2008. Under ttikeseent agreement, we agreed to pay $107 millioresolve
certain legacy items. Because the legal proceegiatged to sales by the polyester staple fibergbas, which
Hoechst AG sold to KoSa, Inc. in 1998, the impddhe settlement is reflected within discontinugeiations for
the year ended December 31, 2008.
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Financial Highlights by Business Segment—2008 Comed with 2007

Net sales
Advanced Engineered Materi:
Consumer Specialtie
Industrial Specialtie
Acetyl Intermediate
Other Activities
Inter-segment Elimination

Total

Other (charges) gains, r
Advanced Engineered Materi:
Consumer Specialtie
Industrial Specialtie
Acetyl Intermediate
Other Activities

Total

Operating profit (loss
Advanced Engineered Materiz
Consumer Specialtie
Industrial Specialtie
Acetyl Intermediate
Other Activities

Total

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befase
Advanced Engineered Materit
Consumer Specialtie
Industrial Specialtie
Acetyl Intermediate
Other Activities

Total

Depreciation and amortizatic
Advanced Engineered Materiz
Consumer Specialtie
Industrial Specialtie
Acetyl Intermediate
Other Activities

Total
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Year Ended

December 31,
2008 2007 Change

(As Adjusted)

(in millions)

$1,061 $103C $ 31
1,15¢ 1,111 44
1,40¢ 1,34¢ 60
3,87¢ 3,61¢ 26C
2 2 —
(67€) (660) (16)
$6,827 $6,44¢ $ 37¢
$ (29 $ (4 $ (29
(2 (4 2
©) (23) 20
(78) 72 (150)
4 (99) 10z
$ (109 $ (58 $ (50
$ 37 $ 137 $(100
19C 19¢ 9)
47 28 19
304 612 (30€)
(13€) (22€) 90
$ 44C $ 748 $(309
$ 19 $ 26C $ (70
237 23t 2
47 28 19
312 617 (301)
(357) (69€) 34¢€
$ 43 $ 437 $ (4
$ 76 $ 69 $ 7
53 51 2
62 59 3
15C 10¢€ 44
9 6 3
$ 3 $ 291 $ 59




Factors Affecting Business Segment Net Se—2008 Compared with 200

The table below sets forth the percentage incr@esaease) in net sales for the years ended Decedtibe
attributable to each of the factors indicated Far following business segments.

Volume  Price  Currency Other Total
(In percentages)

2008 Compared to 20(

Advanced Engineered Materi: (4) 3 4 — 3
Consumer Specialtie (6) 7 1 2@ 4
Industrial Specialtie 1 11 4 1 @ 4
Acetyl Intermediate () 7 3 — 7
Total Company (5) 8 3 — 63

@ Includes net sales from the Acetate Products Lo APL") acquisition.
@ Includes loss of sales related to the sale of W& Berformance Polyme’ (f/k/a AT Plastics) Films busines
®) Includes the effects of the captive insurance congss

Summary by Business Segm—Year Ended December 31, 2008 Compared with YeadéthDecember 31, 2007

Advanced Engineered Materi¢

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 Change
(As Adjusted)
(Dollars in millions)
Net sales $1,061 $1,03C $ 31
Net sales varianc
Volume (4)%
Price 3%
Currency 4%
Other — %
Operating profi $ 37 $ 137  $(100)
Operating margil 3.E% 13.2%
Other (charges) gains, r $ 29 $ (4 % (25
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befape 19C 26C (70
Depreciation and amortizatic 76 69 7

Advanced Engineered Materials’ net sales incre&8%ediuring 2008 as compared to 2007 primarily as a
result of implemented pricing increases combineth févorable foreign currency impacts. Increasaseinsales
were partially offset by lower volumes due to sfigpaint weakness in the US and European automotidehausing
industries. Extended plant shutdowns enacted bgmeay manufacturers during the fourth quarter@iig
contributed significantly to the volume decline.

Operating profit declined $100 million in 2008 asnpared to 2007 primarily due to higher raw matgeria
freight and energy costs. Raw material costs isg@@n higher prices while freight costs increased result of
increased freight rates and larger shipments ta.A&w material costs declined late in 2008,
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though at year end we held higher-cost inventavieite inventory destocking continued. Higher depatan and
amortization expense and increased other chargesahtributed to lower operating profit. Depreiciatand
amortization expense are higher in 2008 due tetidwe-up of the GUR and LFT units in Asia. Other charges
consist primarily of a $16 million long-lived assetpairment loss related to certain Advanced Engjieeé Materials’
facilities and $12 million related to the relocatiof our Ticona plant in Kelsterbach.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax dased in 2008 compared to 2007 due to decreased
operating profit, which was only slightly offset bycreased equity in net earnings of affiliatesuigin net earning
of affiliates increased $32 million.

Consumer Specialties

Year Ended
December 31
2008 2007 Change
(Dollars in millions)
Net sales $1,15¢ $1,111 $ 44
Net sales varianc
Volume (6)%
Price 7%
Currency 1%
Other 2%
Operating profi $ 19C $ 19¢ $ (9
Operating margil 16.£% 17.%
Other (charges) gains, r $ @ $ @ $ 2
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare 237 23t 2
Depreciation and amortizatic 53 51 2

Consumer Specialties’ net sales increased 4% tb$Imillion for 2008 as compared to 2007, driven
primarily by pricing actions in our Acetate Prodaibusiness and an additional month of sales fronA&l
acquisition, which occurred on January 31, 200Wjally offset by lower volumes. Lower volumes aélirect
result of our strategic decision to shift acetd&d production to our China ventures, which aanted for as co
method investments. The full impact of this shdstbeen realized during 2008 and thus the resutémgl of
diminishing volumes is not expected to continuewkoflake volumes were partially offset by an irase in tow
volumes as we were able to capture a portion oftbeth in global tow demand.

The increase in net sales for 2008 due to higHes saices during the year was offset most sigaifity by
higher energy costs, and to a lesser extent, higlvematerial and freight costs. Operating prafit2008 , as
compared to 2007, declined primarily due to theeabs of a $22 million gain on the sale of our EdtanpAlberta,
Canada facility in 2007. Other (charges) gainsrdu#007 includes $3 million of deferred compensaptan
expenses and $5 million of other restructuring ghsy partially offset by insurance recoveries ofi§ltion in partia
satisfaction of the business interruption losseslting from the temporary unplanned outage ofatetic acid unit
at our Clear Lake, Texas facility.

Earnings from continuing operations before taxéased from $235 million in 2007 to $237 million2008
as increased dividends from our China ventures riinane offset the decline in operating profit. Irased dividends
are the result of increased volumes, higher primed,efficiency improvements.
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Industrial Specialtie:

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 Change
(Dollars in millions)
Net sales $1,40¢ $1,34¢ $ 60
Net sales varianc
Volume (10)%
Price 11%
Currency 4%
Other (1)%
Operating profi $ 47 $ 28 $ 19
Operating margil 3.2% 2.1%
Other (charges) gains, r $ 3 $ 23 $ 2
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare 47 28 19
Depreciation and amortizatic 62 58 3

Industrial Specialties’ net sales increased by 4¥ind 2008 compared to 2007 as increased prices and
favorable foreign currency impacts more than offe@time reductions. Pricing actions implementedabypusiness
lines late in 2007 and during 2008 contributechincrease in net sales. Volumes declined prisnarildecreased
demand across all regions due to the global ecandownturn combined with the temporary shutdowowfEVA
Performance Polymers plant late in 2008. The oleclime decline was partially offset by increasadulsions
volumes at our Nanjing, China facility, which begagperating late in 2008.

Increased net sales were more than offset by higlvematerial and energy costs during 2008. The
$19 million increase in operating profit was prifhadue to reduced other charges and the absenibe &7 million
loss on the divestiture of our EVA Performance Rays’ Films business in 2007. During 2007, we atéd a plan
to simplify and optimize our Emulsions and PVOH ibesses to focus on technology and innovation. Qtharges
during 2008 includes a charge of $3 million for éoype termination benefits and accelerated depienizgelated t(
this plan. Other charges during 2007 includes agehaf $14 million for employee termination bengfit3 million
for an impairment of long-lived assets and $5 willof accelerated depreciation expense for outestaat United
Kingdom plant related to this plan. Other charge2007 also include $6 million of goodwill impairmteand receig
of $7 million in insurance recoveries in partiais@ction of the business interruption losses ltespfrom the
temporary unplanned outage of the acetic acidatrour Clear Lake, Texas facility.
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Acetyl Intermediate

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 Change
(As Adjusted)
(Dollars in millions)
Net sales $3,87¢ $3,61f $ 26C
Net sales varianc
Volume (3)%
Price 7%
Currency 3%
Other — %
Operating profi $ 304 $ 612  $(309¢)
Operating margil 7.€% 16.%
Other (charges) gains, r $ (79 $ 72 $(150
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare 31z 613 (301)
Depreciation and amortizatic 15C 10€ 44

Acetyl Intermediates’ net sales increased by 7%ndu2008 as compared to 2007, primarily due to
increased prices and favorable foreign currencyaictg partially offset by lower volumes. Our forendased
pricing arrangements benefited from higher ethykemé methanol costs during the first nine montha0af8. Marke
tightness in the Americas and favorable foreigmeney impacts in Europe also contributed to thedase in net
sales. Reduced volumes offset the increase inahet as the slowdown of the global economy causstbmers to
slow production and diminish current inventory lisygarticularly in Asia during the fourth quart&thylene and
methanol prices decreased during the fourth quaft2008 on slowed global demand.

Operating profit declined $308 million for 2008 @smpared to 2007, primarily as a result of higher
ethylene, methanol and energy prices, increasest ottarges, increased depreciation and amortizatidrthe
absence of a $12 million gain on the sale of oun&aton, Alberta, Canada facility in 2007. Otherrgfes increase
during 2008 partially due to $76 million of longiid asset impairment losses recognized in 200&tkta the
closure of our acetic acid and VAM production fagiln Pardies, France, our VAM production unitGangrejera,
Mexico (which we shut down effective February 2088y the potential shutdown of certain other fdesi Other
charges in 2008 also includes $23 million of loivgd asset impairment losses and $13 million oésavce and
retention charges related to the shutdown of oori2a Texas facility. Also contributing to the inase was the
absence of a one-time payment of $31 million remeiv 2007 in resolution of commercial disputeshvaitvendor
and a $25 million decrease in insurance recoveeiesived in partial satisfaction of the losses ltegufrom the
temporary unplanned outage of the acetic acidatrour Clear Lake, Texas facility. Increased dejptem and
amortization expense during 2008 is the resulcotkerated depreciation associated with the shutdzvour
Pampa, Texas facility and a full year of depreoiafior our acetic acid plant in Nanjing, China, efhstarted up in
mid-2007.

The decrease in earnings from continuing operatiefisre tax of $301 million is consistent with thecline
in operating profit.

Other Activities

Net sales for Other Activities remained flat in 80 compared to 2007. We do not expect third-party
revenues from our captive insurance companiescte@se significantly in the near future.
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The operating loss for Other Activities improved$8illion during 2008 as compared to 2007 due teelo
other charges, partially offset by higher selliggneral and administrative expenses. Other chalgmeased
principally due to the release of reserves rel&agtie $8 million Sorbates antitrust actions settat and the
absence of $59 million of deferred compensation plasts which were incurred during 2007. Sellireneral and
administrative expenses increased due to additgpeiding on business optimization and finance awgment
initiatives during 2008.

The loss from continuing operations before tax eased $346 million during 2008 as compared to 2007.
The significant decrease was primarily due to theeace of $256 million of refinancing costs incdrie 2007 and
the decrease in the operating loss discussed above.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary source of liquidity is cash generatexhf operations, available cash and cash equivaserdts
dividends from our portfolio of strategic investnterin addition, if the Senior Credit Agreement Ardment is
consummated as expected, we will have approxim&&d million available under our revolving crefditility and
$137 million of undrawn commitments under our crdidked revolving facility to assist, if requiredh meeting our
working capital needs and other contractual ohiligest

While our contractual obligations, commitments aetit service requirements over the next severabyea
are significant, we continue to believe we will bawailable resources to meet our liquidity requieats, including
debt service, for the remainder of 2010. If outhcthew from operations is insufficient to fund odebt service and
other obligations, we may be required to use atiegins available to us such as increasing our bargswreducing
or delaying capital expenditures, seeking addilicapital or seeking to restructure or refinanceindebtedness.
There can be no assurance, however, that we witirage to generate cash flows at or above cureueis.

As a result of the Pardies, France Project of Glsne recorded exit costs of $18 million during #ix
months ended June 30, 2010 in the accompanyingditadunterim consolidated statements of operatidvis may
incur up to an additional $10 million in contingemhployee termination benefits related to the Rardirance
Project of Closure. We expect that substantiallpfihe remaining exit costs will result in futucash expenditures
through mid-2011. The Pardies, France facilityniduded in our Acetyl Intermediates segment. Foreno
information on the Pardies, France Project of Qlessee Notes 3 and Note 13 to our unaudited ciolased
financial statements for the six months ended B3&010, which are included in this offering mearatum, and
Note 4 to our audited consolidated financial staets for the year ended December 31, 2009, whielnaluded ir
this offering memorandum.

On August 24, 2010, we announced a plan to coretelidur global acetate manufacturing capabilities b
closing our acetate flake and tow manufacturingajgens in Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom. The alesis
intended to strengthen our competitive position aligh future production capacities with anticightedustry
demand trends. As a result of the closure of oatate flake and tow manufacturing operations aSgpendon site,
we expect to record future expenses of approxim&eb to $45 million, consisting of approximate®million for
personnel-related exit costs and approximatelyr$iion of other facility-related shutdown costschuas contract
termination costs and accelerated depreciatioixeflfassets. We expect that substantially all efetkit costs
(except for accelerated depreciation of fixed assEapproximately $15 million) will result in futel cash
expenditures, which we expect to occur over a 1mb8th period.

In addition to exit-related costs, through 2011 26d2 we anticipate making capital expenditures of
approximately $75 million in certain efficiency imgvements, principally at our Ocotlan, Mexico, atarrows,
Virginia facilities, to optimize our global produeh network.
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On a stand-alone basis, Celanese Corporation hamtayial assets other than the stock of its sidrsed
and no independent external operations of its @dersuch, Celanese Corporation generally will depemthe cash
flow of its subsidiaries to meet its obligationsdenits Series A common stock.

Cash Flows—Six Months Ended June 30, 2010 Compatedhe Six Months Ended June 30, 2009

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 201084381 million, which was a decrease of $173 millio
from December 31, 2009.

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activi

Cash flow provided by operating activities decreéab®0 million during the six months ended June281,0
as compared to the same period in 2009. The ineieagperating profit was more than offset by theréase in
trade working capital.

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activi

Net cash provided by investing activities decredsamu a cash inflow of $183 million for the six ntbs
ended June 30, 2009 to a cash outflow of $275aniflor the same period in 2010. The decrease im pasvided by
investment activities is primarily related to rguedf proceeds of $412 million related to the Tiadfelsterbach
plant relocation and $15 million from the sale airketable securities that were received in 200@rd&lwere no
such proceeds in 2010.

Our cash outflow for capital expenditures was $1an and $96 million for the six months ended .80,
2010 and 2009, respectively. Capital expenditureewprimarily related to major replacements of pment,
capacity expansions, major investments to reduttegwperating costs, and environmental and healthsafety
initiatives.

Additionally we had cash outflows for the six mantnded June 30, 2010 of $46 million related to our
acquisition of two product lines, Zeni®.CP and Therm® PCT, from DuPont Performance Polymers. In
connection with the acquisition, we have commiteegurchase certain inventory at a future dateacht a range
between $12 million and $17 million.

Capital expenditures are expected to be approxiyn@23 million for 2010, excluding amounts related
the relocation of our Ticona plant in Kelsterbadfe anticipate cash outflows for capital expend#uig our Ticoni
plant in Kelsterbach to be289 million during 2010. In connection with the stmuiction of the POM facility in Sau
Arabia, our pro rata share of invested capitakjzeeted to total approximately $150 million oveheee year period
beginning in late 2010.

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) in Financing Acig

Net cash used in financing activities increasechfeocash outflow of $59 million for the six mon#érsded
June, 2009 to a cash outflow of $78 million for #zene period in 2010. The $19 million increasesishcoutflow
primarily relates to the Company’s $20 million reghase of the its common stock that occurred duhiegsecond
quarter of 2010.
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Cash Flows—2009 Compared with 2008 Compared witB20
Net Cash Provided by (Used in)Operating Activi

Cash flow provided by operating activities increh$&0 million to a cash inflow of $596 million @9
from a cash inflow of $586 million for 2008. Operaf cash flows were favorably impacted by less gzt for
interest, taxes, and legal settlements coupled avittvorable change in trade working capital whielped to offset
lower operating performance.

Cash flow provided by operating activities incrah$20 million to a cash inflow of $586 million ir0@8
from a cash inflow of $566 million for 2007. Openat cash flows were favorably impacted by positiesle
working capital changes ($202 million), lower céakes paid ($83 million) and the absence of adjaatsito cash
for discontinued operations. Adjustments to castdiscontinued operations of $84 million during ZG@lated
primarily to working capital changes of the oxo gwots and derivatives businesses and the shutdbaur o
Edmonton, Alberta, Canada methanol facility. Otisgtthe increase in cash flows were an increasefrcash
interest paid ($78 million), cash spent on legdlements ($134 million) and decreased operatinditpduring the
period.

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activi

Net cash provided by investing activities increased cash inflow of $31 million in 2009 from a bas
outflow of $201 million in 2008. Net cash from irsting activities increased primarily due to lowapital
expenditures on property, plant and equipment,geds received from the sale of our PVOH businedsrameased
deferred proceeds received on our Ticona Kelstérbalocation. These cash inflows were offset slighy an
increase on our capital expenditures related tolaoma Kelsterbach plant relocation.

Net cash provided by investing activities decredsealcash outflow of $201 million in 2008 from @sb
inflow of $143 million in 2007. Net cash from int#®y activities decreased primarily due to casmspesettlemer
of our cross currency swaps of $93 million (seeeN\22 our audited consolidated financial statemfemtthe year
ended December 31, 2009, which are included indfiesing memorandum) and the absence of proceeds the
sale of our oxo products and derivatives businedggag 2007. These amounts were offset by net catived on
the sale of marketable securities ($111 milliorg #re excess of cash received from Fraport oveuatsspent in
connection with the Ticona Kelsterbach plant refioca

Our cash outflows for capital expenditures weregptifllion, $274 million and $288 million for the sies
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respsgtesadluding amounts related to the relocationwafhicona
plant in Kelsterbach. Capital expenditures werengrily related to major replacements of equipmeapacity
expansions, major investments to reduce futureatipgr costs and environmental, health and saféigtines.

As of December 31, 2009, we have received €542amithf cash from Fraport in connection with the
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocation. Per the tesfrthe Fraport agreement, we expect to receivedditianal
€110 million in 2011 subject to downward adjustmdrased on our readiness to close our operatiomsrat
Kelsterbach, Germany facility.

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activi

Net cash used in financing activities decreaseah faccash outflow of $499 million in 2008 to a casttflow
of $112 million in 2009. The $387 million decredseash outflows from financing activities primarielated to th
repurchase of shares during 2008 of $378 millioncaspared to no shares
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repurchased during 2009. In addition, exchangeaffiéets on cash and cash equivalents increasadiateorable
currency effect of $63 million in 2009 comparedatounfavorable impact of $35 million in 2008.

Net cash used in financing activities decreasexddash outflow of $499 million in 2008 comparedtoash
outflow of $714 million during 2007. The $215 milli decrease in cash outflows primarily relatehiéodecrease in
cash outflows attributable to the debt refinandorg2008 as compared to 2007. Also contributintheddecrease,
cash spent to repurchase shares was $25 millisrdlesng 2008 than during 2007. Decreased casliveztéor
stock option exercises of $51 million for 2008 ampared to 2007, together with an unfavorable irhfram
exchange rate effects on cash and cash equivae$8s million in 2008 as compared to a favorabipact of
$39 million in 2007, partially offset the increase.

Debt and Capita

As of June 30, 2010, we had total debt of $3,42laniand cash and cash equivalents of $1,081 onilli
resulting in net debt of $2,346 million, a $99 ioill increase from December 31, 2009. Decreasedafash
$173 million was partially offset by net cash pawais on debt of $47 million, purchases of treastwgls of
$20 million, acquisitions of $46 million, capitatgenditures (including capital expenditures relatethe
Kelsterbach relocation) of $229 million which wearally offset by an increase in operating perfance.

Senior Credit Agreement

The Senior Credit Agreement currently consistsh280 million of US dollar-denominated and
€400 million of Euro-denominated term loans due Apri2014, a $600 million revolving credit facilitgrminating
on April 2, 2013 and a $228 million credit-linkegplving facility terminating on April 2, 2014. Therm loans
under the Senior Credit Agreement are subject toréiration at 1% of the initial principal amountrgsnum,
payable quarterly. The remaining principal amourihe term loans is due on April 2, 2014. As ofd0, 2010,
there were no outstanding borrowings or lettersrefdlit issued under the revolving credit faciliys of June 30,
2010, there were $91 million of letters of credi&ued under the credit-linked revolving facilityde37 million
remained available for borrowing. As of June 30.@0~ve were in compliance with all of the covenastated to
our debt agreements.

The Senior Credit Agreement requires us to notexe@maximum first lien senior secured leverage it
there are outstanding borrowings under the revgleidit facility. The first lien senior secureddeage ratio is
calculated as the ratio of consolidated first Bemior secured debt to earnings before interesstalepreciation ai
amortization, subject to adjustments identifiethia credit agreement.

On June 30, 2009, we entered into an amendmehétB8enior Credit Agreement. The amendment reduced
the amount available under the revolving credititgdfrom $650 million to $600 million and increed the first lien
senior secured leverage ratio covenant that iSegipé when any amount is outstanding under thelvang credit
portion of the Senior Credit Agreement. Prior teiigg effect to the amendment, the maximum first benior
secured leverage ratio was 3.90 to 1.00. As ameridegnaximum senior secured leverage ratio fofahewing
trailing four-quarter periods is as follows:

First Lien Senior Secured
Leverage Ratio

June 30, 201 4.25t0 1.0
September 30, 201 4.251t0 1.00
December 31, 2010 and therea 3.90to 1.0
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Based on the estimated first lien senior secureerégye ratio for the trailing four quarters at J@80e2010,
our borrowing capacity under the revolving creditifity is $600 million. As of the quarter endeddw80, 2010, oL
first lien senior secured leverage ratio was 2.7.@® (which would have been 3.3 to 1.00 were ¢welving credit
facility fully drawn). The maximum first lien senisecured leverage ratio under the revolving crieditity for such
quarter is 4.25 to 1.00. Our availability in futyreriods will be based on the first lien seniorused leverage ratio
applicable to the future periods.

The Issuer’s obligations under the Senior Credite&ghent are guaranteed by Celanese Holdings LLC, a
subsidiary of Celanese, and certain domestic sigvid of the Issuer, and is secured by a lienulastantially all
assets of the Issuer and such guarantors, subjeetthin exceptions. The Senior Credit Agreementains a
number of restrictions on the Issuer, CelaneseiHgddLLC and certain of the Issuer’s subsidiariesluding, but
not limited to, restrictions on their ability todar indebtedness; grant liens on assets; mergsplidate, or sell
assets; pay dividends or make other restricted pajgnmake investments; prepay or modify certailelrtedness;
engage in transactions with affiliates; enter sate-leaseback transactions or certain hedge trémss; or engage
in other businesses. The Senior Credit Agreemsnt@intains a number of affirmative covenants. Esehdefault
under the Senior Credit Agreement include a crasatdt provision triggered by defaults on certatinev debt and
the occurrence of a change of control.

On September 7, 2010, we announced that we arengeekenter into the Senior Credit Agreement
Amendment to, among other things, amend certamg@nd conditions of the Senior Credit Agreemedtextend
(i) the maturity of a portion of the existing tefoans to October 2016 and (ii) the maturity of atipo of the
revolving credit facilities to October 2015. We @ntly expect that the Senior Credit Agreement,nugioing effect
to the Senior Credit Agreement Amendment, will ésingf approximately $1,088 million of US dollarda&uro
denominated term loans due April, 2014, approxityai&,000 million of US dollar and Euro denominatedm
loans due October, 2016, an approximately $600anillevolving credit facility terminating in Octohe2015 and &
approximately $228 million credit-linked facilitgtminating in April 2014. Any such amendments amdants are
subject to lender approvals as required under &mio8 Credit Agreement and other customary conusti@nd we
can give no assurance that such amendments widhbeeffective as proposed or at all. This offeiggot
conditioned on the Senior Credit Agreement Amendrbeooming effective. See “Description of Certaitn€
Indebtedness.”

Share Capital

We have a policy of declaring, subject to legallpitable funds, a quarterly cash dividend on ednares of
Series A common stock. In April 2010, we annountted our Board of Directors approved a 25% incréashe
Celanese Common Stock cash dividend rate from $0.88.05 per share of Common Stock on a quarbedys an
$0.16 to $0.20 per share of Common Stock on anarasis. The new dividend rate was applicablewidends
payable beginning in August 2010. For the yeargdridecember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, we paid $B8mi
$24 million and $25 million, respectively, in cadiridends on our Series A common stock. On JanGa@p10, we
declared a $6 million cash dividend which was maid-ebruary 1, 2010. On April 5, 2010, we declaed@sh
dividend of $0.04 per share on our Common Stoclquarting to $6 million in the aggregate that wagipai May 1
2010. On July 1, 2010, we declared a cash diviadi$id.05 per share on our Common Stock, amounging t
$8 million in the aggregate that was paid on Augs010.

On February 1, 2010, we delivered notice to thelérs of our 4.25% Convertible Perpetual PrefertediS
(the “Preferred Stock”), pursuant to which we aalfier the redemption of all 9.6 million outstandisigares of
Preferred Stock. Holders of the Preferred Stoclevesttitied to convert each share of Preferred Staok
1.2600 shares of the our Series A common stockygdae $0.0001 per share (“Common Stock”), at amg torior
to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on February 1910. As of such date, holders of Preferred Stockdtected to
convert 9,591,276 shares of Preferred Stock intagamegate of 12,084,942 shares of Common Stoak. Th
8,724 shares of Preferred Stock that remainedandstg after such conversions were redeemed by us o
February 22, 2010 for 7,437 shares of Common Sfack,
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accordance with the terms of the Preferred Stotkddition to the Common Stock issued in respethi@thares of
Preferred Stock converted and redeemed, we paldicdieu of fractional shares. In issuing thesarsh of
Common Stock, we relied on the exemption from tegfiion provided by Section 3(a)(9) of the Secasthict of
1933, as amended. We paid cash dividends on oterReé Stock of $3 million during the six monthsled

June 30, 2010. As a result of the redemption ofRveferred Stock, no future dividends on Prefe8txtk will be
paid.

In February 2008, our Board of Directors authoritezlrepurchase of up to $400 million of our Sefes
common stock. This authorization was increased@d3$nillion in October 2008. The authorization give
management discretion in determining the conditiomder which shares may be repurchased. This reasec
program does not have an expiration date. In Aug0$0, we repurchased approximately $21 millioowf
Series A common stock. As of September 1, 201(adkethe ability to repurchase an additional $8lionilof
Series A common stock based on the Board of Direscémthorization of $500 million.

The number of shares repurchased and the averageage price paid per share pursuant to this
authorization are as follows:

Six Months Ended Total from
June 30, Inception through
2010 200¢ June 30, 2010
Shares repurchas: 678,59: — 10,441,79
Average purchase price per sh $ 2947 $— % 38.0¢
Amount spent on repurchased shares (in milli $ 20 $— % 39¢

These purchases will reduce the number of shatssaoding and the repurchased shares may be usesl by
for compensation programs utilizing our stock attteo corporate purposes. We account for treasogkastsing the
cost method and include treasury stock as a conmpafi&hareholders’ equity.
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Contractual Debt and Cash Obligations
The following table sets forth our fixed contradtdabt and cash obligations as of December 31,.2009

Payments due by Period

Less Thar After
Total 1 Year Years2& 32 Years4&E 5 Years
(in millions)

Fixed contractual debt obligatio
Term loans facility $2,78¢ $ 29 % 57 $ 2,69¢ $ —
Interest payments on debt and other obligat 921 @ 193 28€ 16& 277
Capital lease obligatior 242 34 28 28 152
Other deb 474 ) 17¢ 69 45 181
Total 4,42 43t 44C 2,937 61C
Operating lease 203 50 67 40 46
Uncertain tax obligations, including interest amshalties 234 (@ 5 — — 22¢
Unconditional purchase obligatio 1,62¢ ) 22¢ 437 31€ 64E
Other commitment 712 @ 187 274 141 111
Environmental and asset retirement obligati 18C 35 68 21 56
Total $7,37¢ $ 94C $ 1,28 $ 3,45F $1,69i

(@) Future interest expense is calculated using theimatffect on January 2, 201

(@ Due to uncertainties in the timing of the effectbegtlement of tax positions with the respectivena
authorities, we are unable to determine the tinohgayments related to our uncertain tax obligatjoncluding
interest and penalties. These amounts are theneftheeted in“After 5 Year!”.

() Represent the take-or-pay provisions included itagelong-term purchase agreements. We do nototxpe
incur material losses under these arrangem

@) Includes other purchase obligations such as maintanand service agreements, energy and utiliseagents,
consulting contracts, software agreements and otisrellaneous agreements and contracts, obtaiaea v
survey of the Compan

®) Other debt of $474 million is primarily made upfixed rate pollution control and industrial reverh@nds,
shor-term borrowings from affiliated companies and otha@nk obligations

Contractual Guarantees and Commitments

As of June 30, 2010, we have current standby tetkcredit of $91 million and bank guarantees of
$12 million outstanding which are irrevocable ohtigns of an issuing bank that ensure paymentitd garties in
the event that certain subsidiaries fail to perfamraccordance with specified contractual obligasiol he likelihood
is remote that material payments will be requireder these agreements.

Other Obligations

Deferred Compensationin April 2007, certain participants in our 200dfeired compensation plan elected
to participate in a revised program, which includeth cash awards and restricted stock units. Utihderevised
cash program, participants relinquished their @agards of up to $30 million that would have
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contingently accrued from 2007-2009 under the pabplan. Based on current participation in theses cash
program, we expensed $10 million during the yealeerDecember 31, 2009. The revised cash awards vest
December 31, 2010.

In December 2008, we granted time-vesting cashdswafr$22 million to Celanese’s executive officansl
certain other key employees. Each award of castis 3&86 on October 14, 2009, 30% on October 14, 20H040%
on October 14, 2011. In its sole discretion, theagensation committee of the Board of Directors magny time
convert all or a portion of the cash award to aarahof time-vesting restricted stock units. Théility cash awards
are being accrued and expensed over the term afgiteements. During the year ended December 39, BKs
than $1 million was paid to participants who l&fé tCompany and $6 million was paid in October 2@08ctive
employees representing 30% of the remaining oudstgraward.

Pension and Other Postretirement Obligation®ur contributions for pension and postretiremmatefits
are preliminarily estimated to be $52 million ar&¥3$nillion, respectively, in 2010.

Domination Agreement.The Domination Agreement was approved at ther@@sia GmbH, formerly know
as Celanese AG, extraordinary shareholders’ meetinguly 31, 2004. The Domination Agreement between
Celanese GmbH and our subsidiary, Celanese Eurofutng, became effective on October 1, 2004 and was
terminated effective December 31, 2009 by Cela&esepe Holding in the ordinary course of busin€as:.
subsidiaries, Celanese International Holdings Lub@ung Sarl. (“CIH"), formerly Celanese Caylux Haids
Luxembourg S.C.A., and Celanese US have each agrgrdvide Celanese Europe Holding with finanding
strengthen Celanese Europe Holding's ability tfilfils obligations under, or in connection witthhe Domination
Agreement and to ensure that Celanese Europe Holdihperform all of its obligations under, or @onnection
with, the Domination Agreement when such obligaibecome due, including, without limitation, thdigétion to
compensate Celanese GmbH for any statutory anossicurred by Celanese GmbH during the termeof th
Domination Agreement. If CIH and/or Celanese USdani@ated to make payments under such guarantesber
security to Celanese Europe Holding, we may noelsaficient funds for payments on our indebtedméssn due.
We have not had to compensate Celanese GmbH famraunal loss for any period during which the Dorriorat
Agreement has been in effect.

On March 26, 2010, BCP Holdings and Celanese Gmitered into the Domination Agreement I, which
became effective on April 9, 2010. Under the DortioraAgreement Il, BCP Holdings is required, amatiger
things, to compensate Celanese GmbH for any atosgincurred, determined in accordance with German
accounting requirements, by Celanese GmbH at the&the fiscal year in which the loss was incurrEkis
obligation to compensate Celanese GmbH for aniwmsakk will apply during the entire term of the Doation
Agreement Il. If Celanese GmbH incurs losses duaimg period of the operative term of the Domination
Agreement Il and if such losses lead to an anmsal bf Celanese GmbH at the end of any given fiszal during
the term of the Domination Agreement II, BCP Hofglrwill be obligated to make a corresponding caghment to
Celanese GmbH to the extent that the respectivaeahoss is not fully compensated for by the diggoh of profit
reserves accrued at the level of Celanese Gmbigithie term of the Domination Agreement Il. BCP dfilogs ma
be able to reduce or avoid cash payments to CaddBertoH by offsetting against such loss compensation clairr
Celanese GmbH any valuable counterclaims agailan€se GmbH that BCP Holdings may have.

Plumbing Action:

We are involved in a number of legal proceedings @aims incidental to the normal conduct of our
business. As of June 30, 2010 there were resefi&sAamillion related to plumbing action litigatioAlthough it is
impossible at this time to determine with certaithty ultimate outcome of these matters, we belibased on the
advice of legal counsel, that adequate provisi@awe been made and that the ultimate
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outcome will not have a material adverse effecbonfinancial position, but could have a materilerse effect on
our results of operations or cash flows in any gigecounting period.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not entered into any material off-balaf@esarrangements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are baseatieselection and application of significant acamm
policies. The preparation of consolidated finanstatements in conformity with accounting princgtgenerally
accepted in the United States of America requirasagement to make estimates and assumptions teet thfe
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disgk®f contingent assets and liabilities at the ddthe unaudited
interim consolidated financial statements and #morted amounts of revenues, expenses and allociadeges
during the reporting period. Actual results couiffied from those estimates. However, we are notentty aware of
any reasonably likely events or circumstanceswluatid result in materially different results.

We believe the following accounting polices andneates are critical to understanding the financial
reporting risks present in the current economidrenment. These matters, and the judgments andtaiages
affecting them, are also essential to understanaiimgeported and future operating results. Foogem
comprehensive discussion of our significant acdognpolicies, see Note 2 to our audited consolidéiteancial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2008hwahe included in this offering memorandum.

Recoverability of Lon-Lived Assets

Recoverability of Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Ats We test for impairment of goodwill at the reporting
unit level. Our reporting units are either our @iy business segments or one level below ouratipgrbusiness
segments where discrete financial information &ilable for our reporting units and operating resale regularly
reviewed by business segment management. Our lsggiméts have been designated as our reporting baged on
business segment management’s review of and reliam¢he business unit financial information aralude
Advanced Engineered Materials, Acetate Productg;ittiva, Emulsions, Celanese EVA Performance Poigme
(formerly AT Plastics) and Acetyl Intermediates inesses. We assess the recoverability of the caymalue of ou
goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assannually during the third quarter of our fisgahr using June 30
balances or whenever events or changes in circagetdndicate that the carrying amount of the assgtnot be
fully recoverable. Recoverability of goodwill anther indefinite-lived intangible assets is measwsidg a
discounted cash flow model incorporating discoatés commensurate with the risks involved for eaglorting
unit. Use of a discounted cash flow model is comipi@ttice in impairment testing in the absencevaflable
transactional market evidence to determine thevidire.

The key assumptions used in the discounted cashviidduation model include discount rates, growtiesa
cash flow projections and terminal value ratescBimt rates, growth rates and cash flow projectaeshe most
sensitive and susceptible to change as they regjiginficant management judgment. Discount ratedatermined
by using a weighted average cost of capital (“WALThe WACC considers market and industry data elsag
Company-specific risk factors for each reporting imdetermining the appropriate discount ratbéaused. The
discount rate utilized for each reporting unitridicative of the return an investor would expeateiceive for
investing in such a business. Operational managememsidering industry and Company-specific hisarand
projected data, develops growth rates and cashgloyections for each reporting unit. Terminal \@ahate
determination follows common methodology of captgrihe
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present value of perpetual cash flow estimatesdiioe last projected period assuming a constan€@And low
longterm growth rates. If the calculated fair valuéeiss than the current carrying value, impairmerihefreporting
unit may exist. If the recoverability test indicajgotential impairment, we calculate an implied Y@ilue of goodwil
for the reporting unit. The implied fair value afagwill is determined in a manner similar to hovodwill is
calculated in a business combination. If the intpfiir value of goodwill exceeds the carrying vatdeyoodwill
assigned to the reporting unit, there is no impairmif the carrying value of goodwill assignedateeporting unit
exceeds the implied fair value of the goodwill,igpairment charge is recorded to write down theytag value.
An impairment loss cannot exceed the carrying vafugoodwill assigned to a reporting unit but maglicate
certain long-lived and amortizable intangible assstsociated with the reporting unit may requiritaxhal
impairment testing.

Management tests indefinite-lived intangible asaétizing the relief from royalty method to detema the
estimated fair value for each indefinite-lived imgéble asset. The relief from royalty method estesahe
Company’s theoretical royalty savings from owngugiii the intangible asset. Key assumptions uséldisrmodel
include discount rates, royalty rates, growth ratates projections and terminal value rates. Distcates, royalty
rates, growth rates and sales projections areshengptions most sensitive and susceptible to chasgieey require
significant management judgment. Discount rates ase similar to the rates estimated by the WACGsmering
any differences in Company-specific risk factorey&lty rates are established by management angeasiedically
substantiated by third-party valuation consulta@fgerational management, considering industry amagany-
specific historical and projected data, develomswiin rates and sales projections associated with imaefinite-
lived intangible asset. Terminal value rate deteation follows common methodology of capturing ginesent
value of perpetual sales estimates beyond th@tagtcted period assuming a constant WACC and tog-term
growth rates.

For all significant goodwill and indefinite-liveditangible assets, the estimated fair value of siseta
exceeded the carrying value of the asset by aautiet margin at the date of the most recent inmpeit test. Our
methodology for determining impairment for both dedll and indefinitelived intangible assets was consistent \
that used in the prior year.

Recoverability of Long-Lived and Amortizable Inténg Assets. We assess the recoverability of long-lived
and amortizable intangible assets whenever evemisaumstances indicate that the carrying valuthefasset may
not be recoverable. Examples of a change in ewgriBcumstances include, but are not limited tdearease in the
market price of the asset, a history of cash flogsés related to the use of the asset or a sigmnifaxiverse change
the extent or manner in which an asset is beind.Use assess the recoverability of long-lived amdbdizable
intangible assets we compare the carrying amouitftsoésset or group of assets to the future neéscoahted cash
flows expected to be generated by the asset or gusae. Longlived and amortizable intangible assets are tefsi
recognition and measurement of an impairment lotisealowest level for which identifiable cash flewre largely
independent of the cash flows of other assetsiabdities. If such assets are considered impaitieel jmpairment
recognized is measured as the amount by whichatrgiog amount of the asset exceeds the fair vafldlee asset.

The development of future net undiscounted cashk fimjections require management projections rdl&d
sales and profitability trends and the remainingfuidife of the asset. Projections of sales ardfifability trends ar
the assumptions most sensitive and susceptibleange as they require significant management judgriibese
projections are consistent with projections wetasmanage our operations internally. When impaitnigen
indicated, a discounted cash flow valuation modusllar to that used to value goodwill at the repagtunit level,
incorporating discount rates commensurate withsradsociated with each asset, is used to deteth@rfair value
of the asset to measure potential impairment. Wie\methe assumptions used are reflective of whateket
participant would have used in calculating fairueal

Valuation methodologies utilized to evaluate godbtand indefinitelived intangible, amortizable intangik
and long-lived assets for impairment were consistéth prior periods. We periodically engage thpadrty valuatiol
consultants to assist us with this process. Speaffsumptions discussed above are
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updated at the date of each test to consider duneéustry and Company-specific risk factors frdme perspective
of a market participant. The current business emwvirent is subject to evolving market conditions esglires
significant management judgment to interpret thieipial impact to the Company’s assumptions. Toetktent that
changes in the current business environment resatljusted management projections, impairmene®ssay occt
in future periods.

Income Taxe

We regularly review our deferred tax assets foovecability and establish a valuation allowanceehlasn
historical taxable income, projected future taxab®me, applicable tax strategies, and the exfgdateng of the
reversals of existing temporary differences. A atibhn allowance is provided when it is more likéian not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assetsmwatlbe realized. In forming our judgment regardimg
recoverability of deferred tax assets related gudéble temporary differences and tax attributeydarwards, we
give weight to positive and negative evidence basethe extent to which the forms of evidence caoljectively
verified. We attach the most weight to historicatrengs due to its verifiable nature. Weight iseltied to tax
planning strategies if the strategies are prudedtf@asible and implementable without significabpstacles. Less
weight is attached to forecasted future earningstduts subjective nature, and expected timingewérsal of
taxable temporary differences is given little weiighless the reversal of taxable and deductibl@tzary
differences coincide. Valuation allowances havenbestablished primarily on net operating loss darvyards and
other deferred tax assets in the US, Luxembouw@yde, Spain, China, the United Kingdom and Canatahave
appropriately reflected increases and decreasasrimaluation allowance based on the overall weddtositive
versus negative evidence on a jurisdiction by glicison basis. In 2009, based on cumulative prbfiilg, the
Company concluded that the US valuation allowamceilsl be reversed except for a portion relatecettam
federal and state net operating loss carryforwtrasare not likely to be realized.

We record accruals for income taxes and associateckst that may become payable in future yeass as
result of audits by tax authorities. We recognaelienefits when it is more likely than not (likedod of greater
than 50%), based on technical merits, that thetipasiill be sustained upon examination. Tax posisi that meet
the more-likely-than-not threshold are measuredguai probability weighted approach as the largestumt of tax
benefit that is greater than 50% likely of beinglized upon settlement. Whether the more-likelyithat
recognition threshold is met for a tax positiom isatter of judgment based on the individual facid circumstanc:
of that position evaluated in light of all availat@vidence.

The recoverability of deferred tax assets and ¢lsegnition and measurement of uncertain tax positaye
subject to various assumptions and management jeidigiif actual results differ from the estimatesdmay
management in establishing or maintaining valuatidmvances against deferred tax assets, the irggghange in
the valuation allowance would generally impact @ays or Other comprehensive income depending onghere o
the respective deferred tax asset. Additionallg,gbsitions taken with regard to tax contingenoiey be subject to
audit and review by tax authorities which may resufuture taxes, interest and penalties.

Benefit Obligation:

We have pension and other postretirement beneaiitsptovering substantially all employees who meet
eligibility requirements. With respect to its USadjfied defined benefit pension plan, minimum fumgli
requirements are determined by the Pension Protegitt of 2006 based on years of service and/ompeorsation.
Various assumptions are used in the calculatidhefctuarial valuation of the employee benefihplarhese
assumptions include the weighted average discati@t compensation levels, expected long-term atesturn on
plan assets and trends in health care costs. itiadtb the above mentioned assumptions, actuaoiasultants use
factors such as withdrawal and mortality ratesstingate the projected

36




benefit obligation. The actuarial assumptions useg differ materially from actual results due t@aobing market
and economic conditions, higher or lower withdraveaés or longer or shorter life spans of partistpaThese
differences may result in a significant impacttie amount of pension expense recorded in futuiegser

The amounts recognized in the consolidated finduistd@ements related to pension and other postreéint
benefits are determined on an actuarial basisgAifstant assumption used in determining our pamnsixpense is
the expected long-term rate of return on plan asset of December 31, 2009, we assumed an explkectgderm
rate of return on plan assets of 8.5% for the Uthdé benefit pension plans, which represent agprately 83%
and 85% of our pension plan assets and liabilitespectively. On average, the actual return ortBejualified
defined pension plans’ assets over the long-teBrtd20 years) has exceeded 8.5%.

We estimate a 25 basis point decline in the expdotsg-term rate of return for the US qualifiedidetl
benefit pension plan to increase pension expensa @stimated $5 million in 2009. Another estinthtg affects
our pension and other postretirement benefit ex@enthe discount rate used in the annual actuaalahktions of
pension and other postretirement benefit plan akibgs. At the end of each year, we determine pipecgriate
discount rate, used to determine the present wdlfigure cash flows currently expected to be regflito settle the
pension and other postretirement benefit obligatidine discount rate is generally based on the wirlhighguality
corporate fixedncome securities. As of December 31, 2009, weedssgd the discount rate to 5.90% from 6.50¢
of December 31, 2008 for the US plans. We estirtetea 50 basis point decline in our discount vatkincrease
our annual pension expenses by an estimated $lidnmand increase our benefit obligations by agprately
$151 million for our US pension plans. In addititiee same basis point decline in our discountwatealso
increase our annual expenses and benefit obligatiphess than $1 million and $9 million respedsiyéor our US
postretirement medical plans. We estimate that baSis point decline in the discount rate for tha-/S pension
and postretirement medical plans will increase jpenand other postretirement benefit annual expehge
approximately $1 million and less than $1 millioespectively, and will increase our benefit obligas by
approximately $32 million and $2 million, respeetiy.

Other postretirement benefit plans provide medical life insurance benefits to retirees who meaimuim
age and service requirements. The key determimditie accumulated postretirement benefit obligaff&PBO")
are the discount rate and the healthcare cost tedadThe healthcare cost trend rate has a signifieffect on the
reported amounts of APBO and related expense.@mple, increasing or decreasing the healthcaretieol rate
by one percentage point in each year would resulie APBO as of December 31, 2009 changing bycpately
$4 million and $(3) million, respectively. Additiafly, increasing or decreasing the healthcare ttestl rate by one
percentage point in each year would result in @92postretirement benefit cost changing by leas $1 million.

Pension assumptions are reviewed annually on agpldrcountry-specific basis by third-party actuaged
senior management. Such assumptions are adjussgrbespriate to reflect changes in market ratescaridok. We
determine the long-term expected rate of returplan assets by considering the current target afisettion, as
well as the historical and expected rates of returnvarious asset categories in which the plangassted. A singl
long-term expected rate of return on plan assetwis calculated for each plan as the weightedagecof the target
asset allocation and the long-term expected ratetofn assumptions for each asset category witham plan.

Differences between actual rates of return of plssets and the long-term expected rate of retupiaon
assets are generally not recognized in pensiomegpia the year that the difference occurs. Théferehces are
deferred and amortized into pension expense oeeatkrage remaining future service of employeesajty the
long-term expected rate of return on plan assetsniarket-related value of plan assets to stabizeability in the
plan asset values.
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Accounting for Commitments and Contingen

We are subject to a number of legal proceedingsués, claims, and investigations, incidentalhe t
normal conduct of our business, relating to antutiog product liability, patent and intellectuabperty,
commercial, contract, antitrust, past waste didpmsetices, release of chemicals into the envireninand
employment matters, which are handled and defemdta: ordinary course of business. We routinegeas the
likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomethése matters as well as ranges of probable asdmahbly
estimable losses. Reasonable estimates involvenjedts made by us after considering a broad rangdgaymation
including: naotifications, demands, settlements WHiave been received from a regulatory authorityrivate party,
estimates performed by independent consultant®atside counsel, available facts, identificatiorotifer
potentially responsible parties and their abil@ycontribute, as well as prior experience. Wittpess to
environmental liabilities, it is our policy to acer through fifteen years, unless we have governmeetrs or other
agreements that extend beyond fifteen years. Am@tation of the amount of loss contingency reqiiii€any, is
assessed in accordance with FASB Accounting Stdsdaodification (“FASB ASC”) Topic 450, Contingersi
and recorded if probable and estimable after chesfalysis of each individual matter. The requireserves may
change in the future due to new developments ih egatter and as additional information becomeslaiviai.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For a discussion of recent accounting pronouncesneat Note 2 to our unaudited consolidated firsnci
statements for the six-month period ended Jun@@00), which are included in this offering memoramdas well
as Note 3 to our audited consolidated financidakstants for the year ended December 31, 2009, vereincluded
in this offering memorandum.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk
Market Risks

Our financial market risk consists principally ofp@sure to currency exchange rates, interest eates
commodity prices. Exchange rate and interest islts are managed with a variety of techniquesuifialg use of
derivatives. We have in place policies of hedgiggiast changes in currency exchange rates, intextest and
commodity prices as described below. Contractetigh exposures are primarily accounted for und&SB-ASC
Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging (“FASB ASC ToBis").

Interest Rate Risk Managem:

We use interest rate swap agreements to managméhest rate risk of our total debt portfolio arethted
overall cost of borrowing. To reduce the interese risk inherent in our variable rate debt, whzatiinterest rate
swap agreements to convert a portion of our vagiedtie debt to a fixed rate obligation. These @gerate swap
agreements are designated as cash flow hedges.

In March 2007, in anticipation of the April 2007deefinancing, we entered into various US dollad a
Euro interest rate swap agreements, which becaf@etige on April 2, 2007, with notional amounts&i.6 billion
and €150 million, respectively. The notional amooithe $1.6 billion US dollar interest rate swalgsreased by
$400 million effective January 2, 2008 and decrddseanother $200 million effective January 2, 2009 offset
the declines, we entered into US dollar interetst savaps with a combined notional amount of $400aniwhich
became effective on January 2, 2008 and an additlog dollar interest rate swap with a notional antaf
$200 million which became effective April 2, 2008.August 2010, we
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entered into a new two-year US dollar denominatedidird-starting interest rate swap with a notiarabunt of
$1.1 billion for the years 2012 and 2013.

As of June 30, 2010, we had $2,212 million, €408ioni and CNY 1.7 billion of variable rate debt, of
which $1.5 billion and €150 million is hedged wittterest rate swaps, which leaves $732 million,9%28lion and
CNY 1.7 billion of variable rate debt subject toeirest rate exposure. Accordingly, a 1% increaseterest rates
would increase annual interest expense by apprd&iyn$13 million. For further discussion of ourengst rate risk
management and the related impact on our finapoisition and results of operations, see Note utainaudited
consolidated financial statements for the six-mgmhiod ended June 30, 2010, which are includétisgnoffering
memorandum, as well as Note 22 to our audited dmiaged financial statements for the year endededuer 31,
2009, which are included in this offering memoramdu

Foreign Exchange Risk Managem

The primary business objective of this hedging peagis to maintain an approximately balanced parsitin
foreign currencies so that exchange gains anddasselting from exchange rate changes, net dfectlax effects,
are minimized. It is our policy to minimize currgnexposures and to conduct operations either witimational
currencies or using the protection of hedge strased\ccordingly, we enter into foreign currencyvfards and
swaps to minimize our exposure to foreign currefhagtuations. From time to time we may also hedgeaurrency
exposure related to forecasted transactions. Fdra@mtracts are not designated as hedges under R&EBTopic
815.

The following table indicates, as of December 32, the total US dollar equivalents of net foreign
exchange exposure related to (short) long foreigh@nge forward contracts outstanding by curreAdyof the
contracts included in the table below will have mpimately offsetting effects from actual underlyipayables,
receivables, intercompany loans or other assdtahilities subject to foreign exchange remeasumme

Currency 2010 Maturity
(in millions)
Euro $ (372)
British pound sterling (90
Chinese renmint (200)
Mexican pesc 5)
Singapore dolla 27
Canadian dolla (48)
Japanese ye 8
Brazilian real (172)
Swedish kroni 15
Other (1)
Total $ (677)

Additionally, a portion of our assets, liabilitiegvenues and expenses are denominated in cursestbier
than the US dollar, principally the Euro. Fluctoat in the value of these currencies against theallar,
particularly the value of the Euro, can have adissd material impact on the business and finanesalts. For
example, a decline in the value of the Euro vetsadJS dollar results in a decline in the US dolialue of our
sales and earnings denominated in Euros due tslataon effects. Likewise, an increase in the valtighe Euro
versus the US dollar would result in an oppositectf
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To protect the foreign currency exposure of a me¢stment in a foreign operation, we entered inbex
currency swaps with certain financial institution2004. The cross currency swaps and the Eurordigrabed
portion of the senior term loan were designated lasdge of a net investment of a foreign operatiée.de-
designated the net investment hedge due to theref@incing in April 2007 and redesignated thessrourrency
swaps and new senior Euro term loan in July 2007.

Under the terms of the cross currency swap arraeg&nwe paid approximately €13 million in interastd
received approximately $16 million in interest @md 15 and December 15 of each year. The fair w@ltiee net
obligation under the cross currency swaps was dedun current Other liabilities in the consolidatelance sheets
as of December 31, 2007. Upon maturity of the coosgency swap arrangements in June 2008, we owed
€276 million ($426 million) and were owed $333 nali. In settlement of the obligation, we paid $98iar (net of
interest of $3 million) in June 2008.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, we depaatsd €385 million of the €400 million euro-
denominated portion of the term loan, previouslyigieated as a hedge of a net investment of a foxgigration.
The remaining €15 million Euro-denominated portidrthe term loan was de-designated as a hedgaef a
investment of a foreign operation in June 2009010 these de-designations, we had been usingnextgerivative
contracts to offset foreign currency exposureseartam intercompany loans. As a result of the degietions, the
foreign currency exposure created by the Euro-démated term loan is expected to offset the foreigmency
exposure on certain intercompany loans, decredasageed for external derivative contracts and cexuour
exposure to external counterparties. For furthecudision of our foreign exchange risk managementtanrelated
impact on our financial position and results of @piens, see Note 15 to our unaudited consolidfteacial
statements for the six-month period ended Jun@@0), which are included in this offering memoramdas well
as Note 22 to our audited consolidated financatkeshents for the year ended December 31, 2009 hvainec
included in this offering memorandum.

Commodity Risk Management

We have exposure to the prices of commodities impoacurement of certain raw materials. We manage o
exposure primarily through the use of long-termpdyagreements and derivative instruments. We eefjuassess
our practice of purchasing a portion of our comrhodkquirements forward and utilization of othewnamaterial
hedging instruments, in addition to forward pur@esntracts, in accordance with changes in maxkeditons.
Forward purchases and swap contracts for raw natégerie principally settled through actual delivefyhe physic:
commodity. For qualifying contracts, we have elddteapply the normal purchases and normal salespgion of
FASB ASC Topic 815, as it was probable at the itioepand throughout the term of the contract thaytwould nc
settle net and would result in physical deliverg. such, realized gains and losses on these cantnacincluded in
the cost of the commaodity upon the settlement efdbntract.

In addition, we occasionally enter into financiaridatives to hedge a component of a raw material o
energy source. Typically, these types of transastio not qualify for hedge accounting. These umsénts are
marked to market at each reporting period and g#isses) are included in Cost of sales in the aloheted
statements of operations. We recognized no gdimssrfrom these types of contracts during the yeaded
December 31, 2009 and 2008 and less than $1 mdlivimg the year ended December 31, 2007.
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Exhibit 99.4

Summary Historical Consolidated Financial Data

The following summary historical consolidated fin&i data for the six months ended June 30, 2080 an
2009, the twelve months ended June 30, 2010, anfiJasme 30, 2010 are derived from, and qualifigddference
to, our unaudited condensed consolidated finastigéments included in this offering memorandune fidlowing
summary historical consolidated financial datatfar years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2@Dasaof
December 31, 2009 and 2008 are derived from, aatifigal by reference to, our audited consolidaiedricial
statements included in this offering memorandum.

Our unaudited condensed consolidated financiadistants have been prepared on the same basis as our
audited consolidated financial statements exceptasd in the related notes thereto and, in th@apof
management, include all normal recurring adjustsentisidered necessary for a fair presentatiomofigancial
condition and result of operations for such peri@gerating results for the six months and twehmnths ended
June 30, 2010 are not necessarily indicative ofélkalts that may be expected for the year endegbker 31,
2010. The summary data should be read in conjumetith the consolidated financial statements ferykars ende
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the related aotkthe independent registered public accouniingd report,
which refers to the adoption of certain new accimgnstandards, included in this offering memorandum

Six Months ~ Twelve Months Year Ended
Ended June 30, Ended June 3C December 31,
2010 2009 @ 2010 ® 2009 ) 2008 () 2007 (1)
(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited)
(in millions)
Consolidated Statement of Operations Date

Net sales $2,905 $ 2,39C $ 5597 $ 508 $ 6,820 $ 6,44¢
Cost of sale: (2,389 (1,949 (4,521) (4,079 (5,567 (4,999
Gross profil 521 44¢€ 1,07¢ 1,00: 1,25¢ 1,44t
Selling, general and administrative exper (24¢€) (228) (487) (469) (540) (51€)
Amortization of intangible asse (30) (39) (69) (77) (7€) (72)
Research and development exper 37 (39) (74) (7%) (80) (73)
Other (charges) gains, r (83) (27) (192) (136) (10€) (58)
Foreign exchange gain (loss), | 2 3 1 2 4) 2
Gain (loss) on disposition of businesses and asset 15 (4) 61 42 (8) 2C
Operating profit (loss 142 11€ 31€ 29C 44C 74¢
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliat 94 41 152 99 17z 15C
Interest expens (98) (10%) (200) (207) (261) (262)
Refinancing expens — — — — — (25€)
Interest incom: 2 5 5 8 31 44
Dividend incom—cost investment 72 56 73 57 48 38
Other income (expense), r 5 3 6 4 3 (25)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare 217 11€ 352 251 432 437
Income tax (provision) benef (42) (22) 224 243 (63) (110)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic 17€ 94 57€ 494 37C 327
Earnings (loss) from operation of discontinued afiens (5) — 1 6 (220) 4C
Gain (loss) on disposition of discontinued operai 2 — 2 — 6 52
Income tax (provision) benefit from discontinuedeogtions 1 — (2) (2 24 (2)
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati (2) — 2 4 (9C) 9C
Net earnings (loss $ 174% 91$% 576 $ 49€ $ 28C $ 417




Six Months  Twelve Months Year Ended

Ended June 30, Ended June 3C December 31,
2010 2009 @ 2010 @ 2009 W 2008 @ 2007 M
(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited)
(in millions)
Other Financial Data:
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 152 $ 15C$ 311$% 30¢€$ 35C$ 291
Operating EBITDA @ 574 38¢ 1,042 857 1,16: 1,28¢
Capital expenditure 63 72 15¢ 167 267 30¢€
As of As of

June 30, December 31
2010 20091 20081

(unaudited) (audited)
(in millions)

Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalel $ 1,081 $125¢ $ 67€
Trade receivable 862 721 631
Non-trade receivable 244 262 281
Inventories 522 522 577
Property, plant, and equipment, | 2,67¢€ 2,791 2,47(C
Total asset 8,10¢ 8,41z 7,15¢
Total debt 3,421 3,501 3,53:

Twelve Months
Ended June 30, 201
(Dollars in millions)

Credit Statistics (unaudited):

Net debt ®) $ 2,34¢
Ratio of net debt to Operating EBITD/2 2.3
Interest expens $ 20C
Ratio of Operating EBITDA? to interest expens 5.2x

1) We indirectly own a 25% interest in Ibn Sina throu@TE Petrochemicals Company (“CTE”"), a joint vesatu
with Texas Eastern Arabian Corporation Ltd. (whadbo indirectly owns 25%). The remaining interestan
Sina is held by Saudi Basic Industries Corporaf&\BIC”). SABIC and CTE entered into the lbn Sijaént
venture agreement in 1981. In April 2010, we anmedrthat Ibn Sina will construct a 50,000 ton POM
production facility in Saudi Arabia and that thenteof the joint venture agreement was extended 2682.
Upon successful startup of the POM facility, ouwtifect economic interest in Ibn Sina will incredisem 25% to
32.5%. SABIC’s economic interest will remain uncgad. In connection with this transaction, we ressseé the
factors surrounding the accounting method for ithiestment and changed the accounting from themestod
of accounting for investments to the equity methbdccounting for investments beginning April 1,120
Financial information relating to this investmeat prior periods has been retrospectively adjusdeabply the
equity method of accountin

Operating EBITDA is calculated by adding to netrf@ags) loss, earnings (loss) from discontinuedratiens,
interest expense and income, taxes, depreciatidmiuortization and certain other items, such adayep
termination benefits and costs from plant closares relocations. We present Operating EBITDA begaves
consider it an important supplemental measure ppetformance and believe it is frequently useddgurities
analysts, investors and other interested partidseirevaluation of companies in our indus

Operating EBITDA has limitations as an analyticailtand should not be considered in isolation ca as
substitute for net earnings, earnings from contiguiperations, cash flow from operating activitesany other
measure of financial performance or liquidity presel in accordance with GAAP. Operat
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EBITDA excludes some, but not all, items that affeet earnings and earnings from continuing openatiand
Operating EBITDA as presented may not be compatatdemilarly titted measures of other compan

In particular:

Operating EBITDA does not reflect, among other gisit
i. cash expenditures or future requirements for chgi@enditures or contractual commitmet

ii. changes in, or cash requirements for, worldagital needs;
the significant interest expense, or tlaslt requirements necessary to service interest or
principal payments, on debt; a

iv. any cash income taxes that we may be requiredytc
assets are depreciated or amortized ovienaed useful lives and have to be replaced irfuhee,
and Operating EBITDA does not reflect any cash irequents for such replacemer
Operating EBITDA does not adjust for alhAcash earnings or expense items that are reflatimar

consolidated statements of cash flows;
Operating EBITDA does not reflect limitat®on, or costs related to, transferring earning®s four

subsidiaries to the Issuer and the Parent Guatrz:
Because of these limitations, Operating EBITDA stiawt be considered as a measure of discreticresly
available to us to invest in our operation anchiegrowth of our business or as a measure of tashvill be
available to us to meet our obligations. You shaddhpensate for these limitations by relying pritgasn our
results as calculated and presented in accordaiticé3AAP and using Operating EBITDA only supplensdiyt




The following table presents a reconciliation ofe@qiing EBITDA to net earnings (loss), the mosedily
comparable GAAP measut

Six Months Twelve Months Year Ended
Ended June 30. Ended June 3C December 31
2010 2009 2010 2009
(in millions)

Net earnings (loss $174 $94 $ 57¢ % 49¢
(Earnings) loss from discontinued operati 2 — 2 4
Interest (income (2 (5) (5) (8)
Interest expens 98 10t 20C 207
Income tax provision (benefi 41 22 (229 (243)
Depreciation and amortization expel 152 15C 311 30¢

Other charges (gains), r
Employee termination benefi® 9 29 85 10t
Plant/office closure®) 6 — 23 17
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocati(©) 10 6 20 16
Clear Lake insurance recover@ — (6) — (6)
Plumbing action(®) (14) 3) (21 (10)
Asset impairment(® 72 1 85 14
Total other charges (gains), 1 83 27 19z 13€

Other adjustment

Business optimizatio® 7 3 11 7
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocati® 2 2 4 —
Plant closure(® 9 4 13 8
Gain on sale of buildin® (14) — (14) —
Gain on sale of PVOH busine® — — (34) (34)
Write-off of other productive asse() 17 — 17 —
Otherm 8 (13) 3 (18)
Total other adjustmen 25 (4) (8) (37)
Operating EBITDA $574 $38¢ $ 1,042 $ 857

@ Consists of termination benefits as a result diuesuring efforts. See Note 13 to our unauditedsodidated
financial statements for the six months ended 3&010, which are included in this offering mearmatum,
and Note 18 to our audited consolidated finand&tkesnents for the year ended December 31, 200@hvete
included in this offering memorandu

() Consists primarily of contract termination costse ®lote 13 to our unaudited consolidated finarst&kement
for the six months ended June 30, 2010, whichradi@ded in this offering memorandum, and Note 18up
audited consolidated financial statements for #wrended December 31, 2009, which are includéusn
offering memorandun

© Consists of costs, other than inventory-relatedscascurred in connection with the relocation af @icona
plant from Kelsterbach, Germany to the Rhine Ma&az

(@) Consists of insurance recoveries in satisfactioclaifms related to the unplanned outage of ourrGlake,
Texas acetic acid facility

() Consists of recoveries and changes in legal resdovdegal claims associated with plumbing systems
produced by CNA Holdings LLC, a US subsidiary ol@@ese. See Notes 13 and 17 to our unau
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consolidated financial statements for the six msmihded June 30, 2010, which are included in tfising
memorandum, and Notes 18 and 24 to our auditecbtidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2009, which are included in this aiffpmemorandun

Consists of long-lived asset impairment losses arilynrelated to the shut-down of the Spondon, Perb
United Kingdom acetate flake and tow operationstaedPardies, France acetic acid facil

Consists of nc-severance restructuring cos

Consists of inventory-related costs incurred inmeanion with the relocation of our Ticona plantrfro
Kelsterbach, Germany to the Rhine Main a

Consists of shi-down costs related to our Pampa, Texas and PaFd@sce acetic acid facilitie
Consists of a gain on the sale of an office bugdimMexico.

Consists of a gain on the sale of our PVOH busimedaly 2009 to Sekisui Chemical Co., L
Consists of the wri-off of other productive assets related to our Simga and Nanjing, China facilitie
Consists primarily of a ol-time adjustment to Equity in net earnings (lossaffifiates of $19 million

() We define net debt as total debt less cash andezpsihalents. We use net debt to evaluate ouraagiiucture.
The most directly comparable financial measuregmesi in accordance with GAAP in our financial esiag¢nts
for net debt is total dek
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Partners of
CTE Petrochemicals Company

We have audited the accompanying balance she&¥®BfPetrochemicals Company (the “Company”) as afddeber 31, 2009 and 2008, and
the related statements of operations, partnerstatapnd cash flows for each of the three yeattiénperiod ended December 31, 2009. These
financial statements are the responsibility of@menpany’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on the financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audiiagdards generally accepted in the United StdtAmerica. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabtnassurance about whether the financial statsnaea free of material misstatement. An
audit includes consideration of internal controéofinancial reporting as a basis for designingtgubcedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssmopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autlibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenppating the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the acamuptinciples used and significant estimates mad@énagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis floopinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements presainlyf, in all material respects, the financial giusi of CTE Petrochemicals Company as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results afdperations and their cash flows for each of ktined years in the period ended
December 31, 2009, in conformity with accountinipgiples generally accepted in the United State&roérica.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Houston, Texas
September 13, 2010




CTE PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
(In $ thousands)
Equity in net earnings of lbn Sii $134,46¢ $201,47 $173,04:
Income tax benef 4,75C 0 0
Withholding tax expens (4,120 (11,94) (8,21%)
Net earning: $135,09( $189,53! $164,82°

See the accompanying notes to the financial statesne
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CTE PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31,
2009 2008
(In $ thousands)

ASSETS
Investment in Ibn Sin $158,77: $109,48:¢
Total asset $158,77: $109,48t¢

LIABILTIES AND PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
Current liabilities

Income taxes payab $ 14,49¢ $ 0
Total current liabilities 14,49¢ —
Tax liability — 19,25(
Total liabilities 14,49¢ 19,25(
Partner’ capital $144,27. $ 90,23¢
Total liabilities and partne’ capital $158,77: $109,48¢

See the accompanying notes to the financial statesne
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Partners’ Capital

Balance as of the
beginning of the peric

Net earnings

Dividends

Balance as of the end o
the yeal

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive
Income(Loss), Ne

Balance as of the
beginning of the peric

Pension and
postretirement benefi

Balance as of the end o
the perioc

Total Partner Capital

CTE PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF PARTNERS’ CAPITAL

2009 2008 2007
Texas Texas Texas
Eastern Elwood Eastern Elwood Eastern Elwood
Arabian Insurance Arabian Insurance Arabian Insurance
Ltd. Ltd. Total Ltd. Ltd. Total Ltd. Ltd. Total
(In $ thousands) (In $ thousands) (In $ thousands)
$46,14: $46,14: $92,28¢ $ 70,68¢ $ 70,68° $141,37. $70,42: $70,42¢ $ 140,84¢
67,54¢ 67,54°¢ 135,09( 94,76¢ 94,76¢ 189,53t 82,41: 82,41+ 164,82°
(40,940 (40,947 (81,88) (119,31() (119,31) (238,62) (82,15) (82,15) (164,30)
72,74¢ 72,747 145,49! 46,14« 46,14: 92,28¢ 70,68¢ 70,68¢ 141,37:
(1,029 (1,029 (2,049 (899) (899) (1,799 (49€) (497) (992
417 417 82F (125) (125) (250) (402) (407) (805)
(612) (611) (1,229 (1,029 (1,029 (2,04%) (89€) (900) (1,79¢)
$72,13¢ $72,13¢ $144,27. $ 45,12( $ 45,11¢ $ 90,23t $69,787 $69,78¢ $ 139,57

See the accompanying notes to the financial statesme
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CTE PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activitie:
Net earning:
Equity in net earnings of Ibn Sit
Income tax benef
Dividends receive!
Net cash provided by operating activit
Financing activitie:
Dividends paic
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Net change in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Year Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007
(In $ thousands)

$ 135,00 $ 189,53 $ 164,82
(134,46¢) (201,47) (173,04
(4,750) — —
86,00’ 250,56 172,51
81,88 238,62 164,30:
(81,88) (238,62) (164,30:)

(81,88)) (238,62) (164,305

$ 0 $ 0 $ 0

See the accompanying notes to the financial statesne
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CTE PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of the Company and Basis of Preserttan

CTE Petrochemicals Company (“CTE” or the “Comparig"a common general partnership (the “Partnerhipiich was formed on

January 27, 1981 pursuant to the laws of the Cayislands, British West Indies. The original pargjeCelanese Arabian Inc. (“Celanese
Arabian”) and Texas Eastern Arabian Ltd., a whollyned subsidiary of Duke Energy Corporation (“Duke&ach acquired an equal
ownership interest in CTE. Through a series ofdaations, Elwood Insurance Limited (“Elwood”), aallif owned subsidiary of Celanese
Corporation (“Celanese”), acquired Celanese Arabianginal interest in CTE, and Celanese and Dedatinue to have an equal ownership
interest, including profit and loss distribution.

CTE’s only asset is its 50% investment in Natidviathanol Company (“Ibn Sina”). Ibn Sina, a Saudiited liability company registered
under the laws of Saudi Arabia, is owned equall{CA¥ and Saudi Basic Industries Corporation (“SABJ@ privately-held Saudi Arabian
joint stock company. Ibn Sina was formed in 198d &nin the business of operating a petrochemigadptex which produces methanol &
methyl tertiary butyl ether (“MTBE").

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements were preparadcordance with accounting principles generaflgepted in the United States of
America (“US GAAP”) for all periods presented.

2. Summary of Accounting Policies

» Estimates and assumption:

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith US GAAP requires management to make estsiand assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andmeee and expenses. These estimates, based owaikstla information at the time, could
differ from actual results.

* |nvestment in lbn Sina

The Company accounts for its investment in Ibn Sisiag the equity method of accounting as it hasathility to exercise significant
influence over operating and financial policiedlof Sina, but does not exercise control.

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingrvalue of its investment whenever events onglea in circumstances indicate a loss in
value that is other than a temporary decline. A lasvalue of an equity-method investment whicbtfer than a temporary decline will be
recognized as the difference between the carryimguat of the investment and its fair value.

» Dividends

The Company records dividends when received. Hestly, Ibn Sina has distributed a substantial jporof the after tax earnings to its
shareholders. CTE remits the dividends to its dt@ders, Celanese and Duke, simultaneously whesivwed from Ibn Sina.

e Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Accumulated other comprehensive income is the Coipahare of Ibn Sina’gains or losses for pension and postretiremeardftie that are
not recognized immediately as a component of nebgie pension cost.

3. Investment in Ibn Sina

The following are summarized US GAAP financial staent results of Ibn Sina (in thousands):
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2009 2008 2007

Total Asset: $468,44 $ 356,08 $511,82¢
Debt 0 0 0
Total Liabilities 140,22¢ 112,04¢( 169,39¢
Net Sales 752,57 1,073,51. 885,81+
Operating Profi 324,99: 469,86 410,07
Net Income 289,10( 421,23: 365,82:

The laws of Saudi Arabia require different allooas of income taxes to capital balances based tgorespective partner’s country of
domicile. Accordingly, CTE'’s percentage of Ibn Sghaet income in equity is not proportioned todtgnership percentages.

4. Taxes

The financial statements reflect no provision abllity for income taxes because the Company’snfiie results are included in the income
tax returns of the Partners for the years ende@mber 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007. The Company incithbi@lding tax at a rate of 5% on
dividends received from its investment in Ibn Siéthholding taxes are reported as withholdingéagense on the Company’s income
statement when dividends are received. Amounts slemmwithholding tax expense were paid in the rebpeperiods presented.

The Company adopted the provisions of FASB ASC Hathme Taxeoriginally issued as FASB Interpretation No. A8counting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxgswhich clarifies the accounting and disclosuneuncertainty in income tax positions, as defirad,January 1,
2007. Based on the Company’s review, a reservd ®f3million related to Saudi Arabia corporate imeotax on the Company’s share of lbn
Sina earnings for tax years 1997 to 2003 was reduifhe tax reserve was recorded through incomexpanse on the Company’s financials
prior to the adoption of FASB ASC 740 and no curtiuéaeffect adjustment was required at adoptiomotJgeceiving a final tax assessment
from the Saudi Arabian tax authority in 2009, tre@any reversed $4.7 million of the tax reserve r@athssed the remaining $14.5 million
to current Income taxes payable. The tax was petlld first quarter of 2010.

5. Subsequent Events

Effective April 1, 2010, Celanese, Duke and SABted to expand the scope of Ibn Sina to includectbation of a polyacetal (‘POM”)
production facility, and extend the term of thenjorenture to 2032. The capital required to buiel POM plant will be funded equally by
SABIC and CTE. Celanese and Duke will provide 65% 85%, respectively, of the POM funding requireteeri CTE. Once the POM plant
becomes commercially operational, which is estishédetake approximately three years to complete '€ Tespective earnings will be split
65% and 35% to Celanese and Duke, respectively.ederythe partners’ equal ownership percentagerlia @ill remain unchanged.
Celanese and Duke will continue to share equal poasred influence over the significant activitiestod Company. SABIC will continue to
have 50% ownership in Ibn Sina, including its resiye share of profits and losses.

The production of methanol, methyl tertiary butiier (“MTBE”) and POM requires natural gas. Ibn&lmas a natural gas supply contract
through 2022. If the natural gas contract is rereine2022, CTE's earnings split will remain 65% &%% to Celanese and Duke,
respectively, until the termination of the jointmare in 2032. If the net income of lbn Sina isdve$10 million in any given year, the
earnings split will change to 99% and 1% to Celarsrsd Duke, respectively, for that year. At the ehthe joint venture term, SABIC and
Celanese have a call and put option, respectitelyyy out Celanese and Duke at fair market valalgss Ibn Sina is liquidated or the joint
venture is extended.

Subsequent events were updated through Septemp201@ the date at which the financials were atéél to be issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the management
National Methanol Company (lbn Sir
Al-Jubail, Saudi Arabia

We have audited the accompanying balance sheétatmnal Methanol Company (Ibn Sina), a Saudi kditiability company (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, aaddlated statements of income, shareholders’yeqnd cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, Z08%se financial statements are the responsibilitie@ Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audiiagdards generally accepted in the United StdtAmerica. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabtmassurance about whether the financial statsnaes free of material misstatement. An
audit includes consideration of internal controéofinancial reporting as a basis for designingtagucedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssmopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autiibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenppating the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the acaayptinciples used and significant estimates mad@&nagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis floopinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements presainlyf in all material respects, the financial gimsi of the Company as of December 31, 2009
and 2008, and the results of its operations anchgh flows for the years then ended and for tlae gaded December 31, 2007 in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted ind#rabia.

Accounting principles generally accepted in Saudiba vary in certain significant respects fromaoting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. Information relatioghe nature and effect of such differences isgm&ed in Note 21 to the financial
statements.

/sl Deloitte & Touche
Bakr Abulkhair & Co.

/sl Nasser M. Al-Sagga
License No. 322
September 13, 2010




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalel

Trade receivables from related part
Inventories

Other receivables and prepayme

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipme
Intangible asset

Other noi-current assel

Total non-current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payabl

Accrued and other current liabilitit

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Enc-of-service indemnitie
Other liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Shareholders’ equity
Share capite
Statutory reserv
Retained earning

Total shareholders’ equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERSE' EQUITY

The accompanying notes form an integral part aseHerancial statements

200¢

200¢

Note SR 00( SR 00(
3 284,31 55,20¢
15 471,77( 326,15;
4 180,71t 122,95
5 52,14¢ 34,04(
988,95: 538,35

6 697,66: 742,48¢
7 39,26¢ 23,44
8 27,33¢ 26,41
764,26: 792,34(

1,753,21. 1,330,69

9 29,82t 30,97
10 388,72¢ 270,47:
418,55¢ 301,44t

11 83,37: 100,45¢
12 15,42: 18,91:
98,79¢ 119,37:

1 558,00( 558,00(
18 279,00( 279,00(
398,86t 72,88(

1,235,86! 909,88(

1,753,21. 1,330,69




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007

Sales

Cost of sale:

Gross profit

Distribution expense
General and administrative expen

Operating income

Financial income
Other income (expenses), |

NET INCOME

The accompanying notes form an integral part aseHerancial statements

-3-

200¢

200¢

2007

Note SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
15 2,822,14. 4,025,66! 3,321,80;
15 1,585,05! 2,243,19; 1,769,82:

1,237,08! 1,782,47! 1,551,97:

52¢ 797 2,62¢

14,1F 14,81 19,50: 18,95¢
1,221,74 1,762,17 1,530,391

812 18,16¢ 18,01

4,15¢ (2,279) (1,515)

1,226,71 1,778,07. 1,546,89-




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007

Share capital
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2(

Statutory reserve
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2(

Retained earnings

January 1, 200

Net income for the ye:

Zakat and income tax for ye

Amounts withheld from shareholders towards zakdtinnome tay
Dividend related to year 2006, r

Dividend related to current ye

December 31, 200

Net income for the ye:

Zakat and income tax for ye

Amounts withheld from shareholders towards zakdtinnoome ta
Dividend related to year 2007, r

Dividend related to current ye

December 31, 20C

Net income for the ye:

Zakat and income tax for ye

Amounts withheld from shareholders towards zakdtinnome tay
Dividend related to year 2008, r

Dividend related to current ye

December 31, 20C

Total shareholders’ equity
December 31, 20C

December 31, 200

December 31, 200

The accompanying notes form an integral part aseHerancial statements

Saud

Basic CTE

Industrie: Petrochemica
Corporatiot Compan Total
Note SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
1 279,00( 279,00( 558,00(
18 139,50( 139,50( 279,00(
195,10¢ 197,37! 392,48
773,44 773,44 1,546,809
13 (23,709 (151,799 (175,50:)
87,21: 87,21:
(195,10¢) (197,37)) (392,48))
(505,97() (505,97() (1,011,941
243,77 202,89: 446,66
889,03t 889,03! 1,778,07.
13 (21,064 (182,68 (203,75:)
— 117,56 117,56
(243,77)) (202,89)) (446,66!)
(809,500) (809,500) (1,619,00)
58,47: 14,40¢ 72,88(
613,35 613,35° 1,226,71.
13 (16,495 (121,04) (137,54:)
106,10¢ 106,10¢
(58,616 (15,640 (74,256
(397,519 (397,51) (795,03Y)
199,20( 199,66t 398,86¢
617,70( 618,16t 1,235,86!
476,97. 432,90¢ 909,88(
662,27 621,39: 1,283,66!
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007

200¢ 200¢ 2007

SR 00( SR 00! SR 00
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income 1,226,71. 1,778,07. 1,546,89.
Adjustments for
Depreciatior 94,85( 84,83( 84,59¢
Amortization of intangible asse 57,28( 47,10¢ 38,44(
Enc-of-service indemnitie 7,04( 12,97¢ 15,12¢
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipn 46( 22C 9,70¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Trade receivable from related part (145,619 339,76 (393,62()
Inventories (57,767 8,68( (8,805
Other receivables and prepayme (18,106 4,89: (20,487
Accounts payabl (1,147 (4,401 (1,919
Accrued and other current liabilitit 171,63t (210,75 114,97¢
Other liabilities (3,490 (493 (8,099
Cash from operatior 1,331,85 2,060,89! 1,386,83.
Enc-of-service indemnities pa (24,129 (6,337) (7,739
Zakat and income tax pa (190,92) (205,85() (115,519
Net cash from operating activities 1,116,80 1,848,71 1,263,57
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipm (50,979) (62,746 (64,427
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and egamt 48¢ — 1,47:
Additions to intangible asse (73,109 (17,019 (72,067
Other nor-current assel (921) 6,92¢ 2,02:
Net cash used in investing activitie (124,51) (72,830 (132,999
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid net of zakat and income (763,180 (1,948,10) (1,317,21)
Net cash used in financing activitie: (763,180 (1,948,10) (1,317,211
Net change in cash and cash equivalen 229,11 (172,21¢) (186,630()
Cash and cash equivalents, Janua 55,20¢ 227,42: 414,05¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 284,31t 55,20¢ 227,42

The accompanying notes form an integral part aseHerancial statements
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007

1.

ORGANIZATION AND ACTIVITIES

National Methanol Compan*lbn Sina”) (the “Company”) is a Saudi limited lidiby company registered under Commercial
Registration No. 2055000779 dated 19 Rajab 1401&dy(RB, 1981)

The Company is owned equally by Saudi Basiastries Corporation (“SABIC”) a Saudi Arabian jostbck company and CTE
Petrochemicals Company (“CTE"), a partnership fiegéxl in Cayman Islands, British West Indies. C3Equally owned by Elwoods
Insurance Company, a Bermuda Corporation, and TEeaatern Arabian Ltd, a Bermuda Corporati

The authorized share capital of the Compai8Rs742 million divided into 7,420 units of SR 10@00=ach. The paid up capital at
December 31, 2009 and 2008 was SR 558 million cm®gof 5,580 units of SR 100,000 ee

The Company’s principal business activity i®perate a petrochemical complex at Al-Jubail IndaisCity which produces Methanol
and Methyl Tertiary Butyl Ether (“MTBE”"). The Commgs Methanol and MTBE plants commenced commeng&rations on
November 1, 1984 and July 1, 1994, respectivel\BIEAdistributes and markets the Comp’s products

The Compan's registered office is in ,~Jubail Industrial City in the Kingdom of Saudi Arak

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements have pegpared in compliance with the accounting stadgl@sued by the Saudi
Organization for Certified Public Accountants. To#owing is a summary of significant accountindipi@s applied by the Compan

Accounting convention
The financial statements are prepared under therltial cost conventior
Revenue recognition

Product sales are made to SABIC (the “Mark@téspon delivery of products to the Marketer, saesrecorded at provisional selling
prices net of marketing expenses paid directlyneyMarketer. These selling prices are later adjulstsed upon actual selling prices
received by the Marketer from third parties. Adjnshts are recorded as they become known to the @oyr

Distribution and general and administrative expense

Distribution expenses principally comprise o$ts incurred in the distribution and sale of tlwemPany’s products / services. All other
expenses are classified as general and adminigtetpense:

General and administrative expenses includetand indirect costs not specifically part ofgquction costs as required under generally
accepted accounting principles. Allocations betwgemeral and administrative expenses and costed,sahen required, are made on a
consistent basi

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the originadice amount less an allowance for any uncolidetamounts. Adjustments are recorded
as they become known to the Company. An estimatddobtful debts is made when the collection ofdheounts receivable amount is
considered doubtful. Bad debts are written offrasiired.
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007

Inventories

Finished goods and chemicals are stated dbwer of cost or net realizable value. Cost ofdiréd goods, chemicals, spare parts and
supplies is determined on a weighted average @s$$ dnventories of finished goods include cognaterials, labor and an appropriate
portion of direct overhead

Inventory items that are considered as esddatensure continuous plant operations are treagechpital spare parts and are classified
as plant and equipment and are depreciated usindetbreciation rate relevant to the correspondiagt@nd equipmen

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated atreif accumulated depreciation except for casitsn in progress which is stated at
cost. Expenditure on maintenance and repairs isresqul, while expenditure for betterments is capédl Depreciation is provided over
the estimated useful lives of the applicable asssityy the straight line method. Leasehold improsets are amortized over the shorter
of the estimated useful life or the remaining texfnthe lease. The estimated years of depreciafidimegprincipal classes of assets are as
follows:

Years
Buildings 33
Plant and equipmel 20
Catalyst 1-6
Furniture, fixtures and vehicle 4-10

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Company revtewvsarrying amounts of its property, plant andigepent and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication thatéhassets have suffered an impairment loss. If acly mdication exists, the recovera
amount of the asset is estimated in order to déterthe extent of the impairment loss (if any). \Whi¢ is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Gom@stimates the recoverable amount of the casérgtng unit to which the asset
belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or ¢gsterating unit) is estimated to be less thanaits/ing amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (cas-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable arhdmpairment losses are recognized as an expemsediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently revetisegarrying amount of the asset (cash-generatiitlj is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so thairttreased carrying amount does not exceed thgiegramount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognizethé asset (cagienerating unit) in prior years. A reversal of ampairment loss i
recognized as income immediate

Intangible assets

Intangible assets anticipated to provide idiattie future benefits are classified as non-curemsets, and are amortized using the
straigh-line method over their estimated useful lives. Sim¢hngibles assets and their expected amortizagoiods are as follow:

Employee home ownershi* HOP" ) costs

Costs incurred in connection with the constructibemployee housing are capitalized with the relassets and are amortized using
straight line method over a period of five ye:
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007
Planned turnaround cos

Planned turnaround costs are deferred and emaddver the period until the date of the nexhpkd turnaround. Should an unexpected
turnaround occur prior to the previously envisadate of planned turnaround, then the previouslynortized deferred costs are
immediately expensed and the new turnaround costaraortized over the period likely to benefit freoch costs

Costs of implementation of SAP Enterprise ResoBlaening Systent SAP ERI")

As per the requirements of SABIC's unified aoating policies, all costs relating to Fanar-SAPFERplementation are deferred and
amortized using the straight line method over @opleof five years

Production advances

Amounts received from affiliates in respectapital advances to finance tangible assets oEtmpany are included under non current
liabilities and are amortized over the estimategfuldives of the related assets using the strdightmethod

End-of-service indemnities

End-of-service indemnities, required by the@a#rabian labor law, are provided in the finangtdtements based on the employees’
length of service

Employee¢ home ownership program
The Company has a home ownership program thatsoflegible Saudi employees home ownership oppdiam

Unsold housing units constructed for eventadd 0 eligible employees are included under prtypetant and equipment and
depreciated over 33 yea

When the houses are allocated to the employleespst of houses constructed and sold to théogegs under the program is
transferred from property, plant and equipmentth@pnon-current assets. Down payments and insalisof purchase price received
from employees are set off against the other-current asset:

The cost of the houses and the related purgiréseis removed from other non-current assetswthe title to the houses is transferred
to the employees, at which time, no significanhgai loss is expected to result to the Comp

Employees’ savings plan

The Company maintains an employee saving flaa.contributions from the participants are degasih a separate bank account and
provision is established for the Comp’s contribution

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability at the théheir approval by the Board of Directors. Iimedividends are recorded as and w
approved by the Board of Directo

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated iatadBSRiyals at the rates of exchange prevailindpatime of the transactions. Monet:
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cwies at the balance sheet date are translatealtdi Riyals at the exchange rates
prevailing at that date. Gains and losses fronkeseéint and translation of foreign currency transastare included in the statements of
income.
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007
Zakat and income tax

The Company is subject to the Regulations eMkpartment of Zakat and Income Tax (“DZIT)the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Zak
and income tax are provided on an accruals basgiglarged to retained earnings. The zakat chargmigputed at 2.5% on the zakat
base. Income tax is computed at 20% of adjustethoeme. Any difference in the estimate is recordé@n the final assessment is
approved, at which time the provision is cleal

As per the requirements of the standard isbyetie Saudi Organization for Certified Public Agotants, zakat and income tax
provisions for mixed companies are presented aparate item in the statements of shareholderstyediny amount withheld or
recovered from shareholders towards zakat and indasnis added back to the sharehol' equity.

By-product sales

Sales of by— products are credited to cost of sa
Technology and innovation

Technology and innovation costs are expensed wignred.
Leasing

Leases are classified as capital leases whetfevéerms of the lease transfer substantiallpfaihe risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified asatipgrleases. Rentals payable under operatingdeasecharged to income on a straight
line basis over the term of the operating le

3.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, dedepuakits, and highly liquid investments with orgimaturities of three months or less.
Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2@D2008 comprise entirely of bank balanc

Bank balances at December 31, 2009 include empdoyedng plan deposits held in a separate banluatod SR 3.5 million (2008: S
5.2 million) which are not available to the Compa

4. INVENTORIES

200¢ 200¢

SR 00( SR 00(

Finished good 97,60: 54,50«
Chemicals 5,11¢ 3,25(
Spare parts and suppli 72,21t 61,02’
Goods in transi 5,782 4,17¢
180,71¢ 122,95

Inventories at December 31, 2009 are showifnaitowance for obsolescence of SR 12.3 milliod02 — SR 12.3 million). The spare
parts inventory primarily relates to plant and maehy and, accordingly, this inventory is expedidtbe utilized over a period exceed
one year

-9-




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)

(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007

5. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Advances to related parties (note

Prepayment
Others

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2009

Cost

January 1, 200
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
December 31, 20C

Depreciation
January 1, 200
Charge for yea
Disposals
December 31, 20C

Net book value
December 31, 200

200¢

200¢

SR 00( SR 00(

37,68( 18,21:

8,191 8,352

6,26¢ 7,47%

52,14¢ 34,04(

Furniture
Plant ani fixtures an« Constructiol

Buildings equipmer Catalys vehicles in progres Total
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
304,14¢ 2,094,18: 88,60( 75,74: 93,50: 2,656,17
5,18¢ 23,44( 1,47¢ 617 20,24¢ 50,97:
— — — (346 (94€) (1,297
2,23( 16,31 31,21¢ 3,81¢ (53,579 —
311,56¢ 2,133,93. 121,29 79,83( 59,23 2,705,85!
196,31( 1,600,81! 47,04: 69,52 — 1,913,69:
9,53( 72,45 10,83: 2,03¢ — 94,85(
— — — (34€) — (34€)
205,84( 1,673,27! 57,87 71,2138 — 2,008,19!
105,72¢ 460,66: 63,42: 8,611 59,23t 697,66

-10 -




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007

2008
Furniture
Plant ani fixtures an Constructiol
Buildings equipmer Catalys vehicle: in progres Total
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(

Cost
January 1, 200 300,28: 2,049,64' 81,23¢ 74,42 88,08t 2,593,67
Additions 1,38 15,15( — 8 46,20¢ 62,74¢
Disposals — (28) — (13 (20%) (24€)
Transfers 2,48¢ 29,41 7,361 1,32¢ (40,582 —
December 31, 20C 304,14¢ 2,094,18: 88,60( 75,74 93,50:¢ 2,656,17
Depreciation
January 1, 200 186,45} 1,530,18. 44,17¢ 68,07« — 1,828,88
Charge for yea 9,85t 70,65¢ 2,86¢ 1,45¢ — 84,83(
Disposals — (19 — (7) — (26)
December 31, 20C 196,31( 1,600,81! 47,04. 69,52! — 1,913,69.
Net book value
December 31, 20C 107,83¢ 493,36: 41,55¢ 6,227 93,50:¢ 742,48t

The Company has leased land for plant and eterip and buildings from the Royal Commission fdvalland Yanbu at nominal rent.
The lease is for a period of 30 years commencioign ft Jumada 1402H (February 24, 1982) and is repleviilar a similar period under
mutually agreed terms and conditio

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, constructigorayress mainly represents costs incurred and adggaid in respect of catalyst and
housing units under constructic

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2009
Employet
home Software
ownershi Turnarount developmer
costt Cost: costt Total
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Cost
January 1, 200 4,35¢ 95,55: 16,11¢ 116,02¢
Additions — 71,63¢ 1,467 73,10:
December 31, 20C 4,35¢ 167,18t 17,58¢ 189,13
Amortization
January 1, 200 38t 78,93t 13,26¢ 92,58¢
Charge for the yes 872 52,09: 4,317 57,28(
December 31, 200 1,257 131,02¢ 17,58¢ 149,86¢
Net book value
December 31, 200 3,102 36,16: — 39,26¢
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007

2008

Cost
January 1, 200
Additions

December 31, 200

Amortization
January 1, 200
Charge for the yes
December 31, 20C

Net book value
December 31, 200

8. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Employee home ownership receivak
Others

9. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Trade accounts payat
Due to related partie

10. ACCRUED AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other operating cos

Technology and innovation costs (hote
Zakat and income tax (note 1
Withholding tax

Others
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Employe¢

home Software

ownershi) Turnarount developmer
cost: costt cost: Total
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
92t 82,97 15,11¢ 99,01"
3,43¢ 12,57¢ 1,00( 17,017
4,35¢ 95,557 16,11¢ 116,02
20C 35,42¢ 9,85¢ 45,48(
18t 43,51( 3,418 47,10¢
38¢ 78,93¢ 13,26¢ 92,58¢
3,97¢ 16,61 2,85( 23,44
200¢ 200¢
SR 00( SR 00(
25,64: 24,73
1,69: 1,682
27,33« 26,41
200¢ 200¢
SR 00( SR 00(
10,10¢ 8,11i
19,71¢ 22,85¢
29,82¢ 30,97
200¢ 200¢
SR 00( SR 00(
342,66¢ 171,56!
1,78 1,18¢
31,43¢ 84,82(
6,65¢ 10,86:
6,17¢ 2,041
388,72¢ 270,47-




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007

11. END-OF-SERVICE INDEMNITIES

200¢ 200¢

SR 00( SR 00!

January 1 100,45¢ 93,81t

Additional provision in yea 7,04( 12,97¢

Utilization of provision (24,129 (6,33))

December 3: 83,37 100,45¢
12. OTHER LIABILITIES

200¢ 200¢

SR 00( SR 00(

Employee’ savings plan (note 1’ 7,547 10,27:

Employee’ early retiremen 311 44¢

Other deferred credi 7,564 8,191

15,42; 18,91:

Other deferred credits represent capital adesneceived from two affiliated companies for theiare of the capital cost of a commonly
used Truck Loading Facility which is owned and ngethby the Company. These advances are being aawtt income over a period
of twenty years, which approximates the period avigich the related assets are depreciated by thgp@oy.

13. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX

The principal elements of the zakat base are &ssi

200¢ 200¢ 2007
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Non-current assel 764,26: 792,34( 851,66¢
Spare parts and suppli 72,21t 61,027 44,14(
Non-current liabilities 98,79: 119,37: 113,22(
Opening shareholde equity 909,88( 1,283,66! 1,229,48
Dividends paic 763,18t 1,948,10. 1,317,211
Net income 1,226,71. 1,778,07. 1,546,89.
Some of these amounts have been adjusted in ar@tithe zakat charge for the ye
The movement in zakat and income tax provisiorsifodows:
200¢ 200¢ 2007
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Zakat
January ! 23,28¢ 22,47( 14,59¢
Provision for yea 16,49t 21,06« 23,70:
Payments during ye: (23,289 (20,25() (15,83
December 3: 16,49¢ 23,28¢ 22,47(
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007

200¢ 200¢ 2007
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Income tax
January ! 61,53¢ 64,44¢ 12,33:
Provision for yea 121,04° 182,68t 151,79¢
Payments during ye: (167,639 (185,600 (99,687
December 3: 14,94 61,53¢ 64,44¢
The charge for the year for zakat and income tasifollows:
200¢ 200¢ 2007
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Zakat for current yee 16,49¢ 21,06+ 23,70:
Income tax for current yei 121,04 182,68t 151,79¢
Charged to retained earnin 137,54. 203,75: 175,50:

Outstanding assessments

Zakat and income tax assessments have beesdagith the Department of Zakat and Income tax {D4ip to 1996. The DZIT has
issued assessments for the years 1997 throughvi#ifl®dn additional tax, zakat and delay fine liapibf SR 85.8 million. The
Company has filed appeals against the above assetsand has also submitted bank guarantees amguotSR 82.9 million to the
DZIT.

During 2009, the DZIT issued the revised assesss for the years 1997 to 2003 based on theide@$ Higher Appeal Committee and
demanded an additional tax, zakat, delay fine a®habd profit tax liability of SR 56.3 million. Ti@mpany has accepted the revised
assessments for the years 1997 to 2003 and paatithional liability in January 201

The DZIT did not issue assessments for the yeas dbvards as these years are in process by the.l
Additional liabilities that may become payalileonnection with income taxes, delay fines anstscelated to the appeals will be borne
by the foreign partne

14. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

200¢ 200¢ 2007

SR 00( SR 00 SR 00

Employee benefit 6,49¢ 7,15¢ 7,26z
Technology and innovation (note 1 6,941 11,21 10,10¢
Depreciatior 10 64 14C
Other 1,37C 1,06¢ 1,444
14,817 19,50: 18,95¢

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The trade receivables from related parties at Déeer81, 2009 and 2008 mainly represent receivdibes the Marketer (SABIC)
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007

Effective September 1999, all procurement sesjiincluding warehousing , transporting and giranfor delivery of materials related
to the Company’s spare parts, supplies and mateiel provided by SABIC under the terms of the prement services agreement
entered between the Company and SABIC. Startingligct2004, procurement services are provided bylSABrough the Shared
Services Organization (SSO). Advances to SABIGstarh services, which are included under other vabéés and prepayments,
amounted to SR 37.7 million at December 31, 200982 SR 18.2 million). SABIC charged the Company4Rmillion in 2009 (200¢
SR 3.6 million) (2007: SR 2.8 million) as procurameervices fee:

In addition to procurement services, SSO dliaderovide accounting, human resources, inforonatechnology, engineering, and other
general services to the Company effective Octob8d2The total amount charged in respect of thesgces was SR 7.7 million (2008:
SR 7.5 million) (2007: SR 5.4 million

SABIC Terminal Services Limited (Sabtank) pdms shipping and material handling services tdbmpany. The total service fee
charged by the related party in this respect ansalittt SR 7.8 million (2008: SR 8.1 million) (20&R 6.0 million).

The shareholders also provide the Company eéttain required technical, research and developradministrative and other services
in accordance with executed agreements. The Contpasig Technology and Innovation Service agreemgmtSABIC, under which
SABIC provides research and development servic@st@€ompany. The Company is required to pay anarfee under the agreeme
which is calculated at one percent of Methanolssplas the lesser of US $1 million or one percéM®BE sales. A summary of the
amounts charged by the shareholders is as foll

200¢ 200¢ 2007

SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(

SABIC — for technology and innovation servic 6,941 11,212 10,10¢
16. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

200¢ 200¢ 2007

SR 00( SR 00 SR 00(

Charges under operating leases recognized as angxpuring the yei 7,02¢ 5,11¢ 4,29i

Operating lease charges represent rentals feafgabvehicles, properties and land (note 6). Risrdire fixed at the start of each lease
term for a period of 4 years for vehicles and 2 tgears for propertie:

17. EMPLOYEE SAVING PLAN

The Company administers a saving plan covesirigstantially all of the Company’s employees. Bgrditing employees may elect to
contribute 1 to 15 percent of their basic salatye Tompany matches cumulative employee contribsit@m rate which increases by
10 percent each year until completion of ten ye&sarticipation, at which time Company’s cumulatisontributions equal the
employer’s cumulative contributions. The Comp'’s contributions to the saving plan are accrued hgr@ind are not funde:

Employees are always fully vested in their dbations. The employees are fully vested in thenfany’s accruals generally after one
year of participation in the plan. Employees maghaiaw their contribution at any time under certeamditions, and have the option
repay such withdrawals. All full
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007

vested amounts are payable to the employeas ngticement or termination of participation in glan. Upon completion of ten years
participation in the plan, Saudi employees maytdtecontinue their participation or to collect llly vested amounts and to rejoin the
plan as if for the first time

18. STATUTORY RESERVE
In accordance with Regulations for Companies indbauabia, the Company has established a statutmgrve by appropriation of 1C
of net income until the reserve equaled 50% oftiare capital. This reserve is not available feidéind distribution

19. RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial instruments carried on the balan@=sprincipally include cash and cash equivalexdspunts receivable from related parties
and other receivables, accounts payable and acanddther current liabilitie:

Credit Risk is the risk that one party will fail to dischardge obligation and will cause the other party taiina financial loss.
Receivables are generally from related partiesh@asubstantially placed with banks with soundiitreatings. Trade accounts
receivable are carried net of provision for doubdiebts.

Interest Rate Riskis the risk that the value of financial instrumewi8 fluctuate due to changes in the market indérates. The
Company has no significant interest bearing lomgtassets or liabilities

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difftgun raising funds to meet commitments associatét financial
instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an iilé to sell a financial asset quickly at an ambualwose to its fair value. Liquidity risk
is managed by monitoring on a regular basis thificent funds are available to meet any future cgitments.

Currency Risk is the risk that the value of financial instrumewth fluctuate due to changes in foreign excharafes. Management
monitors the fluctuations in currency exchangesaied manages its effect on the financial statesrasdordingly

Fair Value is the amount for which an asset could be excharayedl liability settled between knowledgeable wil parties in an arm’s
length transaction. As the Company’s financialrimstents are compiled under the historical cost eatign, differences can arise
between their book values and fair value estimafiesmagement believes that the fair value of the gamy’s financial assets and
liabilities are not materially different from theiarrying values

20. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
At December 31, the Company had the following @gibmmitments

200¢ 200¢ 2007
SR 00( SR 00! SR 00(
Commitments for the acquisition of property andipment 84,00( 105,00( 116,00(
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007

21. SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DIFFERENCES BETWEEN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BY THE SAUDI
ORGANIZATION FOR CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (SAUD | GAAP) AND GENERALLY ACCEPTED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES IN THE UNITED STATES (US GAAP )

The Company is a Saudi limited liability comgaggistered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia andopres its financial statements in
accordance with Saudi GAAP. Saudi GAAP varies maie respects from US GAAP. The material diffeembetween accounting
principles, practices and methods under Saudi GAAGPUS GAAP and their effect on net income andetih@ders’equity for the year
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 are prddeeimv, with an explanation of the adjustmentseréhare no material effects on
the balance sheets or the statements of cash fioder Saudi GAAP for the purposes of reconciliatm/S GAAP. In addition,
comprehensive income under Saudi GAAP is the sanmeincome

(@) Reconciliation of net income

Year Ended December 31

(in SR*000) 2009 2008 2007
Net income under Saudi GAAF 1,226,71. 1,778,07. 1,546,89.
Adjustments

- Zakat and income tax ( (137,54 (203,75)) (175,50
- Deferred tax (ii) (2,019 3,521 (7,526
- Actuarial valuation adjustments for end of servimemnities (iii) (6,492 66€ 4,20(
- Other (iv) 3,46: 1,11¢ 3,762
Net income under US GAAF 1,084,12 1,579,62. 1,371,82!

(b) Reconciliation of shareholder’ equity

Year Ended December 31

(in SR*000) 2009 2008 2007

Shareholders equity under Saudi GAAP 1,235,86! 909,88 1,283,66!
- Deferred tax (ii) (147 1,872 (1,649
- Actuarial valuation adjustments for end of servimemnities (iii) (21,215 (14,727 (15,39)
- Other (iv) (10,807 (14,264 (26,879
Shareholders equity under US GAAP 1,203,70. 882,76! 1,239,74

(c) Summary of reconciling items to US GAAF

(i) Zakat and income tax

Under Saudi GAAP, companies with both Sandi @reign shareholders (commonly referred to asethcompanies) are
required to present income tax and zakat as aaepare item in the statement of changes in slddehs’ equity. However,
under US GAAP, income tax and zakat are viewedkpsreses attributable to the Company’s operatioesoAdingly,
income tax and zakat are recognized in the stateaiémcome.

(i) Deferred tax
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007

(iii)

(iv)

The Company has not recognized deferred ieciaxes under Saudi GAAP. Under US GAAP, deferaadassets and
deferred tax liabilities are recognized for futta® consequences of events, which have been rezamyim an entity’s
financial statements or tax returns. The Companggrized deferred tax assets and liabilities fergbrtion of temporary
differences subject to income tax, that is, thdiporof the taxable income attributable to foregrareholders. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to zakat, whechlso considered as a tax based on income paraaterial and, as such,
have not been recorde

Employee benefit— end of service indemnities“ EOSI")

Under Saudi GAAP, the Company’s EOSI obligiasi is calculated as the current value of the aggeevested benefits to
which each employee is entitled, assuming each@maplhad left the Company at the balance sheetidateever, under U
GAAP, EOSI is deemed to be a defined benefit @awl, requires recognition of a liability, known asjpcted benefit
obligation, for the actuarial present value ashefthalance sheet date of all benefits attributethbypenefit formula to
employee services before that date. Since EOSifisded, under US GAAP, a liability is recognizeghal to the projected
benefit obligation. Net periodic pension costs casgof service costs, interest costs, and gaiddasses. In addition, gains
or losses that are not recognized immediately@srgonent of net periodic pension cost are recegids increases or
decreases in other comprehensive income as theg;, and subsequently amortized to income usingdtréor approact

Other

Other adjustments include the impact on metine and shareholders’ equity primarily for intlteyassets capitalized under
Saudi GAAP which should be expensed under US GAAdPirterest-free loans to employees recorded drfgal cost
under Saudi GAAP that are recorded at amortizetwnader US GAAP
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